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PART |
Item 1 — Business
a. General Development of Business

John B. Sanfilippo & Son, Inc. was formed as a owapon under the laws of the State of Delawar&dii9 as the successor by merger to an
lllinois corporation that was incorporated in 1988. used throughout this annual report on Form 10#iess the context otherwise indicates,
the terms “we”, “us”, “our” or “the Company” refeollectively to John B. Sanfilippo & Son, Inc. aitsl wholly-owned subsidiaries, JBSS Real
Estate, LLC, JBSS Ventures, LLC and Sanfilippo (®&fei) Trading Co. Ltd. Our fiscal year ends onfthal Thursday of June each year, and
typically consists of fifty-two weeks (four thirteaveek quarters). Fiscal 2016 will consist of fiftyee weeks. Additional information on the
comparability of the periods presented is as fadlow

* References herein to fiscal 2016 are to the figeat ending June 30, 201

» References herein to fiscal 2015, fiscal 204d fiscal 2013 are to the fiscal years ended JBn@@15, June 26, 2014 and June 27, 2013
respectively

We are one of the leading processors and distribatiopeanuts, pecans, cashews, walnuts, almontsthar nuts in the United States. These
nuts are sold under a variety of private brandswartter themisher, Orchard Valley Harvest, Fisher Nut ExaclydSunshine Countrigrand
names. We also market and distribute, and in masgscmanufacture or process, a diverse produabfiftedd and snack products, including
peanut butter, almond butter, candy and confectiemecks and trail mixes, snack bites, sunflowendds, dried fruit, corn snacks, sesame
sticks and other sesame snack products under @itivahds and brand names.

Our website is accessible to the publitip://www.jbssinc.comnformation about us, including our code of ethasnual reports on Form 10-
K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reporis-orm 8-K and any amendments to those reportsade available free of charge through
our website as soon as reasonably practicablesaftdr reports have been filed with the United St&ecurities and Exchange Commission
(the “SEC”). Our materials filed with the SEC afsosavailable on the SEC’s websitehitp://www.sec.gov The public may read and copy ¢
materials we file with the SEC at the SEC’s pubdiference room at 100 F St., NE, Washington, DG20%he public may obtain information
about the reference room by calling the SEC at@-8BC-0330. References to our website addresghisifForm 10-K are provided as a
convenience and do not constitute, and should eetdwed as, an incorporation by reference of tifi@rination contained on, or available
through, the website. Therefore, such informattoousd not be considered part of this Form 10-K.

Our headquarters and executive offices are locat@@03 North Randall Road, Elgin, lllinois 60128d our telephone number for investor
relations is (847) 289-1800, extension 4612.

b. Segment Reporting

We operate in a single reportable operating segthanhtonsists of selling various nut and nut eglgtroducts through four distribution
channels. See Part Il, Item 8 — “Financial Stateimiand Supplementary Data” for our net sales,megtrhe and total assets.

c. Narrative Description of Business
(i) General

As stated above, we are one of the leading processal distributors of tree nuts and peanuts iruthieed States. Through a deliberate stra
of focused capital expenditures and complementagyiaitions, we have built a generally verticalyeigrated nut processing operation that
enables us to control almost every step of thege®for pecans, peanuts and walnuts, includingupeogent from growers, shelling,
processing, packaging and marketing. Vertical irgggn allows us to enhance product quality andnast crop years, purchase inshell
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pecans, peanuts and walnuts at lower costs as eppopurchasing these nut meats from other skelfée believe that our generally vertice
integrated business model typically works to owaadage in terms of cost savings and provides tlslvdgtter insight into crop development.
Our generally vertically integrated model, howewam under certain circumstances result in redeeedings or losses. See Part |, Item 1A —
“Risk Factors”.

Our products are sold through the major distributbannels to significant buyers of nuts, includiogd retailers, commercial ingredient us:
contract packaging customers and internationaboosts. Selling through multiple distribution chalsralows us to generate multiple revenue
opportunities for the nuts we process. For exang#ean halves could be sold to food retailers,mewédn pieces could be sold to commercial
ingredient users. We process and sell all majotypés consumed in the United States, includingnpisa pecans, cashews, walnuts and
almonds (our major nut types) in a wide varietypatkaging, thus offering our customers a complatgroduct offering.

(i) Principal Products

Our principal products are raw and processed ftisse products accounted for approximately 84%, 886682% of our gross sales for fiscal
2015, fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013, respectivelye Tiit product line includes almonds, pecans, psahl#ack walnuts, English walnuts,
cashews, macadamia nuts, pistachios, pine nutgil Brgs, and filberts. Our nut products are solshimerous package styles and sizes, from
stand-up bags, poly-cellophane packages, envirotathgfriendly packages, composite and clear-ptaséins, plastic tubs and plastic jars for
retail sales, to large cases and sacks for buis salcommercial ingredient customers. In additied offer our nut products in a variety of
different styles and seasonings, including non-titaa, blanched, oil roasted, dry roasted, saltesalted, honey roasted, flavored, spicy,
chocolate and yogurt coated, butter toffee, pradimé cinnamon toasted. We sell our products dooadstito retailers and wholesalers as well
as to commercial ingredient and contract packagirsjomers. We also sell certain of our producfeteign customers in the retail, contract
packaging and commercial ingredient markets. Weratige process of expanding our nut distributioteinationally with a number of our
branded products. For more information about ouemees in our various distribution channels, seelRdtem 8 — ‘Financial Statements a
Supplementary Data”.

We acquire a substantial portion of our peanutapemd walnut requirements directly from domestawgrs. The balance of our raw nut
supply is purchased from importers, trading compaaind domestic processors.

We manufacture and market peanut butter in segeres and varieties. We also market and distritard,in many cases process and
manufacture, a wide assortment of other food aadlsproducts. These other products include snagksnsalad toppings, snacks, snack bite:
trail mixes, dried fruit and chocolate and yoguwéated products sold to retailers and wholesaletsinly ingredients sold to retailers,
wholesalers, and commercial ingredient customen; flood products sold to retail and commercialr@dient users; an assortment of
sunflower kernels, pepitas, snack mixes, almontebutashew butter, sesame sticks and other ses@awk products sold to retail
supermarkets, mass merchandisers and commerciatliegt users and a wide variety of toppings feraceam and yogurt sold to commercial
ingredient users.

(iii) Customers and Channels

We sell our products to approximately 625 custorttersugh the consumer, commercial ingredient, @mpackaging and export distribution
channels. The consumer channel supplies nut-basedgis, including consumer-packaged and bulk ptsddo retailers including
supermarket chains, wholesalers, supercentersythed retail food outlets, across the United Statés sell products through the consumer
channel under our brand name products, includiadrigher, Orchard Valley Harvest, Fisher Nut ExacipdSunshine Countrgrands, as
well as under our customers’ private brands. Themercial ingredient channel supplies nut-basedymrtscdto other manufacturers to use as
ingredients in their final food products such akdrg, confection,



cereal and ice cream, and produces nut-based psotthat are customized to the specifications ofs;heational restaurant chains, food service
distributors, fast food chains, institutions andeh&itchens. We sell products through the comna¢ingredient channel under deisherbrand
and our customers’ private brands. Our contrackagiog channel produces and packages nut-basekissiomananufacturers under their brand
name. Finally, our export distribution channel disttes our complete product portfolio Bsherbranded snack nuts, private brand snack nut:
and commercial ingredients to approximately 80 austrs worldwide (which accounts for approximately df our net sales).

We are dependent on a few significant customera fagjority of our total net sales, particularhyti® consumer channel. Sales to our five
largest customers represented approximately 618etdales in fiscal 2015, 57% of net sales in fi2044 and 56% of net sales in fiscal 2013.
Net sales to W-Mart Stores, Inc. accounted for approximately 24%uw net sales for both fiscal 2015 and fiscal£20dnd 22% of fiscal 201
net sales. Net sales to Target Corporation accddoteapproximately 14%, 12% and 15% in fiscal 20fidcal 2014 and fiscal 2013,
respectively. Net sales to PepsiCo, Inc. accoufaiedpproximately 10% and 11% of our net saledifmal 2014 and fiscal 2013, respectively.
No other customer accounted for more than 10% b$ales for any period present

(iv) Sales and Distribution

We market our products through our own sales deyeant and through a network of approximately 70 jpeshelent brokers and various
independent distributors and suppliers.

We distribute products from each of our princigdifities. The majority of our products are shipfexn our production and warehouse
facilities by contract and common carriers.

In the Chicago area, we operate a retail stor@mpduction facility. This store selldshersnack and baking produc@rchard Valley
Harvestproducts, bulk foods and other products producedsbgnd other vendors.

(v) Marketing

Marketing strategies are developed for each didiob channel and focus primarily on branded présiugranded consumer efforts concent
on building brand awareness, identifying and inimdg new products, attracting new customers aagkasing consumption in the snack nut,
recipe nut and produce categories. Private bradc&cammercial ingredient channel efforts are focusedategory management, new product
identification and introduction, and merchandissugport.

A significant portion of our branded marketing effoare focused on consumer promotional campalwatdriclude advertisements (e.g., social
media, magazine, newspaper, internet, televisiogihradio) and coupon offers. Our integrated markggifiorts for theFisherbrand include
sponsorships of celebrity chefs and professionaitsgranchises. Additionally, shipper display srare utilized in retail stores in an effort to
gain additional temporary product placement andritee sales volume. We work with third-party infation agencies, such as Information
Resources, Inc. (“IRi"), to monitor the effectivesseof our marketing and measure product growth.

Commercial ingredient trade promotion includes gdidally attending regional and national trade shanade publication advertising and one-
on-one marketing. These promotional efforts highlight processing capabilities, broad product poxfgliroduct customization and packag
innovation.

Internationally, the development of tResherbrand is focused on generating consumer trial, emems and loyalty. Promotional activities
include product sampling, in-store displays andeincentives to consumers and retail trade. Akarlnited States, digital consumer
relationship marketing is utilized in select magket



Through participation in several trade associatifursding of industry research and sponsorshipdotational programs, we support efforts to
increase awareness of the health benefits, convemiend versatility of nuts as both a snack areti@e ingredient among existing and future
consumers of nuts.

(vi) Competition

Our nuts and other snack food products competasigaioducts manufactured and sold by numerous otimepanies in the snack food
industry, some of whom are substantially larger lasge greater resources than us. In the nut indusé compete with, among others, Kraft
Heinz Company (Planters brand), ConAgra Foods, Diamond Foods, Inc. (Emerald and Diamond brandgehouse Foods, Inc. and
numerous regional snack food processors. Compefiietors in our markets include price, productlitpyacustomer service, breadth of proc
line, brand name awareness, method of distribiimhsales promotion. The combination of our gehevaltically integrated operating model
with respect to pecans, peanuts and walnuts, aalugt quality, product offering, brand strengttstdbution model and the fact that we focus
on nut and nut related products generally enabte usmpete in each of these categories, but t@rde no guarantee that our products will
continue to be competitive with many of our largempetitors. See Part |, ltem 1A — “Risk Factorsfdu.

(vii) Raw Materials and Supplies

We purchase nuts from domestic and foreign soutodiscal 2015, all of our walnuts, almonds andipats were purchased from domestic
sources. We purchase our pecans from the south@tedStates and Mexico. Cashew nuts are imported Vietnam, India, Brazil and
Africa. For fiscal 2015, approximately 27% of thaldr value of our total nut purchases was froneigm sources.

Competition in the nut shelling industry is drivieyshellers’ ability to access and purchase raw,natshell the nuts efficiently and to sell the
nuts to processors. We shell all major domestidypés, with the exception of almonds, and are ap@ofew select shellers who further
process, package and sell nuts to the end-userniaerial pricing pressure and the high cost offggent automation have previously
contributed to a consolidation among shellers acatisnut types, especially peanuts and pecans.

We are generally vertically integrated with respgegbecans, peanuts and walnuts and, unlike ousmeapsumer distribution channel
competitors who purchase nuts on the open markepukchase a substantial portion of our pecansiyte@and walnuts directly from growers.
However, there are risks associated with vertiziggration, such as susceptibility to market dedlifor pecans, peanuts and walnuts. See Pal
[, Item 1A — “Risk Factors” below.

Due, in part, to the seasonal nature of the ingluste maintain significant inventories of peangiscans and walnuts at certain times of the
year, especially in the second and third quartemiofiscal year. Fluctuations in the market pridgpecans, peanuts and walnuts and other
may affect the value of our inventory and thus raksp affect our gross profit and gross profit mardee Part I, Item 1A — “Risk Factors”.

We purchase some of our packaging and labels frogtated party. We purchase other inventory itenth |s roasting oils, seasonings, plasti
jars, labels, star-up bags, composite and clear-plastic cans and ptukaging materials from other third parties. i@ costs, including tree
nuts, peanuts, other commodities and other invgritems represented approximately 86% of our todat of sales for fiscal 2015.

(viii) Trademarks and Patents

We market our products primarily under name bramisduding theFisher, Orchard Valley Harvest, Fisher Nut ExacilydSunshine Country
brand names, which are registered as trademarkgshétU.S. Patent and Trademark Office as welhafious other foreign jurisdictions. We
do not own any trademarks for any private brandsclvare owned by the respective private brandoomst. Our trademarks, particularly the
related to



our brands, are important as they provide our ecoete with information about the quality of our puots. However, registration and use of oul
trademark, in foreign jurisdictions may be subjectertain risks in addition to other risks genlgreglated to our intellectual property. See Par
I, Item 1A — “Risk Factors” below. We also own sealgatents of various durations. We expect toioastto renew for the foreseeable future
those trademarks that are important to our busiaedsxpand registration of our trademarks into jugigdictions. We intend to protect our
intellectual property rights vigorously.

(ix) Employees

As of June 25, 2015, we had approximately 1,456tiule employees, including approximately 185 cagte staff employees. Due to the
seasonality of our business, our labor requiremtypisally peak during the last quarter of the odlar year.

(x) Seasonality

Our business is seasonal. Demand for peanut amatrteproducts is highest during the last four memif the calendar year. Peanuts, pecans
and walnuts, three of our principal raw materiatg, primarily purchased between September and &gband are processed throughout the
year until the following harvest. As a result ofsteeasonality, our personnel requirements rismgihe last four months of the calendar y:
Our working capital requirements generally peakirduthe third quarter of our fiscal year.

(xi) Backlog

Because the time between order and shipment idlyisess than three weeks, we believe that any logcis of a particular date is not material
to an understanding of our business as a whole.

(xii) Operating Hazards and Uninsured Risks

The sale of food products for human consumptionlves the risk of injury to consumers as a resufiroduct contamination or spoilage,
including the presence of shell fragments, foraigjects, insects, foreign substances, pathogeesjichls, aflatoxin and other agents, or
residues introduced during the growing, storagadliag or transportation phases. We (i) maintairatwlie believe to be rigid quality control
standards and food safety systems and are SQFQID® Level 2 certified, (ii) generally inspect auut and other food products by visual
examination, metal detectors or electronic monittrgarious stages of our shelling and processirsgations, (iii) work with the United States
Department of Agriculture (“USDA”) in its inspectimf peanuts shipped to and from our peanut slgeféinilities, (iv) maintain environmental
pathogen programs and regularly provide samplésstéood and Drug Administration for testing, ampgeek to comply with the Nutrition
Labeling and Education Act by labeling each prodbat we sell with labels that disclose the nuriél value and content of each of our
products; however, no assurance can be givendhat siut or other food products sold by us may patain or develop harmful substances
order to mitigate this risk, we strive to seleatiquality nut suppliers and currently maintaindaret liability and contaminated product
insurance at amounts we believe are adequatehindfgour operations.

Item 1A — Risk Factors

We face a number of significant risks and uncetién and therefore, an investment in our CommaulSis subject to risks and uncertainties.
The factors described below could materially angeaskly affect our business, results of operatatsfinancial condition. While each risk is
described separately, some of these risks areéhdérd and it is possible that certain risks cari@ber the applicability of other risks descril
below. Also, the risks and uncertainties describeldw are not the only ones that we face. Additioiss and uncertainties not presently
known to us, or that are currently deemed immdtestauld also potentially impair our business,
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results of operations and financial condition. Istees should consider the following factors, initidd to the other information contained in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including Partitem 7 — “Management’s Discussion and Analysiiofancial Condition and Results of
Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources” befdeciding to purchase our Common Stock.

We Cannot Control the Availability or Cost of Raw Materials and this May Have a Material Adverse Effect on Our Results of Operations,
Cash Flows and Financial Condition

The availability and cost of raw materials for freduction of our products, including peanuts, pecalmonds, cashews, walnuts and other
nuts are subject to crop size and yield fluctuaioaused by factors beyond our control, such atheeaonditions, natural disasters (including
floods, droughts, frosts, earthquakes and hurrgamant diseases, other factors affecting glsbaply, changes in global customer demand,
changes in government programs and purchasing lmehafwcertain countries, including China and Indhaditionally, any determination by
the USDA or other government agencies that cepgasticides, herbicides or other chemicals usedtwers have left harmful residues on
portions of the crop or that the crop has beenarpimtated by aflatoxin or other agents or any fupmaduct recalls for other reasons could
reduce the supply of edible nuts and other raw nadéeused in our products and could cause ousdosncrease significantly.

Because these raw materials are commodities, pihiegs are set by the market and can thereforéugibe quickly and dramatically due to
varied events, such as those described above.€fomine, we are not able to hedge against changesyimodity prices because no appropi
futures, derivative or other risk-sharing markettftese commodities exists. Consequently, in cmechieve or maintain profitability levels,
we attempt to increase the prices of our producteftect the increase in the costs of the raw risethat we use and sell. However, we may
not be successful in passing along partial ordtitie increases to our customers, if at all. Initéald, even if we are successful in passing acros
partial or full price increases, we may not be dbldo so in a timely fashion. Our ability to rajzéces and the timing of any price increases is
often dependent upon the actions of our competismsie of whom are significantly larger and moredsified than we are. Additionally, any
such product price increase that we are able t® glasig to our customers may ultimately reducedthrmand for, and sales of, our products as
customers reduce purchases or, buy lower pricedugts. Any one or more of the foregoing aspects haaye a material adverse effect on our
results of operations, cash flows and financialditoon.

Moreover, fluctuations in the market prices of nutsy affect the value of our inventories and padffility. We maintain significant inventories
of nuts, and our financial condition could be miatér and adversely affected by any significantr@ase in the market price of such raw
materials. See Part Il, ltem 7 — “Management’s Désion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Rssof Operations — Liquidity and
Capital Resources”.

Significant Private Brand Competitive Activity Could Materially and Adversely Affect Our Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Some customer buying decisions, including someuofargest customers, are based upon a periodirigigorocess in which the single,
successful bidder is assured the selling of thectedl product to the food retailer, supercentenass merchandiser until the next bidding
process to the exclusion of other bidders. Ourssatddume may decrease significantly if our bidstacehigh and we lose the ability to sell
products through these channels, even temporadilrnatively, we risk reducing our margins if doids are successful but below our desired
price points. In addition, margins could be furtheduced if commodity prices rise and customersiavélling or unable to accept price
increases. Any of these outcomes may materiallyaatvérsely affect our financial condition and résof operations.
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Our Inability to Manage Successfully the Price Gap Between our Private Brand Products and Those of our Branded Competitors May
Materially and Adversely Affect Our Results of Operations

Although demand for private brand products (andprivate brand products in particular) has incrdaser competitors’ branded products
have certain advantages over our private brandugtegrimarily due to their advertising strategigme recognition and pricing flexibility.

At the retail level, private brand products gerlgratll at a discount to those of branded compestitid branded competitors reduce the price of
their products, the price of branded products effdo consumers may approximate the prices of Buate brand products. Further,
promotional activities by branded competitors sashtemporary price reductions, buy-one-get-onedffsxings and coupons, have the same
general effect as price decreases. Price decredsa®ed by branded competitors could result ohegline in the demand for our private brand
products, which could negatively impact our salelsimes and overall profitability. Such sales voluamel profitability decreases could
materially and adversely affect our results of agiens.

In addition, many of our competitors with signifitdbranded operations have more diversified prodffetings among a wider variety of food
categories than we have. Such competitors could rasult of their size or diversified offeringsg, in a better position to decrease their costs ¢
offer better promotions for their branded produlftsompetitors are able to exploit their size oradlsification to make significant price
reductions, it could decrease our private brangssavhich could materially and adversely affectrasults of operations.

Changing Consumer Preferences and Demand Could Materially and Adversely Affect Our Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Our financial performance depends in part on oilitabo anticipate and offer products to our cusers that appeal to their preferences.
Consumer preferences, whether for name brand pt®durivate brand products, can quickly changeetdan a number of factors beyond ou
control. If we fail to anticipate, identify or retlagquickly to these changes and are unable to inte@dnd market new and improved products to
meet consumer preferences, demand for our prodaatd suffer. In addition, demand for our produzisid be affected by consumer concern:
regarding the health effects of nutrients or inggets in any of our products. The development ateduction of new products requires
substantial research and development, testing amilating expenditures, which we may be unable ltg facover if the new products do not
achieve the necessary commercial success. New @rimdoduction also results in increased costdpiting from the use of new
manufacturing techniques, capital expenditures, reswmaterials and ingredients, and additional mi@mg and trade spending. Reduction in
demand as a result of changing consumer prefer@mdrability to provide consumers with producteyttdemand could materially and
adversely affect our financial condition and resolt operations.

In addition, our success in anticipating, offeramyl marketing products to our customers that agpehkir preferences depends on our ability
to adapt to a rapidly changing media environmerg.iliéreasingly rely on social media and online aiisiag campaigns as well as advertising
outside of traditional print, radio and televisicmannels. Negative posts or comments about uedyte of products we market and sell on
social networking Web sites or similar online aityixcould seriously impact consumer demand forgraducts. We are subject to a variety of
legal and regulatory restrictions on how we madget advertise our products. These restrictions lima/our ability to respond to changing
tastes as the media and communications environcosinues to evolve. If we do not react approplyathen our product sales, financial
condition and results of operations could be maligrand adversely affected.

We Sometimes Enter Into Fixed Price Commitments without First Knowing Our Acquisition Costs, Which Could Have a Material Adverse
Effect on Our Financial Condition and Results of Operations

A substantial portion of our commercial ingredisates customers, and certain other customers resgsiito enter into fixed price commitme
with them. Such commitments represented approxigna&®o of our annual
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net sales in fiscal 2015. The commitments are fioteal period of time, typically three months toeiwe months, but may be extended if
remaining balances exist. Sometimes we enter irg¢al forice commitments with respect to certain wf out products before fixing our
acquisition costs in order to maintain customeatiehships or when, in management’s judgment, ntarkerop harvest conditions so warrant.
To the extent we do so and the fixed prices argragerly aligned with our acquisition costs, thieese fixed price commitments may result in
reduced or negative gross profit margins which ddave a material adverse effect on our finan@abiion and results of operations.

Our Generally Vertically I ntegrated Model Could Materially and Adversely Affect Our Results of Operations

We have a generally vertically integrated nut pssagy operation that enables us to control almestyestep of the process for pecans, peanu
and walnuts, including procurement from growerst @enerally vertically integrated model has in plaest resulted, and may in the future
result, in significant losses because we are stifijgbe various risks associated with purchasintagority of our pecans, peanuts and walnuts
directly from growers, including the risk of purdag such products from growers at costs that, ldtgs to altered market conditions, prove to
be above prevailing market prices at time of s&ézordingly, because we purchase a majority ofpmaans, peanuts and walnuts directly fron
growers during harvest season and shell and prdieess nuts throughout our fiscal year, therepessibility that, after we acquire these nuts,
market conditions may change and we will be fortoeskll these nuts at a loss which could materefigt adversely affect our results of
operations.

We Operate in a Competitive Environment Which Could Materially and Adversely Affect our Financial Condition and Results of Operations

We operate in a highly competitive environment. @uncipal products compete against food and spasiucts manufactured and sold by
numerous regional, national and international carigsa some of which are substantially larger and:lgaeater resources than us, such as
Kraft Heinz Company (Planters brand), ConAgra Fotus, Diamond Foods, Inc. (Emerald and Diamorahbs) and Treehouse Foods, Inc.
Most of our competitors that sell and market tHeeotop branded snack nut products have committaé mesources to such brands when
compared to the resources spent by us on our hritadsy of our competitors buy their nuts on theropgarket and are thus not exposed to th
risks of purchasing inshell pecans, peanuts andut&iirectly from growers at fixed prices thatladue to altered market conditions, may
prove to be above prevailing market prices. We atsupete with other shellers in the commercial@dignt market and with regional
processors in the retail and wholesale marketsrder to maintain or increase our market sharenwst continue to price our products
competitively and spend on marketing, advertising mew product innovation, which may cause a dedfirgross profit margin if we are
unable to increase unit volumes as well as reduceasts, which could materially and adverselycftaur financial condition and results of
operations.

We are Dependent Upon Certain Significant Customers Which Could Materially and Adversely Affect Our Financial Condition, Cash Flows
and Results of Operations

We are dependent on a few significant customera farge portion of our total net sales, partidylar the consumer channel. Sales to our five
largest customers represented approximately 61%, & 56% of net sales in fiscal 2015, fiscal 28add fiscal 2013, respectively. There can
be no assurance that all significant customersaaifitinue to purchase our products in the sametitiegn same product mix or on the same
terms as in the past, particularly as increasipglyerful retailers may demand lower pricing, diffiet packaging, larger marketing support,
payments for retail space, establish private brandsquest other terms of sale which negativelyaiot our profitability. A loss of one of our
largest customers, a material decrease in purchgsase of our largest customers, or a signifitarginess interruption at one of our largest
customers would result in decreased sales and woatdrially and adversely affect our results ofratiens, financial condition and cash flo
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We are Subject to Customer Pricing Pressures Which Could Materially and Adversely Affect Our Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

As the retail grocery trade continues to consodidatd our retail customers grow larger, become maphaisticated and obtain more purchasin
power, our retail customers are demanding lowainmi especially private brand customers, and amzd free or discounted promotional
programs. Further, these retail customers may begitace a greater emphasis on the lowest-coglisuin making purchasing decisions
especially during periods of increased raw matagagjuisition costs. An increased focus on the Itwest supplier could reduce the benefits o
some of our competitive advantages, which incluftecas on customer service, innovation, productiapacity, category management and
quality. Our sales volume growth could suffer, &mday become necessary to lower our prices angése promotional support of our
products, any of which would materially and advBrsdfect our gross profit and gross profit margimd could materially and adversely affect
our financial condition and results of operations.

Food Safety, Allergy and Product Contamination Concerns Could Have a Material Adverse Effect on Our Financial Condition and Results
of Operations

If consumers in our principal markets lose confitiem the health or safety of nut products, paldidy with respect to peanut and tree nut
allergies, food borne illnesses or other food yafedtters, this could materially and adverselycftair financial condition and results of
operations. Individuals with nut allergies may Ibeisk of serious illness or death resulting frdm tonsumption of our nut products, including
consumption of other companies’ products contaimingproducts as an ingredient. Notwithstandingendsting food safety controls, we
process peanuts and tree nuts on the same equijpmndrthere is no guarantee that our other produititaot be cross-contaminated. Concerns
generated by risks of peanut and tree nut crostaronation and other food safety matters, includowd borne illnesses, may discourage
consumers from buying our products, cause productia delivery disruptions, or result in produataiés. Product safety issues (i) concerning
products not manufactured, distributed or sold $wnd (ii) concerning products we manufactureryitiste and sell, may materially and
adversely affect demand for products in the nuastiy as a whole, including products without actafety problems. Decreases in demand fc
products in the industry generally could have aemialtadverse effect on our financial condition aesults of operations. In addition, the
cooling system at the Elgin, lllinois facility uies ammonia. If a leak in the system were to qdbtare is a possibility that the inventory in
cold storage at the Elgin, lllinois facility coube destroyed which could have a material adverfsetedn our financial condition and results of
operations.

The Risk Assessment Conducted by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration on the Risks of Tree Nuts May Have a Material Adverse Effect
on Our Financial Condition, Results of Operations and Cash Flows

The U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA") isreently assessing the risks of Salmonella contatitinassociated with tree nuts. This
assessment, which includes randomly sampling tné®in the marketplace, has already resulted idymorecalls in the nut industry, including
two of our product recalls in fiscal 2015. The fesand impact of this risk assessment and rebaied on sampling could also lead to
increased industry-specific regulation and/or addél risk-based preventive controls which may ltgsuncreased compliance costs, capital
expenditures to meet FDA-imposed requirements apdtation risks to our branded and private braoduycts. Recalls or significant
expenditures to satisfy FDA requirements could heweaterial adverse effect on our financial conditiresults of operations and cash flows.

Product Liability, Product Recalls, Product Labeling and Product Advertising Claims May Have a Material Adverse Effect on Our Results of
Operations and Cash Flows

We face risks associated with product liabilityirrla, product recalls and other liabilities in theet: (i) our food safety and quality control
procedures are ineffective or fall, (ii) we procpreducts from third parties that are or becomgestifto a recall, regardless of whether or not
our food safety and quality control proceduresiaeéfective or fail, (iii) our products cause injuor become adulterated or misbranded,

(iv) our products are



determined to be promoted or labeled in a mislaatishion or (v) government authorities test owdpicts and determine that they contain a
contaminant or present a food safety risk. In regears, the food industry has been a targetightibn over product labeling and advertising,
including nut products. Such litigation resultssignificant costs to defend and resolve. In addjtie do not control the labeling of other
companies’ products containing our products asigredient. A product recall of a sufficient quanté significant product liability judgment
against us, a significant advertising-related ligbor judgment against us or other safety consewuld cause our products to be unavailable
for a period of time, could result in a loss of somer confidence in our products and expose ualidiies in excess of any insurance we
maintain for such events. If these kinds of everdgee to occur, they would have a material adveffeeteon the demand for our products and,
consequently, our results of operations and castsfl

We are Dependent on Certain Key Personnel and the Loss of Any of Their Services Could Have a Material Adverse Effect on Our Results of
Operations

Our future success will be largely dependent orptitsonal efforts of our senior operating managensam, including Jeffrey T. Sanfilippo,
Chief Executive Officer, Michael J. Valentine, Chiénancial Officer, Group President and Secretdaymes A. Valentine, Chief Information
Officer and Jasper B. Sanfilippo, Jr., Chief OpagOfficer, President and Assistant Secretary.b&leeve that the expertise and knowledge o
these individuals in the industry, and in theimpeive fields, is a critical factor to our growahd success. Although some of our officers own
significant amounts of our Class A Common Stocksthindividuals have not entered into any employraenon-compete agreement with us,
nor do we have key officer insurance coverage jgdim effect. The departure of any of these irdiigils could have a material adverse effect
on our business and prospects and that in turndiwaNe a material adverse effect on our resultpefations. Our success is also dependent
upon our ability to attract and retain additionahlified personnel, and there can be no assuraateve will be able to do so.

We are Subject to Government Regulation Which Could Materially and Adversely Affect Our Results of Operations

We are subject to extensive regulation by the FIDA,USDA, the United States Environmental Protecfigency (“EPA”) and other state,
local and foreign authorities in jurisdictions wleur products are manufactured, processed or Aoidng other things, these regulations
govern the manufacturing, importation, processpagkaging, storage, distribution, advertising aizkling of our products. Our manufactur
and processing facilities and products are suljeperiodic compliance inspections by federal estitcal and foreign authorities. We are also
subject to environmental regulations governingdiseharge of air emissions, water and food walkteusage and storage of pesticides, and tt
generation, handling, storage, transportationfrireat and disposal of waste materials. Amendmengsisting statutes and regulations,
adoption of new statutes and regulations, increpseduction at our existing facilities as well ag @xpansion into new operations and
jurisdictions, may require us to obtain additioli@nses and permits and could require us to autagiter methods of operations at costs
could be substantial. Compliance with applicablesland regulations may be time-consuming, experwivestly to us in different ways and
could materially and adversely affect our resufteperations. Failure to comply with applicable taand regulations could subject us to civil
remedies, including fines, injunctions, recallseizures, as well as possible criminal sanctiomgchvcould materially and adversely affect our
results of operations.

Specifically, governmental policies affecting the agriculturalustry, such as taxes, tariffs, duties, subsidiegntives, and import and export
restrictions on agricultural commodities and comityoproducts, can influence the planting of certaiiops, the location and size of crop
production, whether commodity products are tradleel yolume and types of imports and exports, thbility and volume of production of
certain of our products, and industry profitability addition, international trade disputes caneadgly affect commaodity trade flows by
limiting or disrupting trade between countries @gions. Future government policies may adverségcathe supply of, demand for, and prices
of our products, restrict our ability to do busis@sits existing and
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target markets, and negatively impact our reveanesoperating results. Changes in regulatory requents (such as requirements designed t
enhance food safety or further regulate advertismgrarketing), or evolving interpretations of g¢ixig regulatory requirements, may result in
increased compliance costs, capital expenditurdstrer financial obligations that could materialyd adversely affect our results of
operations.

The Food Safety Modernization Act (“FSMA”") giveetRDA expanded authorities over the safety of @iteonal food supply, including
increased inspections and mandatory recalls, dsawstricter enforcement actions, each of whialiccoesult in additional compliance costs
and civil remedies, including fines, injunctiondtivdrawals, recalls or seizures and confiscatidihe FSMA further instructed the FDA to
develop new rules and regulations, including thdégomance of hazard analyses, implementation ofggve plans to control hazards, and
foreign supplier verification provisions. We curtlgrhave “hazard analysis and critical control gsin(*HACCP”) processes and procedures ir
place that may appropriately address many of thetieg or future concerns arising out of the FSMWawever, any new FDA rules and
regulations could require us to change certainuofoperational processes and procedures, or impienasv ones, and there could also be
unforeseen issues, requirements and costs thataithe FDA promulgates its new rules and reguiatiHACCP is a management system in
which food safety is addressed through the anasysilscontrol of hazards from raw material produttigrocurement and handling, to
manufacturing, distribution and consumption of fineshed product.

We are a publicly traded company and subject toging rules and regulations of federal and stategonents as well as the stock exchange
on which our Common Stock is listed. These entifreduding the Public Company Accounting OversiBloard, the SEC, the Department of
Justice and the Nasdaq Global Select Market, tesreed a significant number of new and increasiogtyiplex requirements and regulations
over the course of the last several years andruomtio develop additional regulations and requirgs response to laws enacted by
Congress. Our efforts to comply with these requéets have resulted in, and are likely to contirueesult in, an increase in expenses and a
diversion of management’s time from other busirsedvities. Failure to comply with any law or regtibn could subject us to civil remedies,
including fines and injunctions, as well as possitiminal sanctions, which could materially angdexrdely affect our results of operations.

Operational, Legal, Economic, Palitical and Social Risks of Doing Businessin Emerging Markets and Other Foreign Countries May Have a
Material Adverse Effect on Our Results of Operations

Approximately 27% of the dollar value of our totait purchases for fiscal 2015 were made from foreiguntries. We purchase our cashew
inventories from Vietnam, India, Brazil and Afriaad some of our pecans from Mexico, which are inywaspects emerging markets. Furt
we are continually looking to expand our salesrimgonally and enter new emerging and establishadkets, including markets within Asia.
To this extent, we are exposed to risks inheresnierging markets, including:

» increased governmental ownership and regulatidgheo&conomy

» greater likelihood of inflation and adverse econooonditions

» governmental attempts to reduce inflation, sucimg®sition of higher interest rates and wage amceprontrols

« supply reduction into the United States from inseghdemand in foreign countrie

e international competitior

» compliance with, and subjection to, foreign lawgluding our ability to protect our intellectualoperty, such as our branc

» compliance with U.S. laws and regulations relateddanduct in foreign countries, such as the Foré&igmupt Practices Ac
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» currency exchange rate
» potential for contractual defaults or forced rertegimns on purchase contracts with limited legalaurse
» tariffs, duties, trade laws and other barriersadé that may reduce our profitability or sales

« civil unrest and significant political instabilit

The existence of these and other risks in emengiakets and other foreign countries could jeopardizlimit our ability to purchase sufficient
supplies of cashews, pecans and other importedmatarials and limit our ability to make internatibisales, and may materially and adversel
affect our results of operations by increasingabsts of doing business overseas.

The Way in Which We Measure | nventory May Have a Material Adverse Effect on Our Results of Operations

We acquire our inshell nut inventories of pecaesruts and walnuts from growers and farmers irelgrgantities at harvest times, which are
primarily during the second and third quarters wf fiscal year, and receive nut shipments in bulkkloads. The weights of these nuts are
measured using truck scales at the time of recaiut,inventories are recorded on the basis of thesssurements. The nuts are then stored in
bulk in large warehouses to be shelled or processedghout the year. Bulk-stored nut inventoriesralieved on the basis of continuous high
speed bulk weighing systems as the nuts are stmllpobcessed or on the basis of calculations ddrikom the weight of the shelled nuts that
are produced. While we perform various procedusgigically to confirm the accuracy of our budkered nut inventories, these inventories
estimates that must be periodically adjusted toaccfor positive or negative variations in quaesitand yields, and such adjustments directly
affect earnings. The quantities of each crop ye#btored nut inventories are generally shelled oet @vten to fifteen month period, at wh
time revisions to any estimates, which historicalyeraged less than 1.0% of inventory purchasesglao recorded. The precise amount of ou
bulk-stored nut inventories is not known until #rgtire quantity of the particular nut is depletetiich may not necessarily occur every year.
Prior crop year inventories may still be on handh&snew crop year inventories are purchased. Tdjerity of bulk-stored nut inventories at
June 25, 2015 were processed during the first guaftfiscal 2016, before any new crop inventoviese purchased, thus enabling us to adjus
the bulkstored nut inventories at June 25, 2015. Therédbeam assurance that any such inventory quantjastdents will not have a mater
adverse effect on our results of operations irfubgre.

Certain of Our Stockholders Possess a Majority of Aggregate Voting Power in the Company, Which May Make a Takeover or Changein
Control More or Less Difficult; and The Sanfilippo Group Has Pledged a Substantial Amount of their Class A Common Stock, Either of
Which Could Materially and Adversely Affect Our Financial Condition and Results of Operations

As of August 21, 2015, Jasper B. Sanfilippo Sr.ristaSanfilippo, Jeffrey T. Sanfilippo, Jasper BinSlippo, Jr., Lisa A. Sanfilippo, John E.
Sanfilippo and James J. Sanfilippo (the “Sanfiliggmup”) own or control Common Stock (one vote gleaire) and Class A Common Stock
(ten votes per share on all matters other thaeldaion of Common Stock directors) representingraximately a 51.3% voting interest in the
Company. As of August 21, 2015, Michael J. Valemtmd Mathias A. Valentine (the “Valentine Group#yn or control Common Stock (one
vote per share) and Class A Common Stock (ten yaseshare on all matters other than the electid@oonmon Stock directors) representing
approximately a 24.1% voting interest in the Comypam addition, the Sanfilippo Group and the VaileatGroup as holders of the Class A
Common Stock are entitled to elect six Class A 8oes which represents 66% of our entire Board isé®ors. As a result, the Sanfilippo
Group and the Valentine Group together are abtbrazt the election of a majority of the membersht® Board of Directors. In addition, the
Sanfilippo Group is able to exert certain influelmceour business, or take certain actions, that@ame counteracted by another stockholder o
group of stockholders. The Sanfilippo Group is dbldetermine the outcome of nearly all mattersysttbd to a vote of our stockholders,
including any amendments to our certificate of npowation or bylaws. The Sanfilippo Group has tbever to prevent or cause dividends, or a
change in control or sale of the Company, which mramay not be in the best interests of

12



the other holders of Common Stock, and can taker@tttions that may be less favorable to our atteakholders and more favorable to the
Sanfilippo Group, subject to applicable legal liaibns, which could materially and adversely affaat financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows.

In addition, several members of the Sanfilippo Grthat beneficially own a significant interest imr&€Company have pledged a substantial
portion of the Companyg’Class A Stock that they own to secure loans rtmtteem by commercial banks. If a stockholder défaan any of it
obligations under these pledge agreements or tateddoan documents, these banks may have thetaglell the pledged shares. Such a sale
could cause our Company'’s stock price to declinenyvof the occurrences that could result in a foeoe of the pledged shares are out of ou
control and are unrelated to our operations. Bexthese shares are pledged to secure loans, the@ooe of an event of default could resu

a sale of pledged shares that could cause a cludimgatrol of our Company, even when such a changg not be in the best interests of our
stockholders, and it could also result in a defantter certain material contracts to which we gpardy, including an event of default under the
Credit Agreement by and among the Company, Wellgd-€apital Finance (f/k/a Wells Fargo Foothill,C}, as the arranger and
administrative agent and a syndicate of lendeitgddaebruary 7, 2008 (as amended, the “Credit iBagjlwhich could materially and
adversely affect our financial condition, result®perations and cash flows.

Essentially all of Our Real Property is Encumbered, Which Could Materially and Adversely Affect Our Ability to Obtain Additional Capital
if Required Which Could Materially and Adversely Affect Our Financial Condition, Results of Operations and Cash Flows

Our financing arrangements include a mortgageifacihich is secured by essentially all of our @dreal property located in Elgin, Illinois,
Gustine, California and Garysburg, North CaroliBacause essentially all of our owned real propisrgncumbered, such properties are not
available as a means of securing further capittiiérevent that additional capital is required liseaof unexpected events, losses or other
circumstances, which could materially and adveraéfigct our financial condition, results of opeoas and cash flows.

General Economic Conditions and Increased Production Costs Could Materially and Adversely Affect Our Financial Condition and Results
of Operations

General economic conditions and the effects otas®on, including uncertainty in economic condisi@nd an economic downturn, and
political uncertainties, including political acti@m inaction having an impact on the economy, ctalde a material adverse effect on our cash
flow from operations, results of operations anaficial condition. These conditions may include, aghother things, higher unemployment,
increased commodity costs, increased raw matesgbcincreased packaging material prices, decseasgterations in consumer demand,
changes in buying patterns, interest rate andaapirket volatility, adverse changes in the pusat@power of the U.S. dollar and higher
general water, energy, transportation and fuelscdgaintaining the prices of our products, initigtiprice increases (including passing along
price increases for commodities used in our prajumtd increasing the demand for our productgfallhich are important to our plans to
increase profitability, may be materially and acedy affected by general economic conditions aode@ses in production costs. Among other
considerations, nuts and our other products aresg#ntial products and therefore demand and wall@ie could decrease. In addition, a
general economic downturn could cause one or mfovarovendors, suppliers, distributors and custanerxperience cash flow problems ¢
therefore, such vendors, suppliers, distributots@rstomers may be forced to reduce their outpbut, down their operations or file for
bankruptcy protection, which in some cases wouldamgdifficult for us to continue production ofrtain products, could require us to reduce
sales of our products or could result in uncollelgaccounts receivable. Financial difficultiessotvency problems at these vendors, supplier:
and distributors could materially adversely affibetir ability to supply us with products or adeguatoducts, which could disrupt our
operations. It may be difficult to find a replacarhéor certain vendors, suppliers or distributoithaut significant delay or increase in cost.
Any of the foregoing could materially and adversaffect our financial condition and results of cgtens.
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Litigation Could Materially and Adversely Affect Our Financial Condition and Results of Operations

We have been the subject of litigation and investigs in the past, and we may become the subjditigation and investigations in the futu
which may include lawsuits or claims related totcacts, intellectual property, product recalls,darct liability, the marketing and labeling of
products, employment matters, environmental mattecgher aspects of our business. Plaintiffs gulaory bodies could seek recovery of
very large or indeterminate amounts, and the madeibf the potential loss relating to lawsuits anabstigations is difficult to accurately
estimate. Regardless of whether any claims agaate valid, or whether we are ultimately heldlBasuch litigation and investigations may
be expensive to defend and may divert time, momeynaanagement attention away from our operatiodshagatively impact our financial
performance. We maintain insurance in amounts Wewugeto be adequate based on our business opesaki@wever, we may incur claims or
liabilities for which we are not insured, that exdehe amount of our insurance coverage or thainsurers may raise various objections and
exceptions to coverage. A judgment or settlemensifmificant monetary damages or requiring otlignificant changes to our business or
assets could materially and adversely affect aaritial condition and results of operations. Anyeade publicity resulting from allegations or
investigations may also adversely affect our retpataand the reputation of our products, whichumtcould materially and adversely affect
our financial condition and results of operations.

Technology Disruptions or Failures Could Materially and Adversely Affect Our Financial Condition and Results of Operations

We depend on information technology to maintain sineamline our operations, including, among othegs, (i) interfacing with our
locations, customers and suppliers, (i) complyiith financial reporting, legal and tax regulatoeguirements, (iii) maintaining inventory
control and monitoring systems and (iv) providirggwith real-time feedback about our business. biker companies, our information
technology systems may be vulnerable to a varitiyterruptions due to events beyond our contrat/uiding natural disasters, terrorist atta
telecommunications failures, computer viruses, begkcyber risks and other security issues. We tenlaology security initiatives and
disaster recovery plans in place to mitigate agk t© these vulnerabilities, but these measuresnmape adequate, particularly as the global
dependence on technology increases. In additiong ifire unable to prevent security breaches olodisie of non-public information, we may
suffer financial and reputational damage, litigatay remediation costs or penalties because airthethorized disclosure of confidential
information belonging to us or to our customersstoners, or suppliers. While we have not experig@areg significant disruption or failure of
our information technology systems, any such digonpor failure could adversely affect our finari@andition and results of operations.

Our Products are Processed at a Limited Number of Production Facilities and any Significant Disruption at any of Our Production Facilities
Could Have a Material Adverse Effect on Our Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Our products are shelled, manufactured or otherpriseessed at our five production facilities. Hoee\certain nut and nut-related products,
including the shelling of peanuts, walnuts and peand processing and packaging of certain otluetysts, are conducted only at a single
location. If any of these production facilities exignces a disruption for any reason, includingogkvetoppage, power failure, fire, or weather
related condition or natural disaster, this coelsuit in a significant reduction or eliminationtbé availability of some of our products. If we
were not able to obtain alternate production, sigelbr processing capability in a timely manneporsatisfactory terms, this could have a
material adverse effect on our financial conditéom results of operations.

I nability to Protect Our Intellectual Property or Avoid I ntellectual Property Disputes Could Materially and Adversely Affect Our Financial
Condition and Results of Operations

We consider our intellectual property rights, pararly and most notably our brand trademarks (sscburFisher, Orchard Valley Harvest
andSunshine Countrirademarks), but also our patents, trade secrapyrights
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and licensing agreements, to be a significant ahgable aspect of our business. We attempt to grote intellectual property rights through a
combination of patent, trademark, copyright anderaecret laws, as well as licensing agreemeritd,garty nondisclosure and assignment
agreements and policing of third party misusesunfiatellectual property both domestically and mtgionally. Our failure to obtain or
adequately protect our trademarks, products, newuffes of our products, or our technology, or amnge in law or other changes that serv
lessen or remove the current legal protectionsuofrttellectual property, may diminish our compgeéhess and could materially and adversely
affect our financial condition and results of opirmnas.

In addition, we may be unaware of intellectual @y rights of others that may cover some of oohtwlogy, brands or products. Any dispi
regarding patents or other intellectual propertyldde costly and time-consuming and could divestattention of our management and key
personnel from our business operations. Third peetyns of intellectual property infringement migliso require us to enter into costly license
agreements. We also may be subject to significamtagjes or injunctions against development ando$alertain products if found to be liable
for infringing activity. Any such activities coultiaterially and adversely affect our financial cdiwti and results of operations.

Unsuccessful |mplementation of Our Strategic Plan Could Materially and Adversely Affect Our Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

We developed a strategic plan (the “Strategic Blanbdst recently updated in fiscal 2013, to hel@cisieve long-term profitable growth. As
part of this Strategic Plan, we have taken a nurabections including, among other things, the 28&quisition of OVH, promotion of our
branded and snack nut products, international esiparand other related strategies related to isangasales of non-branded business at
existing key customers. We are taking these actionsder to increase sales in all of our distribntchannels. There are no assurances that w
will be successful in achieving any portion of @irategic Plan, or any other efficiency measures.

In addition, we have in the past, as part of omt8gic Plan, engaged in strategic acquisitionsj@intlventures. However, we may be unabl
successfully manage our existing acquisitions imt jeentures or identify additional acquisitionsjoint ventures which are attractive or
advantageous to grow or otherwise supplement datieg business. We may be unable to achieve aamiied portion of any anticipated cost
savings from previous acquisitions or joint vensuoe other anticipated benefits in the timeframeawgcipate, or at all.

As we continue to implement our Strategic Plan taednumber of our employees has grown, personrsé cimcluding the costs of medical
other employee health and welfare benefits, hameeased. These costs can vary substantially asilt of an increase in the number, mix and
experience of our employees and changes in healéhand other employment-related laws. There amssorances that we will succeed in
reducing future increases in such costs, partiuibgovernment regulations require us to changel®alth and welfare benefits or we need tc
attract and retain qualified personnel. Our in&ptid control such costs could materially and adebr affect our financial condition and results
of operations.

Any inability to realize the anticipated benefiterh the Strategic Plan could materially and ad\ersiect our financial condition and results
of operations.

Iltem 1B — Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2 — Properties

We own or lease five principal production facil#ieOur primary processing and distribution facilgyocated at our Elgin, lllinois site which
also houses our primary manufacturing operationscanporate headquarters (the “Elgin Site”). Theaming principal production facilities

are located in Bainbridge, Georgia; Garysburg, N@arolina; Selma, Texas and Gustine, Califormiaaddition, we operate a retail store at
Elgin Site.
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As described below in Part I, Item 7 — “Managereitiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord&Results of Operations — Liquidity
and Capital Resources”, the Mortgage Facility @#ed below) is secured by mortgages on essgntifilbf our owned real property located
in Elgin, lllinois, Gustine, California and GarysiguNorth Carolina.

We believe that our facilities are generally wellintained and in good operating condition.

a. Principal Facilities

The following table provides certain informatiomgaeding our principal facilities:

Date Company

Constructed,
Square Type of Acquired or
Location Footage Interest Description of Principal Use First Occupied
Owned Peanut shelling, purchasing,
Bainbridge, Georgia 300,00t and processing, packaging, 1987
Leasec warehousing and distributic

Peanut shelling, purchasing,
Garysburg, North Carolina 160,00( Owned processing, packaging, 199/
warehousing and distributic

Pecan shelling, processing,
Selma, Texa$) 300,00t Leased bulk packaging, warehousing 1997
and distributior

Walnut shelling, processing,
Gustine, California 215,00( Owned packaging, warehousing and 199:
distribution

Elgin, lllinois (2

(Elgin Office Building) 400,00t Owned Rental Property 200t

Processing, packaging,
1,001,001 Owned warehousing, distribution and 200t
corporate office:

Elgin, llinois 3
(Elgin Warehouse Building)

() The sale and lease back of the Selma propertiedai®d party partnerships was consummated dunmdrist quarter of fiscal 2007. See
Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statem— “Long-Term Deb".

(2)  The Elgin Office Building (part of the Elgin Sitajas acquired in April 2005. Approximately 29% oé thlgin Office Building is current
being leased to unrelated third parties. The reimgiportion of the office building may be leasedhad parties; however, there can be
assurance that we will be able to lease the unaedigpace. Further capital expenditures will likeé/necessary to lease all of the
remaining space

(®  The Elgin Warehouse Building (part of the Elgine$itvas acquired in April 2005 and was modified to specifications. The Elgin
Warehouse Building is the home of our corporatelfjaarters, Chicago area processing activities dnca@o area distribution
operations

b. Manufacturing Capability, Utilization, Technology and Engineering

Our principal production facilities are equippedhwinodern processing and packaging machinery anigpregnt.

The Elgin Site was designed to our specificatioith what we believe to be state-of-the-art equipm&he layout is designed to efficiently
move products from raw storage to processing t&gm@nog to distribution. The Elgin Site was desigt@dninimize the risk of cross

contamination between tree nuts and peanuts. &lsdlgin Site is designed to accommodate an iser@aproduction capacity of 20% to
35%.
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The Selma facility contains our automated pecailispend bulk packaging operation. The facilitgiscan shelling production lines currently
have the capacity to shell in excess of 90 millishell pounds of pecans annually. During fiscal20ve processed approximately 45 million
inshell pounds of pecans at the Selma facility.

The Bainbridge facility is located in the largesfput producing region in the United States. Taidify takes direct delivery of farmer stock
peanuts and cleans, shells, sizes, inspects, ldanatasts and packages them for sale to our castoifhe production line at the Bainbridge
facility is almost entirely automated and has thpacity to shell approximately 120 million inshetlunds of peanuts annually. During fiscal
2015, the Bainbridge facility shelled approximat&8/million inshell pounds of peanuts.

The Garysburg facility has the capacity to proaggsroximately 60 million inshell pounds of farmésck peanuts annually. During fiscal 20
the Garysburg facility processed approximately Iian pounds of inshell peanuts.

The Gustine facility is used for walnut shellingppessing, packaging, warehousing and distribufidiis facility has the capacity to shell in
excess of 60 million inshell pounds of walnuts adhlyu During fiscal 2015, the Gustine facility skeel approximately 44 million inshell poun
of walnuts.

The Bainbridge, Garysburg, Selma, and Gustineifi@silare equipped to handle the processing, panagarehousing and distribution, anc
the case of our Bainbridge and Garysburg facilitiee purchasing of nuts. Furthermore, at our ERjte, we process, package, warehouse an
distribute nuts. We currently have more than sidfitcapacity at our facilities to handle the afoemtioned operations.

Item 3 — Legal Proceedings

We are a party to various lawsuits, proceedingscther matters arising out of the conduct of owihess. Currently, it is management’s
opinion that the ultimate resolution of these nratteill not have a material adverse effect upontwusiness, financial condition, results of
operation or cash flows.

For a discussion of our legal proceedings, invasigs, settlements and other contingencies, se&"— Commitments and Contingent
Liabilities” in the Notes to Consolidated Financgthtements in Part Il, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

Item 4 — Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of Form 10rd &nstruction 3 to Item 401(b) of Regulation StkKe following executive officer
description information is included as an unnumbétem in Part | of this Report in lieu of beinginded in the Proxy Statement for our ani
meeting of stockholders to be held on October P&52Below are our executive officers as of Audiist2015:

Jeffrey T. Sanfilippo, Chief Executive Officer, age 52 — Mr. Sanfilippo has been employed byines1991 and in November 2006 was
named our Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Sanfilipperged as our Executive Vice President Sales andtéfiag from January 2001 to Novem
2006. He served as our Senior Vice President Salédvarketing from August 1999 to January 2001. $&mfilippo has been a member of our
Board of Directors since August 1999. He serve@aseral Manager West Coast Operations from Septeh®®d to September 1993. He
served as Vice President West Coast OperationSales from October 1993 to September 1995, ancbtrfilippo served as Vice President
Sales and Marketing from October 1995 to Augus©9199

Michael J. Valentine, Chief Financial Officer, Group President and Secretary, age 56 — Mr. Valentine has been employed by nsesi
1987. In November 2006, Mr. Valentine was namedChief Financial Officer and Group President andyliay 2007, Mr. Valentine was
named our Secretary. Mr. Valentine served as oective Vice President Finance, Chief Financiaic@ifand Secretary from January 200
November 2006. Mr. Valentine served as our Senioe Yresident and Secretary from August 1999 taakg2001. He has been a membe
our Board of Directors since April 1997. Mr. Valam served as our Vice President and Secretary Beoember 1995 to August 1999. He
served as an Assistant Secretary and the Generadéa of External Operations for us from June 188Y 1990, respectively, to December
1995. Mr. Valentines responsibilities also include peanut, importet] packaging and other ingredient procurement amctontract packagir
business.

Jasper B. Sanfilippo, Jr., Chief Operating Officer,President and Assistant Secretary age 47 —Mr. Sanfilippo has been employed by us
since 1992. In November 2006, Mr. Sanfilippo wasad our Chief Operating Officer and President am#iJay 2007, Mr. Sanfilippo was
named our Treasurer and held that position untildey 2009. Mr. Sanfilippo served as our Executii@e President Operations, retaining his
position as Assistant Secretary, which he assumé&gcember 1995 from 2001 to November 2006. Mrfiggmo became a member of our
Board of Directors in December 2003. He becameSamior Vice President Operations in August 1999serded as Vice President Operati
from December 1995 to August 1999. Prior to that, $&nfilippo was the General Manager of our Gest@alifornia facility beginning in
October 1995, and from June 1992 to October 199%eheed as Assistant Treasurer and worked in aari€ial Relations Department.

Mr. Sanfilippo is responsible for overseeing oun+peanut shelling operations, including plant opens and procurement.

James A. Valentine, Chief Information Officer, age 51 — Mr. Valentine has been employed bynsesi 986 and in November 2006 was
named our Chief Information Officer. He served asBxecutive Vice President Information Technoldgym August 2001 to November 20(
Mr. Valentine served as Senior Vice President imfmion Technology from January 2000 to August 280d as Vice President of
Management Information Systems from January 19%atmary 2000.

Michael G. Cannon, Senior Vice President, Corporat®©perations, age 62 — Mr. Cannon joined us in October 200Sexsior Vice
President of Operations. Previously, he was Viasident of Operations at Sugar Foods Corp., a mathugr and distributor of food products,
from 1995 to October 2005. Mr. Cannon is respoeditt the production operations for all of our faies.

Thomas J. Fordonski, Senior Vice President, Human &ources age 62 — Mr. Fordonski joined us in August, 2@87/ice President of
Human Resources and was promoted to Senior Viderg of Human Resources in January 2010. Prédyidus was Director of Human
Resources for Continental AG, a German-based globalufacturer of electronic automotive equipmernibrRo that, Mr. Fordonski was at
Motorola,
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Incorporated for 25 years, with his career culniimmags the Director of Human Resources for thealsbipply chain in the messaging and
cellular communications business. He is responsibsleeading the human resources activities andtfans.

Walter (Bobby) Tankersley Jr., Senior Vice Presidety Procurement and Commodity Risk Management age 63 — Mr. Tankersley has
been employed by us since January 2002 and wasdn@ergor Vice President of Procurement and Commdrigk Management in January
2011. Previously, Mr. Tankersley was Senior VicesRtent of Industrial Sales. He has over 30 yelesmerience in the nut industry where he
was previously Vice President of Sales & Markettighe Young Pecan Company and Director of IndaisBales at the Mauna Loa
Macadamia Nut Company. Mr. Tankersley is respoaditl procurement of almonds, walnuts, macadamidséstachios as well as providing
commodity analysis, crop forecasts, and consumptend analysis for various nut commodities.

Frank S. Pellegrino, Senior Vice President, Financand Corporate Controller , age 41 — Mr. Pellegrino joined us in January 2867
Director of Accounting and was appointed Corpofaatroller in September 2007. In January 2009, &s mamed Vice President Finance anc
Corporate Controller. In August 2012, he was praddbd Senior Vice President, Finance. Previously,Ré¢llegrino was Internal Audit
Manager at W.W. Grainger, a busines$tsiness distributor, from June 2003 to January 2B€ior to that, he was a Manager in the Assui
Practice of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, where leengloyed from 1996 to 2003. Mr. Pellegrino ipmssible for our accounting and
finance functions.

Christopher Gardier, Senior Vice President, ConsumeSales, age 55 — Mr. Gardier joined us in May 2010 asevizesident, Consumer
Sales. In August 2012, Mr. Gardier was promotefid¢nior Vice President, Consumer Sales. PreviotlyGardier was the Vice President
Sales for the Snacks Division at The Hain Cele§&iaup, where he led a national sales team of eggibnal managers selling natural and
organic salty snack brands. Prior to that, Mr. Gardias a Customer Vice President, Central Regidtepperidge Farm for six years, where he
led a team of independent biscuit and bakery Bistiors covering 13 Midwestern states. Prior to,thlxt Gardier was a Director of National
Accounts at Frito Lay for almost five years, whheeled a sales and operations team responsibtedanass merchandising channel.

Mr. Gardier is responsible for leading our ConsuBales efforts, including olisher, Fisher Nut ExactlgndOrchard Valley Harvedbrands.

Howard Brandeisky, Senior Vice President, Global M&eting and Customer Solutions,age 54 — Mr. Brandeisky joined us in April 2010
as Vice President, Marketing & Innovation. His ralas expanded to include Customer Solutions in Maf11. In October 2013, he was
promoted to Senior Vice President, Global Marketind Customer Solutions. Previously, he was arp@deent consultant in the food indu:
for a year. Prior to that, Mr. Brandeisky was aaKiFoods, Inc. for 24 years, with his career cabiting as a Vice President of Marketing. K
responsible for leading the marketing, consumagits, creative services, and customer solutiotigites and functions.

RELATIONSHIPS AMONG CERTAIN DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Mathias A. Valentine, a director of the Company(j)she father of Michael J. Valentine, an exeeetofficer and director of the Company, and
James A. Valentine, an executive officer of the @any and (ii) the uncle of Jasper B. Sanfilippoahd Jeffrey T. Sanfilippo, executive
officers and directors of the Company, and Jam8&8suifilippo, a director of the Company.

Michael J. Valentine, Chief Financial Officer, GpBresident and Secretary and a director of thegaom is (i) the son of Mathias A.
Valentine, (ii) the brother of James A. Valentimel &iii) the cousin of Jasper B. Sanfilippo, Jefftey T. Sanfilippo and James J. Sanfilippo.

Jeffrey T. Sanfilippo, Chief Executive Officer aadlirector of the Company, is (i) the brother cfpkx B. Sanfilippo, Jr. and James J.
Sanfilippo, (ii) the nephew of Mathias A. Valentiard (iii) the cousin of Michael J. Valentine arainks A. Valentine.
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Jasper B. Sanfilippo, Jr., Chief Operating Offidemresident and a director of the Company, is é)kfother of Jeffrey T. Sanfilippo and James
J. Sanfilippo, (i) the nephew of Mathias A. Valieetand (iii) the cousin of Michael J. Valentinedalames A. Valentine.

James J. Sanfilippo, a director of the Compangi) ihe brother of Jeffrey T. Sanfilippo and JasBeBanfilippo, Jr., (ii) the nephew of Mathi
A. Valentine and (iii) the cousin of Michael J. ¥atine and James A. Valentine.

James A. Valentine, Chief Information Officer oét@ompany, is (i) the son of Mathias A. Valentifig the brother of Michael J. Valentine
and (iii) the cousin of Jasper B. Sanfilippo, Jeffrey T. Sanfilippo and James J. Sanfilippo.

Timothy R. Donovan, a director of the Companyj)ig(nephew by marriage of Mathias A. Valentineedior of the Company and (ii) the first
cousin by marriage of Jasper B. Sanfilippo, Jiffrég T. Sanfilippo, Michael J. Valentine and Jamed/alentine, executive officers and
certain of whom are also directors of the Compamy, James J. Sanfilippo, a director of the Company.
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PART Il
Item 5 — Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

We have two classes of stock: Class A Stock andr@@mStock. The holders of Common Stock are enttdeglect 25% of the total members
of the Board of Directors, rounded up to the ndam®le number, and the holders of Class A Stoekeatitled to elect the remaining directors
With respect to matters other than the electiodii@fctors or any matters for which class votingeiguired by law, the holders of Common
Stock are entitled to one vote per share whilentiiders of Class A Stock are entitled to ten vpisshare. Our Class A Stock is not registere
under the Securities Act of 1933 and there is mabdished public trading market for the Class AcBtdHowever, each share of Class A Stock
is convertible at the option of the holder at anyetand from time to time (and, upon the occurresfogertain events specified in our Restated
Certificate of Incorporation, automatically conwrinto one share of Common Stock.

Our Common Stock is quoted on the NASDAQ Globae8eMarket and our trading symbol is “JBSS”. Thikofwing tables set forth, for the
quarters indicated, the high and low reported galiegs for the Common Stock as reported on the DG Global Select Market.

Price Range ¢
Common Stocl

Year Ended June 25, 2( High Low

4thQuarter $55.91 $41.0¢
3rdQuarter $48.6¢ $34.8(
2ndQuarter $47.9¢ $30.5:
1stQuarter $32.9¢ $25.2¢

Price Range ¢
Common Stocl

Year Ended June 26, 2( High Low

4th Quarter $27.5( $22.2¢
3rdQuarter $25.6¢ $21.2(
2ndQuarter $26.0( $21.07
1 stQuarter $26.2¢ $19.5¢
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The graph below compares our cumulative five-yetal stockholder return on our Common Stock with ¢cimulative total returns of the
Russell 2000 Consumer Staples Index and the RuX¥all Index. The graph tracks the performance&ifQ0 investment in our Common
Stock, in each index (with the reinvestment otdalidends) from June 25, 2010 to June 25, 2015.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among John B. Sanfilippo & Son, Inc., the Russé@ Index,
and the Russell 2000 Consumer Staples Index

$450
5400
5350
5300
5250
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5150
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50
B/24110 673011 E/2812 G273 6/26M14 6/25/15

—g— John B. Sanfilippo & Son, Inc. —--h-- Rugsell 2000 — &— Russell 2000 Consumer Staples

* $100 invested on June 25, 2010 in stock or indetuding reinvestment of dividenc
Indexes calculated on month-end basis.

The information contained in the preceding perfongegraph shall not be deemed to be “solicitingeniat” or to be “filed” with the
Commission, nor shall such information be incorpiedaby reference into any future filing under tlee®ities Act or the Exchange Act, except
to the extent that we specifically incorporateyitreference in such filing.

As of August 12, 2015 there were 50 holders antidders of record of our Common Stock and Clas40kl§ respectively.

Under our Restated Certificate of Incorporatiomr, @lass A Stock and the Common Stock are entitlesthére equally on a share for share t
in any dividends declared by the Board of Directmisour common equity. Our current financing agreets allow us to make up to two cash
dividends or distributions of our stock totalingmeare than $25 million each fiscal year withoutadbing consent from our lenders. See Pa
Item 7 — “Management’s Discussion and Analysis iofaRcial Condition and Results of Operations — ldify and Capital Resources —
Financing Arrangements.”

On October 28, 2014 our Board of Directors declaredsh dividend. A $1.50 special cash dividendpeéd to holders of Common Stock and
Class A Stock on December 12, 2014. On OctobeP@B3, our Board of Directors declared a cash divid@ $1.50 special cash dividend v
paid to holders of Common Stock and Class A Stackecember 5, 2013.
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For purposes of the calculation of the aggregat&ketaalue of our voting stock held by non-affigatas set forth on the cover page of this
Report, we did not consider any of the siblingsmwouses of Jasper B. Sanfilippo, Sr. (our formairaan of the board) or Mathias A.
Valentine, or any of the lineal descendants ofegilasper B. Sanfilippo, Sr., Mathias A. Valentimeuch siblings (other than those who are
our executive officers, directors or who have fodnaggroup within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3)haf Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”), with either Jaspes&nfilippo Sr. or Mathias A. Valentine) as anl&ffe. See “Review of Related Party
Transactions” and “Security Ownership of Certaim&cial Owners and Management” contained in owx?1Statement for the 2015 Annual
Meeting and “Relationships Among Certain Directansl Executive Officers” appearing immediately befBart Il of this Report.

Securities Authorized under Equity Compensation Plas
The following table sets forth information as ohdw5, 2015, with respect to equity securities agled for issuance pursuant to equity

compensation plans previously approved by our $tolclers and equity compensation plans not prewoaysproved by our stockholders.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

(b) Weightec (c) Number of
average securities remaining
exercise pric available for future
(a) Number of issuance under equ
securities to be of outstandin
issued upon compensation plans
exercise of option options, (excluding securitie
warrants and reflected in Column
Plan Categot warrants and righ rights @)
Equity compensation plans approved by stockholdestock
options 25,00( $ 9.8( 916,76!
Equity compensation plans approved by stockholders
restricted stock unit 228,66 — 916,76!

Equity compensation plans not approved by stocldrs — — —
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Iltem 6 — Selected Financial Data

The following historical consolidated financial dats of and for the years ended June 25, 2015,28)r&#914, June 27, 2013, June 28, 201:
June 30, 2011 was derived from our consolidateghfifal statements. The financial data should be ireaonjunction with our audited
consolidated financial statements and notes thendtich are included elsewhere herein, and witinIle— “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggtiems”. The information below is not necessatrilglicative of the results of future

operations.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income Datédollars in thousands, except per share data)

Net sales
Cost of sale!

Gross profit

Selling and administrative expen:
Gain on sale of assets held for sale,
Goodwill impairment los:

Income from operation
Interest expens
Rental and miscellaneous expense,

Income before income tax
Income tax expense (bene!

Net income

Basic earnings per common sh
Diluted earnings per common shi
Cash dividends declared per sh

Consolidated Balance Sheet Datgdollars in thousands)

Working capital

Total asset

Long-term debt, less current maturiti
Total debt

Stockholder equity

Year Ended
June 25, June 26, June 27, June 28, June 30,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

$887,24¢  $778,62. $734,33:  $700,57! $674,21:
755,18¢ 655,75 614,37 593,52: 590,02:
132,05t 122,86! 119,96: 107,05 84,19
80,17 77,51( 78,34 74,08: 68,27:

— (1,647 — — —
— — — — 5,66
51,87¢ 46,99¢ 41,61¢ 32,97: 10,25¢
3,96¢ 4,35¢ 4,75¢ 5,36¢ 6,44¢
3,04¢ 2,81( 1,56¢ 1,38¢ 1,02¢
44,86¢ 39,83: 35,29¢ 26,22 2,78¢
15,55¢ 13,54t 13,53¢ 9,09¢ (49)
$ 29,30f $ 26,28 $21,76( $17,12: $ 2,83t
$ 26 $ 2.3¢ $ 20 $ 16C $ 0.27
$ 261 $ 2.3¢ $ 19 $ 158 $ 0.2¢

$ 150 $ 1.5¢C $ 10 % — $ —

June 25, June 26, June 27, June 28, June 30,

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

$150,20! $137,14: $114,99: $ 87,11( $ 65,331
431,93! 394,61 374,74: 371,72 351,78t
32,29( 35,66¢ 33,66¢ 36,20¢ 42,43(
96,81¢ 79,557 74,22: 94,77¢ 101,22
241,27¢ 226,82° 215,30 201,01: 183,70°
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Item 7 — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should bel ieaconjunction with the Consolidated Financiat8ments and the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. Our fiscal year ends onittad Thursday of June each year, and typically e ®f fifty-two weeks (four thirteen week
quarters). Fiscal 2016 will consist of fifty-threeeks. Additional information on the comparabilifythe periods presented is as follows:

» References herein to fiscal 2016 are to the figeal ending June 30, 201

» References herein to fiscal 2015, fiscal 204d fiscal 2013 are to the fiscal years ended J6n@@15, June 26, 2014 and June 27,
2013, respectively
As used herein, unless the context otherwise itecahe terms “Company”, “we”, “us”, “our” or “th@ompany” refer collectively to John B.
Sanfilippo & Son, Inc. and our wholly-owned subarits, JBSS Real Estate, LLC, JBSS Ventures, LLLCSamfilippo (Shanghai) Trading Co.
Ltd. Our Credit Facility and Mortgage Facility, dsfined below, are sometimes collectively refetieds “our financing arrangements.”

We are one of the leading processors and distribatiopeanuts, pecans, cashews, walnuts, almontsthar nuts in the United States. These
nuts are sold under a variety of private brandsiwarter theFisher, Orchard Valley Harvest, Fisher Nut ExaalydSunshine Countrigrand
names. We also market and distribute, and in mas#scmanufacture or process, a diverse produabfiftmd and snack products, including
peanut butter, almond butter, candy and confectiemascks and trail mixes, snack bites, sunflowendds, dried fruit, corn snacks, sesame
sticks and other sesame snack products under @ifivahds and brand names. We distribute our prediuche consumer, commercial
ingredients, contract packaging and export distidimuchannels.

The Company’s long-term objective to drive proflearowth, as identified in our strategic plan (tB¢rategic Plan”), includes the following
goals:

i. GrowingFisherandOrchard Valley Harvesinto leading nut brands by focusing on consumensasheling quality nuts in the
shacking, recipe and produce categol

i. Expanding globally and building our Company intleading international branded and private brandlsnmat company, an

iii.  Providing integrated nut solutions to grow -branded business at existing key customers in éattibution channe

We continue to execute portions of this strategyrimy fiscal 2015, we experienced distribution gdior ourOrchard Valley Harvedgbrand.

The improved distribution drove an increase insat@ume, especially during the third and fourtladgers. In addition, we introduced an
innovative snack bite produdfisher Nut Exactly to a number of retailers in the third and fougttarters of fiscal 2015. Saleskiherbrand
products increased approximately 14% over last. yadiscal 2014, we were recognized as a top seppl one of our largest commercial
ingredient food service customers, and we also ‘gaality supplier of the year” from one of our l&g contract packaging customers. In
addition, we continue to develop deisherbrand business in China by improving our distrilbutetwork and leveraging Sanfilippo (Shanghai)
Trading Co. Ltd. to support our long-term busingtsategy.

We face a number of challenges in the future. Sigettiallenges, among others, include: high treecommodity costs (due to the continued
high export demand for pecans and walnuts, prignariChina) and intensified competition for markéare from both private brand and name
brand nut products. We are experiencing increakedral costs and expect this trend to continuefistal 2016. Resulting price increases r
negatively affect fiscal 2016 sales volume. Althbwge have been focusing on expanding our salegsmpeesn China, this area continues to be
an immaterial part of our total revenues. We wilhtinue to focus on seeking profitable businesodppities to further utilize our additional
production capacity at our Elgin Site. We expeantaintain our recent level of promotional and atlsarg activity for ourOrchard Valley
Harvest
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andFisher (including Fisher Nut Exactly brands. We continue to see domestic sales ansngrowth in ouOrchard Valley Harvesbrand
and expect to continue to focus on this portioowfbranded business. We will continue to faceotigoing challenges specific to our busines:
such as food safety and regulatory issues and #iit@mance and growth of our customer base. Seafthrenation referenced in Part |,

Item 1A — “Risk Factors” of this report for additial information about our risks, challenges andeutainties.

Annual Highlights

e Our net sales for fiscal 2015 increased by $.6dllion, or 14.0%, to $887.2 million from netlea of $778.6 million for fiscal
2014,

» Gross profit increased by $9.2 million; however gross profit margin, as a percentage of net sdkxseased to 14.9% from 15.i
in fiscal 2014

» Total operating expenses for fiscal 2015 inseeisby $4.3 million; however our operating expenass percentage of net sales,
decreased to 9.0% from 9.7% of net sales in fi20&H.

» Diluted earnings per share increased approximdte¥ compared to last fiscal ye

» Our strong financial position allowed us to payadal cash dividend of $16.8 million in Decemb@i 2.

» The total value of inventories on hand at the ef fiscal 2015 increased by $15.2 million, 39, in comparison to the total value
of inventories on hand at the end of fiscal 2(

Acquisition costs for tree nuts have increaseth@2014 crop year (which falls into our 2015 fispadr), and acquisition costs continue to
remain at levels that are significantly higher théstorical averages. While we completed our prement of the current year crop of inshell
walnuts during the second quarter of fiscal 20t8,tbtal payments to our walnut growers were ntgrd@ned until the third quarter of fiscal
2015, which is typical. The final prices paid te tlvalnut growers were based upon current marke¢pnd other factors, such as crop qualit
At June 25, 2015 there are no amounts due to wghouters.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth the percentage ietehip of certain items to net sales for the pgimdicated and the percentage increase or
decrease of such items from fiscal 2015 to fis€dand from fiscal 2014 to fiscal 2013.

Percentage Increasi

Percentage of Net Sale (Decrease)
Fiscal 201! Fiscal 201

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2015 2014 2013 vs. 2014 vs. 2017
Net sales 100.(% 100.% 100.(% 14.(% 6.C%
Gross profit 14.¢ 15.¢ 16.2 7.5 2.4
Selling expense 5.€ 6.2 6.4 2.8 2.4
Administrative expense 3.4 3.€ 4.2 4.4 6.9

Fiscal 2015 Compared to Fiscal 2014
Net Sales

Our net sales increased 14.0% to $887.2 milliorfimal 2015 from $778.6 million for fiscal 2014al8s volume (measured as pounds sold to
customers) increased by 5.4% for fiscal 2015 ingargon to sales volume for fiscal 2014. The insecia net sales was attributable to both ar
8.1% increase in the weighted average sales pecpqund, driven by selling price increases du@igher commodity acquisition costs for
most major tree nut types, as well as the aforeimesd sales volume increase. Approximately 78%neftotal sales volume increase occurred
in the consumer distribution channel.
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The following summarizes sales by product type psraentage of total gross sales. The informasdrased upon gross sales, rather than net
sales, because certain adjustments from grossteates sales, such as promotional discounts, @rallocable to product type.

Product Type Fiscal 201! Fiscal 201:
Peanuts 13.7% 15.1%
Pecan:s 12.7 13.€
Cashews & Mixed Nut 22.C 18.7
Walnuts 11.C 11.7
Almonds 23.4 22.2
Trail & Snack Mixes 12.C 11.4
Other 5.2 7.2
Total 100.(% 100.(%

The following table shows a comparison of net shledistribution channel (dollars in thousands):

Percent

Distribution Channel Fiscal 201! Fiscal 201« Change Change
Consumefd) $529,07¢ $453,33¢ $ 75,737 16.7%

Commercial Ingredient 207,37( 193,18 14,19( 7.3

Contract Packagin 114,79¢ 98,12¢ 16,67¢ 17.C

Export@ 36,00( 33,97¢ 2,022 6.C
Total $887,24! $778,62: $108,62: 14.(%

(1) Sales of branded products, primarilyFitherbrand, were approximately 32% and 31% of total norer channel sales during fiscal
2015 and 2014, respective

(@ Export sales consist primarily of bulk produatsl @onsumer branded and private brand productssu®oer branded and private brand
products accounted for approximately 65% and 60%taf sales in the export channel during fiscdl®2@and fiscal 2014, respective

Net sales in the consumer distribution channeldiased by 16.7% in dollars and 7.9% in sales volanfiscal 2015 compared to fiscal 20:
IRi market data from June 2015 indicates ffigherrecipe nuts continue to be the market share léadbe overall recipe nut category,
excluding wholesale club sales. Tddherbrand sales volume increased by 9.7% in fiscal 2@hBpared to fiscal 2014 due primarily to
higher sales to existing customedfssherbrand snack nut sales volume increased 14.0% dyelyao the distribution of inshell peanuts we
regained at a majdfishersnack customeFisherrecipe nut sales volume increased 4.7% from fig0aH, primarily as a result of increased
sales to a significant customer. Private brand wares sales volume increased by 6.6% in fiscal 2@itBpared to fiscal 2014 due to an incre
in sales of snack nut and trail mix products at sigmificant customers.

Net sales in the commercial ingredients distributtbannel increased by 7.3% in dollars for fis€l%, though sales volume was relativ
unchanged compared to fiscal 2014. An increasémored and peanut sales volume to existing customassnearly offset by lower bulk pec
sales volume as a result of a smaller pecan crdpoaver sales volume of macadamia nuts and wablugsto lost business with customers
using these nuts in their products.

Net sales in the contract packaging distributicarstel increased by 17.0% in dollars and 8.0% iessablume in fiscal 2015 compared to fit
2014. The increase in sales volume primarily resuitom increased sales of peanut, cashew and mixegroducts to existing customers in
this channel.

Net sales in the export distribution channel inseeb6.0% in dollars for fiscal 2015, though salelsime decreased 4.6% compared to fi
2014. The sales volume decrease was primarily @aestgnificantly lower supply of bulk inshell wailis for the export market. The decreas
volume was offset by an 11.0% increase in the weihverage sales price per pound.
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Gross Profit

Gross profit increased 7.5% to $132.1 million stél 2015 from $122.9 million in fiscal 2014. Ouiogs profit margin decreased to 14.9% of
net sales for fiscal 2015 from 15.8% for fiscal 20The increase in gross profit resulted primdridymn increased sales volume. The decline in
gross profit margin was primarily due to higher @sdion costs for pecans and almonds, combineld aitincrease in manufacturing cost
mainly related to employee related costs and regralrmaintenance expenses.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses for fiscal 2015 incredse$4.3 million to $80.2 million due partially the prior year's $1.6 million pretax gain on
the sale of an Elgin, lllinois site that was fortgeawned by the company which did not recur thisél year. Operating expenses for fiscal :
decreased to 9.0% of net sales from 9.7% of nesdal fiscal 2014 primarily due to a higher ndésdase.

Selling expenses for fiscal 2015 were $49.6 milliam increase of $1.4 million, or 2.9%, over theoant recorded for fiscal 2014 due primal
to a $0.7 million increase in marketing and adegarg expense and a $0.6 million increase in congi@rsrelated expenses.

Administrative expenses for fiscal 2015 were $30illion, an increase of $1.3 million, or 4.4%, frdlre amount recorded for fiscal 2014 due
primarily to a $2.0 million increase in compensatielated expenses, partially offset by, amongrattiegs, a decrease in professional
expenses of $0.5 million.

Income from Operations

Due to the factors discussed above, our income Gonoperations was $51.9 million, or 5.8% of rades, for fiscal 2015, compared to $47.0
million, or 6.0% of net sales, for fiscal 2014.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $4.0 million for fiscal 20b&pared to $4.4 million for fiscal 2014. The desea interest expense was due primarily t
lower interest rates for the short-term borrowiagilfty.

Rental and Miscellaneous Expense, Net

Net rental and miscellaneous expense was $3.0omildr fiscal 2015 compared to $2.8 million forckig 2014. The increase was primarily «
to increased maintenance expense on the extertbedffice building located on our Elgin, lllinoéempus which was completed during the
first half of fiscal 2015.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense was $15.6 million, or 34.7%nobme before income taxes, for fiscal 2015 comptreékl 3.5 million, or 34.0% of income
before income taxes for fiscal 2014. The increadbe effective tax rate of fiscal 2015 is primaxiue to the fiscal 2014 tax benefit of losses
realized when the Company divested its equity ithmeat in ARMA Energy, Inc. (“AEI") and cancelledsacured promissory note due from
AEI in fiscal 2014 which did not recur this fisgaar.

Net ncome

Net income was $29.3 million, or $2.63 basic and$2liluted per common share, for fiscal 2015, carag to $26.3 million, or $2.38 ba:
and $2.36 diluted per common share, for fiscal 2014 to the factors discussed above.
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Fiscal 2014 Compared to Fiscal 2013
Net Sales

Our net sales increased 6.0% to $778.6 milliorfismal 2014 from $734.3 million for fiscal 2013.18svolume (measured as pounds sold to
customers) increased by 8.4% for fiscal 2014 ingargson to sales volume for fiscal 2013. The insecia net sales was primarily attributable
to the aforementioned sales volume increase, spaityf increased distribution in the consumer, aoencial ingredients and contract packag
channels. Approximately 55% of the total sales m@uncrease occurred in the consumer distributicanoel.

The following summarizes sales by product type psraentage of total gross sales. The informasdrased upon gross sales, rather than net
sales, because certain adjustments from grossteahes sales, such as promotional discounts, @rallocable to product type.

Product Type Fiscal 201+ Fiscal 201:
Peanuts 15.1% 18.2%
Pecan:s 13.€ 15.€
Cashews & Mixed Nut 18.7 19.4
Walnuts 11.7 12.C
Almonds 22.2 16.5
Other 18.€ 18.C
Total 100.(% 100.(%

For both fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013, the largesagonent of the “Other” product type was trail améck mixes which include nut products.

The following table shows a comparison of net shiedistribution channel (dollars in thousands):

Percent

Distribution Channel Fiscal 201« Fiscal 201. Change Change
Consumetd) $453,33¢ $436,22¢ $17,11: 3.9%

Commercial Ingredient 193,18 177,77 15,40¢ 8.7

Contract Packagin 98,12¢ 85,94( 12,18t 14.2

Export@ 33,97¢ 34,39: (419 (1.2
Total $778,62. $734,33: $44,28t¢ 6.C%

(1) Sales of branded products, primarilyFisherbrand, were approximately 31% and 30% of total norer channel sales during fiscal
2014 and 2013, respective

(@ Export sales consist primarily of bulk produatsl @onsumer branded and private brand productssi@oer branded and private brand
products accounted for approximately 60% and 58%taf sales in the export channel during fiscdl2@nd fiscal 2013, respective

Net sales in the consumer distribution channekiased by 3.9% in dollars and 8.6% in sales volumiis¢al 2014 compared to fiscal 20:

The increase in sales volume of fiscal 2014 waghtli offset by a decrease in average selling ptRemarket data from June 2014 indicates
thatFisherrecipe nuts are the market share leader in theatbvecipe nut category, excluding wholesale clates. TotaFisherbrand sales
volume increased by 6.7% in fiscal 2014 compardistal 2013 due primarily to higher sales to argtcustomers and approximately $1.4
million in sales to new recipe nut customéfisherrecipe nut sales volume increased 22.5% from fi28aB, primarily as a result of increased
sales to a significant customer. Partially offsettiheFisherrecipe nut sales volume increabesherbrand snack nut sales volume declined
15.2% primarily as a result of reduced distributidnnshell peanuts at a majbishersnack nut customer due to competitive pricing press
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Distribution was regained with this specific custrmat the beginning of the fourth quarter of 2044 a result of our category management an
innovation efforts, sales volume of private brandck nuts and trail mixes increased by 9.1% irafi2014 compared to fiscal 2013. The ab
noted increase in sales volume in the consumenliition channel was offset in part by a volumelithecfor cashews, primarily due to lost
distribution with a major private brand customethe first half of the fiscal year 2014 that wagaimed in the latter part of the fourth quarte
fiscal 2014.

Net sales in the commercial ingredients distributtbannel increased by 8.7% in dollars and 5.8%ales volume in fiscal 2014 compal
fiscal 2013. The sales volume increase was prigndtik to increased sales of almonds to a majotiegisustomer.

Net sales in the contract packaging distributioantiel increased by 14.2% in dollars and 19.2%lessalume in fiscal 2014 compared

fiscal 2013. The increase in sales volume was dingapily to increased sales of almonds, trail miaesl chocolate and yogurt coated products
due to new product launches executed by key cussoimehis channel. The increase in sales volunfsoal 2014 was partially offset by a
decrease in average selling price.

Net sales in the export distribution channel deseddl.2% in dollars and 12.2% in sales volumesicali 2014 compared to fiscal 2013. 1
decrease in sales volume was due primarily to dseatamounts of bulk inshell walnuts availablesfqort. The decrease in volume was
partially offset by a higher average selling price.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased 2.4% to $122.9 million stél 2014 from $120.0 million in fiscal 2013. Ouwoss profit margin decreased to 15.8% of
net sales for fiscal 2014 from 16.3% for fiscal 20The increase in gross profit came primarily frimereased sales volume. The decline in
gross profit margin mainly occurred as a resultahpetitive pricing pressures that existed in trst fwo quarters of fiscal 2014, and the delay
in implementing selling price increases for almgmdised nuts and walnuts until the third quartefiedal 2014. The decline in gross profit
margin was partially offset by our ongoing contineémprovement efforts which led to meaningful nfacturing efficiency gains in the fiscal
year 2014. The savings from these efforts allowetbfund increases in direct labor wage ratekéndtter part of the 2014 fiscal ye

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for fiscal 2014 decreased 6 8fhet sales from 10.7% of net sales for fis€dlI2 This decrease is due in part to the
million pre-tax gain on the sale of the Old ElgiteSas defined below) that occurred in the seapmatter of fiscal 2014, combined with a
higher level of net sales.

Selling expenses for fiscal 2014 were $48.3 milliam increase of $1.1 million, or 2.4%, over theoant recorded for fiscal 2013 due primal
to a $1.6 million increase in shipping expense tuacreased sales volume. This increase in sedliipgense was partially offset by a $0.6
million decrease in marketing and advertising exgen

Administrative expenses for fiscal 2014 were $21illion, a decrease of $2.0 million, or 6.3%, fréine amount recorded for fiscal 2013 due
primarily to a decrease in professional expensé&ild million, and a $1.0 million reduction in coemsation-related expenses.

Income from Operations

Due to the factors discussed above, our income Gonoperations was $47.0 million, or 6.0% of redes, for fiscal 2014, compared to $41.6
million, or 5.7% of net sales, for fiscal 2013.
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I nterest Expense

Interest expense was $4.4 million for fiscal 20b#hpared to $4.8 million for fiscal 2013. The desea interest expense was due primarily t
lower average borrowings.

Rental and Miscellaneous Expense, Net

Net rental and miscellaneous expense was $2.8mildr fiscal 2014 compared to $1.6 million forctid 2013. This change was primarily ¢
to increased maintenance expense on the exterauradffice building in Elgin, lllinois. This maiahance project was approximately 40%
completed in fiscal 2014.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense was $13.5 million, or 34.0%mobme before income taxes, for fiscal 2014 comptrékd 3.5 million, or 38.3% of income
before income taxes for fiscal 2013. The decreaskd effective tax rate of fiscal 2014 is mainlyedo the tax benefit of losses realized
through the Company’s divestiture of its equityastment in ARMA Energy, Inc. (“AEI"), an unconsdditéd variable interest entity, and
cancellation of a secured promissory note due #ah in the third quarter of fiscal 2014.

Net Income

Net income was $26.3 million, or $2.38 basic an@62liluted per common share, for fiscal 2014, carag to $21.8 million, or $2.00 ba:
and $1.98 diluted per common share, for fiscal 20L& to the factors discussed above.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
General

The primary uses of cash are to fund our curreatatons, fulfill contractual obligations, make @apimprovements, pursue our Strategic F
and repay indebtedness. Also, various uncertaintakl result in additional uses of cash. The prinsaurces of cash are results of operations
and availability under our Credit Agreement, dafetbruary 7, 2008 that provides a revolving loan matment and letter of credit subfacility
(as amended, the “Credit Facility”). We anticiptitat expected net cash flow generated from opermtmd amounts available pursuant to the
Credit Facility will be sufficient to fund our opafons for the next twelve months. Increases inamailable credit under our Credit Facility ¢

to our improved financial performance in the pastéallowed us to consummate business acquisitimvate more funds to promote our
products, (especially otisherandOrchard Valley Harvedbrands), develop new products, pay special castetids in December

2012, December 2013 and December 2014, and expioee growth strategies outlined in our StratedamPwhich includes expansion into
existing markets and international markets suc@ildsa.

Cash flows from operating activities have histdhicbheen driven by net income but are also sigaifity influenced by inventory requirements,
which can change based upon fluctuations in bo#intiies and market prices of the various nutsrartdoroducts we buy and sell. Current
market trends in nut prices and crop estimatesialpact nut procurement.

The following table sets forth certain cash flofoimation for the last three fiscal years:

2015 to 201
June 25, 201 June 26, 201 $ Change June 27, 201
Operating activities $ 13,93 $  11,95( $ 1,98: $ 35,75!
Investing activities (14,28) (2,056 (12,225 (6,379
Financing activitie: 41C (8,849 9,25¢ (30,999
Total cash flown $ 62 $  1,05( $ (989 $ (1,629
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Operating Activities. Cash provided by operating activities was $13.%anilin fiscal 2015, an increase of $2.0 milliomgoared to fiscal 201
This increase is due primarily to increased nedine. The impact on operating cash flows from thechanges in fiscal 2015 working capital
was comparable to the prior year.

Net accounts receivable were $75.6 million at ZBe2015, an increase of $19.8 million, or 35.58bnT the balance at June 26, 2014."
increase in net accounts receivable is due prignarihigher dollar sales in the month of June 20EH in the month of June 2014 and a slic
higher amount of days-sales outstanding.

Total inventories were $198.0 million at June 2512, an increase of $15.2 million, or 8.3%, frora thventory balance at June 26, 2014. This
increase is due primarily to increased costs armahiifies of finished goods and work-in-process mwoees. The increase in quantities of
finished goods and work-in-process inventories avassult of building pecan inventories in prepamafior production line upgrades that were
implemented near the end of fiscal 2015. The irs@éa the costs of these inventory items were pilynattributable to increased acquisition
costs for pecans, almonds and cashews.

The weighted average cost per pound of raw nuidaied fruit input stocks on hand at June 25, 2@itsaased by 36.5% compared to June 26
2014 due to higher acquisition costs for pecamspatls and cashews combined with a large declineantity of lower cost peanut input
stocks. Pounds of raw nut input stocks on handeaghd of June 25, 2015 decreased by 14.7 milbemgs, or 25.5%, when compared to the
guantity of raw nut input stocks on hand at June2P@4, due primarily to the above noted decreageanuts on hand. The weighted average
cost per pound of finished goods on hand at Jun2@ increased by 5.8% over the weighted averageper pound of finished goods on
hand at June 26, 2014 primarily due to the abovedimcreased acquisition costs.

Cash provided by operating activities was $11.9ionilin fiscal 2014, a decrease of $23.8 milliommgared to fiscal 2013. This decline was
due primarily to the negative cash flow impact lb&ges in certain working capital items, primagitcounts receivable and inventory. The
accounts receivable decrease was a result of avanable change of $6.6 million from fiscal 2018edrimarily to higher sales in the month
of June 2014 compared to June 2013. Our nut contynpdichases were $56.7 million higher during fig@14 than fiscal 2013 due mainly to
higher nut acquisition costs among several nut codities, primarily walnuts, almonds and pecans.

Total inventories were $182.8 million at June 2814, an increase of $24.1 million, or 15.2%, frdva inventory balance at June 27, 2013.
This increase was due primarily to a $17.8 milliecrease in raw nut input stocks which was prinyaattributable to increased quantities of
peanuts, walnuts and almonds coupled with sigmiflgehigher acquisition costs for walnuts, almosadsl pecans. Pounds of finished goods or
hand increased by 8.6%, or $4.1 million, at June2P84 compared to June 27, 2013 to support incrgasles volume.

The weighted average cost per pound of raw nuttisfmeks on hand at June 26, 2014 was relativethamged compared to June 27, 2013 as
the increase in the cost of tree nut input stockeand was fully offset by a considerable shiftjirantity on hand to lower cost peanuts. Pounc
of raw nut input stocks on hand at the end of 2612014 increased by 9.9 million pounds, or 21.@¥en compared to the quantity of raw
input stocks on hand at June 27, 2013. The weightedage cost per pound of finished goods on haddree 26, 2014 increased by 4.5% over
the weighted average cost per pound of finishedlgom hand at June 27, 2013.

Investing Activities. Cash used in investing activities was $14.3 milliofiscal 2015. Capital expenditures accountedaf®i4.4 million use of
cash in fiscal 2015. Partially offsetting this we&ash was $0.1 million of proceeds from dispositf assets.

Cash used in investing activities was $2.1 milliofiscal 2014. Capital expenditures accountedaf$0.9 million use of cash in fiscal 2014.
Partially offsetting these capital expendituresev®7.9 million of proceeds from the dispositioras§ets, primarily the sale of the Old Elgin
Site.
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Cash used in investing activities was $6.4 milliofiscal 2013, which was mostly attributable taZillion of capital expenditures. Partially
offsetting this use of cash was $1.0 million ofg@eds from the disposition of assets, primarilyshle of real property where we operated a
retail store.

We expect total capital expenditures for equipnpemthases and upgrades, facility maintenance ardidafety enhancements for fiscal 2016
to be approximately $15 million. Absent any matesizquisitions or other significant investments, lvedieve that cash on hand, combined witt
cash provided by operations and borrowings avalabder the Credit Facility, will be sufficienttweet the cash requirements for capital
expenditures.

Financing Activities. Cash provided by financing activities was $0.4 imnillduring fiscal 2015. We paid a $16.8 million sigdividend in
December 2014. We repaid $3.3 million of long-tetebt during fiscal 2015, $3.0 million of which wadated to the Mortgage Facility (as
defined below). Offsetting these uses of cash waet increase in borrowings outstanding under aedi€ Facility of $20.6 million during
fiscal 2015 which occurred in part as a resulhefincrease in inventory.

Cash used in financing activities was $8.8 millsnring fiscal 2014. We paid a $16.6 million speci@idend in December 2013. We repaid
$3.3 million of long-term debt during fiscal 202%8.0 million of which was related to the Mortgagechity. Partially offsetting these uses of
cash was a net increase in borrowings outstandidgruour Credit Facility of $8.7 million during €al 2014 which occurred in part as a result
of the above noted increase in inventory.

Cash used in financing activities was $31.0 millkning fiscal 2013. We paid a $10.9 million spédiaidend in December, 2012. We repaid
$6.6 million of long-term debt during fiscal 2082.8 million of which was related to the Mortgagechity and $3.3 million was related to the
repayment of the former industrial development tsoaskociated with our Bainbridge facility. The detrease in borrowings outstanding ut
our Credit Facility was $14.0 million during fisc2013 which occurred mainly due to improved opemmtiesults.

Real Estate Matters

In August 2008, we completed the consolidationwf@hicago-based facilities into the Elgin Site. st of the facility consolidation project,
on April 15, 2005, we closed on the $48.0 milliamghase of the Elgin Site. The Elgin Site inclubdeth an office building and a warehouse,
and afforded us increased production and processipgcity, such that we continue to offer our sEwito existing and new customers on an
expanded basis.

We are currently attempting to find additional tetsafor available space in the office buildinglet Elgin Site. Until additional tenant(s) are
found, we will not receive the benefit of rentat@me associated with such space. Approximately @flfte office building is currently vacal
There can be no assurance that we will be ableatgel the unoccupied space and further capital ditpegs may be necessary to lease the

remaining space.

On March 28, 2006, our wholly-owned subsidiary JB88perties, LLC acquired title by quitclaim deedhe site that was originally
purchased in Elgin, lllinois (the “Old Elgin Sitefdr our facility consolidation project and alsa@nmed into an Assignment and Assumption
Agreement (the “Agreement”) with the City of Eldtle “City”). In the third quarter of fiscal 2013BSS Properties, LLC transferred all of its
properties and agreements to JBSS Real Estate, Uh@er the terms of the Agreement, the City asslgoaus the City’s remaining rights and
obligations under a development agreement entatedy and among the Company, certain related pantynerships, and the City (the
“Development Agreement”). The Old Elgin Site waldsa the second quarter of fiscal 2014 and resdliliea $1.6 million pre-tax gain.

Financing Arrangements

On February 7, 2008, we entered into the Credilifawith a bank group (the “Bank Lenders”) proind a $117.5 million revolving loan
commitment and letter of credit subfacility. Also Bebruary 7, 2008, we entered
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into a Loan Agreement with an insurance compang ‘(fiortgage Lender”) providing us with two term @ one in the amount of $36.0
million (“Tranche A”) and the other in the amouritd®.0 million (“Tranche B”), for an aggregate amowof $45.0 million (the “Mortgage
Facility”).

Credit Facility

The Credit Facility, as amended, is secured bytanhially all of our assets other than machinerg aquipment, real property, and fixtures.
Mortgage Facility is secured by mortgages on egdbnall of our owned real property located in Elglllinois, Gustine, California and
Garysburg, North Carolina (the “Encumbered Propst}i

On December 16, 2013, we entered into a ConsenfifthdAmendment to the Credit Facility which pettad the Company to form and invest
in a wholly-owned Chinese subsidiary, Sanfilippbg8ghai) Trading Co. Ltd., and made technical nications to definitions.

On September 30, 2014, we entered into the Sixtle#dment to the Credit Facility (the “Sixth Amendrigmwhich extended the maturity date
of the Credit Facility from July 15, 2016 to July, 22019 and reduced the interest rates chargemtdarary course and letter of credit
borrowings. The revolving loan commitment amourtt widt change. In addition, the Sixth Amendmentvedlohe Company to, without
obtaining Bank Lender consent, (i) make up to tashcdividends or distributions on our stock easbtdi year, or (ii) purchase, acquire, red
or retire stock in any fiscal year, in any caseariramount not to exceed $25.0 million, individyalt in the aggregate, as long as the excess
availability under the Credit Facility remains o30.0 million after giving effect to any such dlend, distribution, purchase or redemption.
The Sixth Amendment also increased the amountmhipied acquisitions from $50.0 million to $100.0lrmn and removed the annual limit
capital expenditures.

As of June 25, 2015, the weighted average intea¢stfor the Credit Facility was 2.00%. The terrhthe Credit Facility contain covenants ti
among other things, require us to restrict investisi@ndebtedness, acquisitions, certain salesswts, cash dividends, transactions with
affiliates, redemptions of capital stock and prepagt of indebtedness (if such prepayment, amongy dtiings, is of a subordinate debt). If
loan availability under the borrowing base caldolafalls below $25.0 million, we will be requiréd maintain a specified fixed charge
coverage ratio, tested on a monthly basis until lpeailability equals or exceeds $25.0 million fioree consecutive months. All cash received
from customers is required to be applied agairesQiedit Facility. The Bank Lenders have the optmaccelerate and demand immediate
repayment of our obligations under the Credit Fgdih the event of default on the payments reqliwader the Credit Facility, a change in
control in the ownership of the Company, non-coanpie with the financial covenant or upon the o@nre of certain other defaults by us
under the Credit Facility (including a default untlee Mortgage Facility). As of June 25, 2015, werevin compliance with all covenants un
the Credit Facility and we currently expect to bedmpliance with the financial covenant in thedr€acility for the foreseeable future. As of
June 25, 2015, we had $51.7 million of availabkdldrunder the Credit Facility. We would still edompliance with all restrictive covenants
under the Credit Facility if this entire amount wédrorrowed.

Mortgage Facility

We are subject to interest rate resets for eadhiafche A and Tranche B. Specifically, on MarcR@18 (the “Tranche A Reset Date”) and
March 1, 2016 and every two years thereafter (emthranche B Reset Date”), the Mortgage Lender neagt the interest rates for each of
Tranche A and Tranche B, respectively, in its sold absolute discretion. If the reset interestfi@teither Tranche A or Tranche B is
unacceptable to us and we (i) do not have suffidiemds to repay amounts due with respect to Trachr Tranche B on the Tranche A Rese
Date or Tranche B Reset Date, in each case, agalplgl, or (ii) are unable to refinance amountswiik respect to Tranche A or Tranche B
the Tranche A Reset Date or Tranche B Reset Datgdh case, as applicable, on terms more favotfadatethe reset interest rates, then,
depending on the extent of the changes in the natsgest rates, our interest expense could inereserially.
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The Mortgage Facility matures on March 1, 2023n€he A under the Mortgage Facility accrues inteaést fixed interest rate of 7.63% per
annum, payable monthly. As mentioned above, suehdst rate may be reset by the Mortgage Lend¢heiranche A Reset Date. Monthly
principal payments in the amount of $0.2 milliommooenced on June 1, 2008. Tranche B under the Mggtgacility accrues interest, as reset
on March 1, 2014, at a floating rate of the greafdr) one month LIBOR plus 3.75% per annum 0or 4i50%, payable monthly (the “Floating
Rate”). The margin on such Floating Rate may betreg the Mortgage Lender on each Tranche B Resf; [provided, however, that the
Mortgage Lender may also change the underlyingximateeach Tranche B Reset Date occurring on or Eféech 1, 2016. Monthly principal
payments in the amount of $0.1 million commencedume 1, 2008. We do not currently anticipate #mgtchange in the Floating Rate or the
underlying index will have a material adverse dfiggon our business, financial condition or resafteperations for fiscal 2016.

The terms of the Mortgage Facility contain covendhat require us to maintain a specified net wofth110.0 million and maintain the
Encumbered Properties. The Mortgage Lender islettit require immediate repayment of our obligaionder the Mortgage Facility in the
event we default in the payments required undeMbrgage Facility, non-compliance with the covetsasr upon the occurrence of certain
other defaults by us under the Mortgage Facility.of June 25, 2015, we were in compliance witlt@lenants under the Mortgage Facility.
We currently believe that we will be in compliangigh the financial covenants in the Mortgage Fagilor the foreseeable future and therefore
$16.6 million of Tranche A has been classifiedamierm debt as of June 25, 2015 which representsiatdr principal payments that are «
beyond twelve months. As of the second quarteisoaf 2014, amounts outstanding under Tranche Bi@tenger classified entirely as short-
term debt since the Mortgage Lender waived itsaopttb use the proceeds from the sale of the OlthEde, which in part served as collateral
for the Mortgage Facility, to reduce the amounstariding under Tranche B. Therefore, $4.2 millibi@anche B has been classified as long-
term debt as of June 25, 2015 which representsladabprincipal payments that are due beyond twelgaths.

Selma Property

In September 2006, we sold our Selma, Texas piiepdthe “Selma Properties”) to two related parytiperships for $14.3 million and are
leasing them back. The selling price was determiedn independent appraiser to be the fair markiele which also approximated our
carrying value. The lease for the Selma Propehizssa ten-year term at a fair market value rerit thitee five-year renewal options. Also, we
currently have an option to purchase the Selmad®?tieg from the partnerships at 95% (100% in certacumstances) of the then fair market
value, but not less than the original $14.3 millmrrchase price. The provisions of the arrangemenhot eligible for sale-leaseback
accounting and the $14.3 million was recorded dsl# obligation. No gain or loss was recorded @nShima Properties transaction. As of
June 25, 2015, $11.9 million of the debt obligatieas outstanding.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of June 25, 2015, we were not involved in arfybafance sheet arrangements, as defined in 1te3tay@)(ii) of Regulation S-K
promulgated by the SEC.
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Contractual Cash Obligations

At June 25, 2015, we had the following contracti#dh obligations for long-term debt (including shlled interest payments), operating
leases, the Credit Facility, purchase obligatioeiiement plans and other long-term liabilitiesi(ants in this subsection in thousands):

More
Less Than 1-3 3-5 Than 5
Total 1 Year Years Years Years
Long-term debt obligation@) $ 54,04( $ 6,02/ $11,41¢ $10,57¢ $26,01¢
Minimum operating lease commitmel 4,217 1,51¢ 2,11t 57C 16
Revolving credit facility borrowing 61,15: 61,15: — — —
Purchase obligatior® 176,82: 176,82: — — —
Retirement plan® 18,53¢ 652 1,29¢ 1,26/ 15,32:
Total contractual cash obligatio $314,76! $246,16° $14,83: $12,41: $41,35¢

(O Interest obligations on floating rate debt instants are calculated using interest rates in effedtine 25, 2015. See Note 5 of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements for furtheéaitlen the Compar’s lon¢-term debt obligations

(@ The purchase obligations represent $176,821 ohitovg purchase:

(®  Represents projected retirement obligations. Seée Mband Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidatedrféiiz Statements for further deta

Our other long term liabilities in the consolidatelance sheet at June 25, 2015 include unrecattazebenefits, and the related interest and
penalties totaling $333. At this time, we are upablmake a reasonably reliable estimate of thegjraf cash payments, or if any cash
payments will be required at all. Therefore, th@smwunts are not included in the above contractolidations table.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our financial statements are prepared in accordaitbeaccounting principles generally acceptechia United States of America. The
accounting policies as disclosed in the Notes tosBlidated Financial Statements are applied irpthparation of our financial statements and
accounting for the underlying transactions andrzda. The policies discussed below are considgredibmanagement to be critical for an
understanding of our financial statements becausepplication of these policies places the magtiicant demands on management’s
judgment, with financial reporting results relyiog estimation regarding the effect of matters #vatinherently uncertain. Specific risks
applicable, for these critical accounting policies described in the following paragraphs. Fortaildel discussion on the application of these
and other accounting policies, see Note 1 of theedlto Consolidated Financial Statements.

Preparation of this Annual Report on Form 10-K ieggius to make estimates and assumptions that #fie reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets aalilities at the date of our financial statemeats] the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual resulay differ from those estimates. See “ForwardKing Statements” below.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence afrangement exists, title has transferred (baped terms of shipment), price is fixed,
delivery occurs and collection is reasonably agskufée sell our products under some arrangemenishvificlude customer contracts that fix
the sales price for periods, which typically carupeo one year for some commercial ingredientarusts, and through specific programs
consisting of promotion allowances, volume and @ugtr rebates and marketing allowances, among otieetensumer and
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some commercial ingredient users. Reserves foe thexgrams are established based upon the terspeoific arrangements. Revenues are
recorded net of rebates and promotion and marketiogzances. Revenues are also recorded net ot®geustomer deductions which are
provided for based upon past experiences. Whiltomers do have the right to return products, pgs¢eence has demonstrated that product
returns have generally been insignificant. Provisifor returns are reflected as a reduction irsakds and are estimated based upon custome
specific circumstances. Evaluating these estimaigsires our management’s judgment, and changasriassumptions could impact the
amount recorded for our sales, cost of sales anthc@me.

Inventories

Inventories, which consist principally of inshelllk-stored nuts, shelled nuts, dried fruit and pssed and packaged nut products, are stated
the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or markehieh approximates actual cost. Inventory costgevewed at least quarterly. Fluctuations in the
market price of pecans, peanuts, walnuts, almondother nuts may affect the value of inventory graks profit and gross profit margin.
When expected market sales prices move below agstsecord adjustments to write down the carryialyes of inventories to the lower of
cost (first-in, first-out) or market which approxates actual cost. No such adjustments have beairgddn any of the periods presented. The
results of our shelling process can also resuthanges to our inventory costs based upon actuslis@xpected crop yields. We maintain
significant inventories of bulk-stored inshell pesapeanuts and walnuts. Quantities of inshelldstdked nuts are determined based upon our
inventory systems and are subject to verificaterhhiques including observation, weighing and othethods. The quantities of each crop
bulk-stored nut inventories are generally shelletiaver a ten to fifteen month period, at whichdimvisions to any estimates, which
historically averaged less than 1.0% of inventamychases, are also recorded.

We enter into walnut purchase agreements with gretypically in our first fiscal quarter, under whithey deliver their walnut crop to us
during the fall harvest season (which typically urscin our first and second fiscal quarters), amépant to our walnut purchase agreements,
we determine the final price for this inventoryeafteceipt and typically by the end of our thirsthl quarter. Since the ultimate purchase price
to be paid is determined subsequent to receiviagvdinut crop, we typically estimate the final fhase price for our first and second quarter
interim financial statements. Any such changesstim&tes, which could be significant, are accoufdedn the period of change by adjusting
inventory on hand or cost of goods sold if the imteey has been sold. Changes in estimates mayt éleending inventory balances, as wel
gross profit. There were no significant adjustmeat®rded in any of the periods presented.

I mpairment of Long-Lived Assets

We review held and used long-lived assets, inclyidiur rental investment property and amortizabémiifiable intangible assets, to assess
recoverability from projected undiscounted caskwfiavhenever events or changes in facts and ciranoss indicate that the carrying value of
the assets may not be recoverable. When such exerus, we compare the sum of the undiscounted ftask expected to result from the use
and eventual disposition of the asset or assepgimthe carrying amount of the long lived assedsset group. The cash flows are based on o
best estimate of future cash flows derived fromrttwest recent business projections. If this compariadicates there is an impairment, the
carrying value of the asset is reduced to its egtohfair value.

We did not record any impairment of long-lived asder the last three fiscal years.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using an asset aniitiiadgpproach that requires the recognition ofatedd tax assets and liabilities for the
expected future tax consequences of events thattheen reported in our financial statements ordtxns. Such items give rise to differences
in the financial reporting and tax basis of asset$
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liabilities. A valuation allowance is recorded &muce the carrying amount of deferred tax assétssimore likely than not that all or a portion
of the asset will not be realized. Any investmext ¢redits are accounted for by using the flow-tigltomethod, whereby the credits are
reflected as reductions of tax expense in the thegrare recognized in the financial statementsstimating future tax consequences, we
consider all expected future events other than@bsm tax law or rates.

We record liabilities for uncertain income tax pimsis based on a two-step process. The first stegciognition, where we evaluate whether ar
individual tax position has a likelihood of greatlkan 50% of being sustained upon examination baseate technical merits of the position,
including resolution of any related appeals ogétion processes. For tax positions that are ctiyrestimated to have a less than 50%
likelihood of being sustained, no tax benefit isareled. For tax positions that have met the redimgnihreshold in the first step, we perform
the second step of measuring the benefit to badedo The actual benefits ultimately realized midfedfrom our estimates. In future periods,
changes in facts, circumstances, and new informatiay require us to change the recognition and urea®ent estimates with regard to
individual tax positions. Changes in recognitionl ameasurement estimates are recorded in resubizeréitions and financial position in the
period in which such changes occur. As of June@%5 and June 26, 2014, we had liabilities for cogaized tax benefits pertaining to
uncertain tax positions totaling $333 and $263yeetvely. We do not anticipate that total unredegd tax benefits will significantly change
the next twelve months.

We recognize interest and penalties accrued retatadrecognized tax benefits in the income taxeesp caption in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

We evaluate the realization of deferred tax agsetonsidering our historical taxable income artdriel taxable income based upon the revt
of deferred tax liabilities. As of June 25, 201% kelieve that our deferred tax assets are fullizable, except for $175 of net basis differel
for which we have provided a valuation allowance.

Retirement Plan

In order to measure the annual expense and cadhlatiability associated with our retirement plaranagement must make a variety of
estimates including, but not limited to, discouates, compensation increases and anticipated libpretkes. The estimates used by
management are based on our historical experienaekhas current facts and circumstances. We tisiechparty specialist to assist
management in appropriately measuring the expessximted with this employment-related benefitfddnt estimates used by management
could result in us recognizing different amount&xpense over different periods of time.

We recognize net actuarial gains or losses in exab$0% of the plan’s projected benefit obligat{tthe corridor”)into current period expen
over the average remaining expected service pefiadtive participants.

One significant assumption for pension plan acdagris the discount rate. We select a discounteatsh year (as of our fiscal year-end
measurement date) for our plan based upon a hyimtheorporate bond portfolio for which the cashwfs match the year-by-year projected
benefit cash flows for our pension plan. The hyptttal bond portfolio is comprised of high-qualityed income debt securities (usually
Moody’s Aa3 or higher) available at the measurendaé. Based on this information, the discount satected by us for determination of
pension expense was 4.37% for fiscal 2015, 4.90%dcal 2014, and 4.17% for fiscal 2013. A 25 bgsbint increase or decrease in our
discount rate assumption for fiscal 2015 would hegeilted in an immaterial change in our pensigrease for fiscal 2015. For our year-end
pension obligation determination, we selected diatoates of 4.63% and 4.37% for fiscal years 28i% 2014, respectively.

The rate of compensation increase is another gignif assumption used in the development of acamyiiformation for pension plans. We
determine this assumption based on our l@ng plans for compensation increases and curpemtagnic conditions. Based on this informati
we selected 4.5% for both fiscal years
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2015 and 2014 as the rate of compensation incfeagietermining our year-end pension obligation. 8o used 4.5% for the rate of
compensation increase for determination of pensiqrense for each of fiscal years 2015, 2014, ai8.20

In October 2014, The Society of Actuaries’ Retiratfelan Experience Committee published new moytédibles and recommended their use
for the measurement of U.S. pension plan obligatidviith the assistance of our third-party actuaryneasuring our pension obligation as of
June 25, 2015, we incorporated revised assumpti@generally reflect the mortality improvemertiénent in these new tables which resulte
in an actuarial loss of $2,150.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note 1 — “Significant Accounting Policiesf'the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememtstained in Part I, Item 8 of this Fo
10-K, for a discussion of recently issued accounfironouncements.

Forward-Looking Statements

The statements contained in this Annual ReportanmFL0-K, and in the Chief Executive Officer’'s ttto stockholders accompanying the
Annual Report on Form 10-K delivered to stockhadgéhat are not historical (including statementsoesning our expectations regarding
market risk) are “forward-looking statements.” Thdsrwardlooking statements may be followed (and therefdemiified) by a cross referer
to Part I, Item 1A — “Risk Factors” or may be otiese identified by the use of forward-looking womlsd phrases such as “will”,
“anticipates”, “intends”, “may”, “believes”, “shod?! and “expects”, and they are based on our cuerpéctations or beliefs concerning future
events and involve risks and uncertainties. We riakle no obligation to update publicly or otherwisgise any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future ésvem other factors that affect the subject of ¢h&atements, except where expressly require
to do so by law. We caution that such statemetsgjaalified by important factors, including thettas described in Part I, Item 1A — “Risk
Factors” and other factors, risks and uncertairitias are beyond our control, that could causeltesudiffer materially from our current
expectations and/or those in the forward-lookirageshents, as well as the timing and occurrencedooccurrence) of transactions and other
factors, risk, uncertainties and events which magubject to circumstances beyond our control. Egquently, results actually achieved may
differ materially from the expected results incldde these statements.

ltem 7A — Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosuresAbout Market Risk

We are exposed to the impact of changes in inteags$, commodity prices of raw material purchasesforeign exchange. We have not
entered into any arrangements to hedge againsgeban market interest rates, commodity priceoifn currency fluctuations.

We are unable to engage in hedging activity reledaembmmodity prices, because there are no edtallititures markets for nuts; therefore,
can only attempt to pass on the commodity costames in the form of price increases to our custensee Part I, Item 1A — “Risk Factors”
for a further discussion of the risks and uncettasnrelated to commodity prices of raw materiald the impact thereof on our business.

Approximately 27% of the dollar value of our totait purchases for fiscal 2015 were made from foreiguntries, and while these purchases
were payable in U.S. dollars, the underlying costy fluctuate with changes in the value of the @lar relative to the currency in the
foreign country or to other major foreign currerscgich as the euro.

We are exposed to interest rate risk on our Creatiflity, our only variable rate credit facilityebause we have not entered into any hedging
instruments which fix the floating rate or offsetiacrease in the floating rate. A hypothetical 188terse change in weighted-average intere:
rates would have had less than a $0.1 million ihpa®ur net income and cash flows from operatities for fiscal 2015. In addition, the
fixed interest rate on our Mortgage Facility resatthe future.
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Item 8 — Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of JBhB&anfilippo & Son, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statemfecwsnprehensive income, stockholders’
equity and cash flows present fairly, in all matkrespects, the financial position of John B. $i@pb & Son, Inc. and its subsidiaries at

June 25, 2015 and June 26, 2014, and the resulieiofoperations and their cash flows for eacthefthree years in the period ended June 25
2015 in conformity with accounting principles gealgr accepted in the United States of America. Atsour opinion, the Company
maintained, in all material respects, effectiveeinal control over financial reporting as of Jude 2015, based on criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) extby the Committee of Sponsoring OrganizationhefTreadway Commission (COSO).
The Company’s management is responsible for theaadial statements, for maintaining effective intd control over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of interoatrol over financial reporting, included in Ma®snent's Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting under item 9A. Our respondipi to express opinions on these financial stat@gmand on the Companyinternal contrc
over financial reporting based on our integrateditauWe conducted our audits in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Thdaedards require that we plan and perform the sidibbtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of matarisstatement and whether effective internal mdmiver financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects. Our audits of the finahstatements included examining, on a test bagidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessagccounting principles used and significaninesties made by management, and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. Qudlitzof internal control over financial reportingciuded obtaining an understanding of interna
control over financial reporting, assessing thk timt a material weakness exists, and testingeaatliating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on thesssskrisk. Our audits also included performing satbler procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe thatadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableamesuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statets:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (fppeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatg@aparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioazations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readwaassurance regarding prevention or timely detectf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @etaisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegibecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chicago, lllinois
August 21, 2015
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JOHN B. SANFILIPPO & SON, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
June 25, 2015 and June 26, 2014
(dollars in thousands, except per share amolints

June 25, June 26,
2015 2014
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 194 $ 1,884
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $2,966%%210, respectivel 75,63¢ 55,80(
Inventories 197,99 182,83(
Deferred income taxe 4,26¢ 3,48¢
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 4,46¢ 5,37¢
TOTAL CURRENT ASSET¢ 284,31( 249,37:
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land 9,28t 9,28t
Buildings 104,01¢ 102,79¢
Machinery and equipme 178,93t 170,69«
Furniture and leasehold improveme 4,36: 4,36:
Vehicles 397 46¢
Construction in progres 2,86¢ 2,901
299,86! 290,50°
Less: Accumulated depreciati 189,67: 181,68«
110,19: 108,82:
Rental investment property, less accumulated déegiiea of $8,055 and $7,262, respectiv 20,83¢ 21,63:
TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT1 131,03: 130,45:
OTHER LONG TERM ASSETS
Cash surrender value of offic’ life insurance and other ass 10,33: 8,811
Deferred income taxe 3,181 72€
Intangible assets, n 3,07¢ 5,24¢
TOTAL ASSETS $431,93!  $394,61:

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofelmmsolidated financial statements.

41



JOHN B. SANFILIPPO & SON, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
June 25, 2015 and June 26, 2014
(dollars in thousands, except per share amolints

June 25, June 26,
2015 2014
LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Revolving credit facility borrowing $ 61,15¢ $ 40,54:
Current maturities of lor-term debt, including related party debt of $376 $8d8, respectivel 3,37¢ 3,34¢
Accounts payable, including related party payabfeb241 and $232, respective 45,72 44,907
Book overdraf 1,03 2,41«
Accrued payroll and related benel 14,84 13,09¢
Other accrued expens 7,97( 7,92(
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 134,10! 112,23:
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt, less current maturities, including edaparty debt of $11,540 and $11,916, respect 32,29( 35,66¢
Retirement plai 17,88t 14,37:
Other 6,37 5,51¢
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 56,55: 55,551
TOTAL LIABILITIES 190,65’ 167,78:
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDER¢ EQUITY:
Class A Common Stock, convertible to Common Statla @er share basis, cumulative voting rights of te
votes per share, $.01 par value; 10,000,000 shaitbsrized, 2,597,426 shares issued and outsta 26 26
Common Stock, non-cumulative voting rights of oigevper share, $.01 par value; 17,000,000 shares
authorized, 8,663,480 and 8,569,105 shares issesgkctively 86 85
Capital in excess of par vali 111,54 108,30!
Retained earninc 135,66« 123,11¢
Accumulated other comprehensive |i (4,839 (3,509
Treasury stock, at cost; 117,900 shares of Comnoek: (1,209 (1,209
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERY? EQUITY 241,27¢ 226,82
TOTAL LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $431,93!  $394,61:

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofelmmsolidated financial statements.
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JOHN B. SANFILIPPO & SON, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the years ended June 25, 2015, June 26, 2@Lduae 27, 2013
(dollars in thousands, except per share amolints

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
June 25, 201¢ June 26, 201« June 27, 201!
Net sales $ 887,24 $ 778,62 $ 734,33
Cost of sale: 755,18 655,75 614,37.
Gross profit 132,05t 122,86! 119,96:.
Operating expense
Selling expense 49,64¢ 48,25¢ 47,11
Administrative expense 30,53: 29,25: 31,23:
Gain on sale of assets held for sale, — (1,647 —
Total operating expens 80,17" 75,86¢ 78,34
Income from operation 51,87¢ 46,99¢ 41,61¢
Other expense
Interest expense including $1,110, $1,136 and 41td 6elated parties,
respectively 3,96¢ 4,35¢ 4,75¢
Rental and miscellaneous expense, 3,04¢ 2,81( 1,56¢
Total other expense, n 7,01 7,164 6,328
Income before income tax 44,86¢ 39,83: 35,29¢
Income tax expens 15,55¢ 13,54¢ 13,53¢
Net income 29,30¢ 26,28’ 21,76(
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of
Amortization of prior service cost and actuariahgacluded in net periodic
pension cos 584 534 574
Net actuarial (loss) gain arising during the pel 1,91¢ (87%) 58¢
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of 1,331 (339 1,16:
Comprehensive incon $ 27,97 $  25,94¢ $ 22,92
Net income per common she— basic $ 2.6° $ 2.3¢ $ 2.0C
Net income per common she— diluted $ 2.61 $ 2.3¢€ $ 1.9¢
Cash dividends declared per sh $ 1.5C $ 1.5C $ 1.0C
Weighted average shares outstan— basic 11,150,65 11,033,31 10,863,06.
Weighted average shares outstan— diluted 11,248,25 11,132,34 10,992,99

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofelmmsolidated financial statements.
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Balance, June 28, 2012
Net income

JOHN B. SANFILIPPO & SON, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the years ended June 25, 2015, June 26, 2@Lduae 27, 2013
( dollars in thousand$

Class A Common

Accumulated

Cash dividends ($1.00 per common sh.
Pension liability amortization, net of income -

expense of $38

Pension liability adjustment, net of income

expense of $39
Equity award exercise

Stocl-based compensation expel

Balance, June 27, 20:
Net income

Cash dividends ($1.50 per common sh
Pension liability amortization, net of income -

expense of $35

Pension liability adjustment, net of income tax

benefit of $58
Equity award exercise

Stocl-based compensation expel

Balance, June 26, 20:
Net income

Cash dividends ($1.50 per common sh
Pension liability amortization, net of income tax

expense of $37

Pension liability adjustment, net of income

benefit of $1,22:
Equity award exercise

Stocl-based compensation expel

Balance, June 25, 20:

Capital in Other
Stock Common Stock Retained Comprehensive  Treasury
Excess o
Shares Amount Shares Amount  Par Value Earnings Loss Stock Total
2,597,421 $ 26 8,282,70: $ 83 $ 103,87t $102,55¢ $ (4,327 $ (1,204 $201,01:
21,76( 21,76(
(10,889 (10,889
574 574
58¢ 58¢
157,70 1 1,34( 1,341
91€ 91€
2,597,420 $ 26 8,440,40° $ 84 $ 106,13. $11343( $ (3,169 $ (1,204 $215,30:
26,28 26,28
(16,599 (16,599
534 534
(873 (873
128,69t 1 1,057 1,05¢
1,11¢€ 1,11¢€
2,597,421 % 26 8,569,100 $ 85 $ 108,30¢ $123,11¢ $ (3,509 $ (1,209 $226,82°
29,30¢ 29,30t
(16,759 (16,759
584 584
(2,915 (1,915
94,37¢ 1 1,28 1,28¢
1,952 1,952
2,597,421 $ 26 8,663,48 $ 86 $ 111,54( $13566: $ (4,839 $ (1,204 $241,27¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofef@msolidated financial statements.
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JOHN B. SANFILIPPO & SON, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended June 25, 2015, June 26, 2@Lduae 27, 2013
( dollars in thousand$

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
June 25, 201 June 26, 201 June 27, 201
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 29,30t $ 26,28 $ 21,76(
Depreciation and amortizatic 16,28 16,27¢ 16,717
Loss (gain) on disposition of properties, 10C (1,526 (57%)
Deferred income tax (benefit) exper (2,389 567 (947)
Stocl-based compensation expel 1,952 1,10¢ 90t
Change in assets and liabilities, net of businegsiged:
Accounts receivable, n (19,867) (6,237 35¢
Inventories (15,167 (24,12)) (12,327
Prepaid expenses and other current a: (1,587 1,13¢ (80%)
Accounts payabl 307 61€ 10,527
Accrued expense 1,79¢ (2,439 (2,696
Income taxes receivable/payal 2,49t (1,66¢) (759
Other lon¢-term liabilities 862 1,152 3,35¢
Other lon¢-term asset (1,547 (400) (1,10€¢)
Other, ne 1,371 1,19: 1,33t
Net cash provided by operating activit 13,93 11,95( 35,75
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property, plant and equipn (14,397 (9,92¢) (7,207)
Proceeds from disposition of ass 9C 7,87¢ 992
Other 21 (7) (165)
Net cash used in investing activiti (14,287) (2,056 (6,379
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings under revolving credit facilitit 339,68: 304,91( 313,05¢
Repayments of revolving credit borrowin (319,07 (296,23)) (327,040
Principal payments on lo-term debi (3,349 (3,340 (6,57%)
(Decrease) increase in book overd (1,3779) 1,362 (895)
Dividends paic (16,759 (16,599 (10,889
Proceeds from the exercise of stock opti 643 61€ 1,21¢
Tax benefit of equity award exercis 641 44z 122
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 41C (8,844 (30,999
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 62 1,05( (1,625
Cash, beginning of peric 1,88¢ 834 2,45¢
Cash, end of perio $  1,94¢ $ 1,88¢ $ 834
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Interest paic $  3,76( $  4,04¢ $ 4,131
Income taxes paid, excluding refunds of $548, $282, $14, respective 15,28t 14,36¢ 15,13t

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofermmsolidated financial statements.



JOHN B. SANFILIPPO & SON, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)
NOTE 1 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation and Consolidation and Detsonipf Business

Our consolidated financial statements include ttemants of John B. Sanfilippo & Son, Inc., and eolly-owned subsidiaries, JBSS Real
Estate, LLC, JBSS Ventures, LLC and Sanfilippo (®feai) Trading Co. Ltd. Our fiscal year ends onl#st Thursday of June each year, and
typically consists of fifty-two weeks (four thirteaveek quarters). Fiscal 2016 will consist of fiftyee weeks. The accompanying consolidate
financial statements and related footnotes areepted in accordance with accounting principles ghyeaccepted in the United States of
America (“GAAP”).

We are one of the leading processors and distribatiopeanuts, pecans, cashews, walnuts, almomtsthar nuts in the United States. These
nuts are sold under a variety of private brandswamtter themisher, Orchard Valley Harvest, Fisher Nut ExaalydSunshine Countrgrand
names. We also market and distribute, and in masgscmanufacture or process, a diverse produabfifted and snack products, including
peanut butter, almond butter, candy and confectiemascks and trail mixes, snack bites, sunflowendds, dried fruit, corn snacks, sesame
sticks and other sesame snack products under @ttivahds and brand names. Our products are soldginthe major distribution channels to
significant buyers of nuts, including food retadlecommercial ingredient users, contract packagirsfomers and international customers.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andalisice of contingent assets and liabilities atdhte of the financial statements and the repc
amounts of revenues and expenses during the negqrtiriod. Significant estimates include resereesfistomer deductions, the quantity of
bulk inventories, the evaluation of recoverabibfylong-lived assets, the assumptions used in astig the retirement plan liability and
pension expense, and the realizability of defetagdassets. Actual results could differ from thesgémates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider temporary cash investments with arir@ignaturity of three months or less to be cadhiedents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amounts etldcgcustomers, less allowances for doubtful attsp@and reserves for estimated cash
discounts and customer deductions. The allowarrcédobtful accounts is calculated by specificallgntifying customers that are credit risks
and estimating the extent that other non-specifi¢dentified customers will become credit riskodunt balances are charged off against the
allowance when we conclude that it is probableréfoeivable will not be recovered. The reserve fingated cash discounts is based on
historical experience. The reserve for customeudgohs represents known customer short paymentsiarstimate of future credit memos
that will be issued to customers related to rebamesallowances for marketing and promotions baseagreed upon programs and historical
experience.

Inventories

Inventories, which consist principally of inshelllk-stored nuts, shelled nuts, dried fruit and pssed and packaged nut products, are stated
the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or markehieh approximates actual
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cost. Inventory costs are reviewed at least qugrteluctuations in the market price of pecansnugs, walnuts, almonds, cashews and other
nuts may affect the value of inventory, gross praxfid gross profit margin. When expected marketssptices move below costs, we record
adjustments to write down the carrying values gemories to the lower of cost (first-in, first-gur market. The results of our shelling proces
can also result in changes to inventory costs, asadjustments made pursuant to actual versustexberop yields. We maintain significant
inventories of bulk-stored inshell pecans, peaantswalnuts. Quantities of inshell bulk-stored rares determined based on our inventory
systems and are subject to quarterly physicaligatibn techniques including observation, weighamgl other methods. The quantities of each
crop year bulk-stored nut inventories are genesdilled out over a ten to fifteen month periodyhich time revisions to any estimates are
also recorded.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cogipNmprovements that extend the useful life, edplacity or add functionality are capitali:
and charged to expense through depreciation. Repatt maintenance costs are charged to expenseuaed. The cost and accumulated
depreciation of assets sold or retired are reménogd the respective accounts, and any gain oritosscognized currently in operating income.

Depreciation expense for the last three fiscal yé&aas follows:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
June 25, 201 June 26, 201 June 27, 201
Depreciation expense $ 1411° $ 13,64¢ $ 13,64¢

Cost is depreciated using the straight-line methaet the following estimated useful lives:

Classification Estimated Useful Live:
Buildings 10 to 40 yeal
Machinery and equipme 5to 10 yeat
Furniture and leasehold improveme 5to 10 yeat
Vehicles 3to 5 year
Computers and softwa 3to 5 year

No interest costs were capitalized for the lastdHiscal years due to the lack of any signifigaofect requiring such capitalizatic

Impairment of LonelLived Assets

We review held and used long-lived assets, inclyidiur rental investment property and amortizabémiifiable intangible assets, to assess
recoverability from projected undiscounted caskw#avhenever events or changes in facts and cireumoss indicate that the carrying value of
the assets may not be recoverable. When such eyerus, we compare the sum of the undiscounted ftask expected to result from the use
and eventual disposition of the asset or assejpgimthe carrying amount of the long lived assedsset group. The cash flows are based on o
best estimate of future cash flows derived fromrttwest recent business projections. If this compariadicates there is an impairment, the
carrying value of the asset is reduced to its egtuohfair value.

We did not record any impairment of long-lived dasder the last three fiscal years.
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Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs are incurred to obtairgtterm financing and are amortized using the effedhterest method over the term of the
related debt. The amortization of deferred finaganosts, which is classified in interest expensiénconsolidated statement of comprehensiv
income, was as follows for the last three fiscalrge

Year ended Year ended Year ended
June 25, 201 June 26, 201 June 27, 201
Amortization of deferred financing costs $ 227 $ 32¢ $ 44z

Facility Consolidation Project/Real Estate Tranisast

In April 2005, we acquired property to be usedtfa Elgin Site. Two buildings are located on thgiESite, one of which is an office buildir
Approximately 71% of the office building is currgnvacant. The other building, a warehouse, waspspd and modified for use as our
principal processing facility and headquarters. @l@cation of the purchase price to the two builgi was determined through a third party
appraisal. The value assigned to the office bujdénincluded in rental investment property onliaéance sheet. The value assigned to the
warehouse building is included in “Property, plantl equipment”.

The net rental expense from the office buildinqm@duded in the caption “Rental and miscellaneoysease, net”. Gross rental income and
rental (expense), net for the last three fiscatyage as follows:

Year ended Year ended Year ended

June 25, 201 June 26, 201 June 27, 201
Gross rental income $ 1,792 $ 1,69 $ 1,671
Rental (expense), n (3,067) (2,799 (1,495

Expected future gross rental income under operdgiages within the office building is as follows fbe fiscal years ending:

June 30, 201 $ 1,89¢
June 29, 201 1,91:
June 28, 201 1,58:
June 27, 201 1,47(
June 25, 202 1,38¢
Thereaftel 5,81¢

$14,06¢

On March 28, 2006, our wholly-owned subsidiary JB88perties, LLC acquired title by quitclaim deedhe site that was originally
purchased in Elgin, lllinois (the “Old Elgin Sitefdr our facility consolidation project and alsaenmed into an Assignment and Assumption
Agreement (the “Agreement”) with the City of Eldftle “City”). In the third quarter of fiscal 2013BSS Properties, LLC transferred all of its
properties and agreements to JBSS Real Estate, Uh@er the terms of the Agreement, the City asslgonaus their remaining rights and
obligations under a development agreement entatedy and among the Company, certain related peantynerships and the City (the
“Development Agreement”).

On December 26, 2013 (the second quarter of f&esd), we completed the sale of the Old Elgin Sitee sales price was $8,000 and resultec
in a pre-tax gain of $1,641.

In September 2012, we completed the sale of laddadsuilding where we owned and operated a rdtaiésn Barrington, lllinois. Proceeds
from the sale were $870, net of expenses of $4bresulted in a pre-tax gain of $660 which is rdedrin “Administrative expenses” for the
year ended June 27, 20:
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Authoritative guidance issued by the Financial Asting Standards Board (“FASB”) defines fair vaagethe price that would be received for
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ogdgransaction between market participants omtieasurement date. The guidance establishes
fair value hierarchy that prioritizes observablée anobservable inputs used to measure fair vakoetfimee broad levels:

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets that are accesattilee measurement date for identical assetsialnitities.

Level 2 —  Observable inputs other than quoted prices in actiarkets. For example, quoted prices for simaaets or liabilities in active
markets or quoted prices for identical assetsadnillties in inactive market:

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for which there is little ormarket data availabl

The carrying values of cash, trade accounts rebkvand accounts payable approximate their faineght June 25, 2015 and June 26, 2014
because of the short-term maturities and natuteesfe balances.

The carrying value of our Credit Facility (as definin Note 4 in the Notes to Consolidated Finarstatements “Revolving Credit Facility”
below) borrowings approximates fair value at JuBe2®D15 and June 26, 2014 because interest ratiésdanstrument approximate current
market rates (Level 2 criteria), the short termuritit and nature of this balance. In addition, éhkas been no significant change in our inh
credit risk.

The following table summarizes the carrying valod &ir value estimate of our long term debt, idahg current maturities:

June 25, 201 June 26, 201
Carrying value of long-term debt: $ 35,66¢ $ 39,01t
Fair value of lon-term debt 39,37% 43,09:

The estimated fair value of long-term debt was meiteed using a market approach based upon Levbek@reable inputs, which estimates fair
value based on interest rates currently offeretbans with similar terms to borrowers of similaedit quality or broker quotes. In addition,
there have been no significant changes in the lidgrassets securing our long-term debt, othen tha sale of the Old Elgin Site discussed
above.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence afrangement exists, title has transferred (baped terms of shipment), price is fixed,
delivery occurs and collection is reasonably agskufiée sell our products under some arrangemenishwhelude customer contracts which fix
the sales price for periods, typically of up to gear, for some industrial customers and througiti§isc programs consisting of promotion
allowances, volume and customer rebates and magkaliowances, among others, to consumer custoamegrsommercial ingredient users.
Reserves for these programs are established bpsedhe terms of specific arrangements. Revenuerseaorded net of rebates and promotior
and marketing allowances. Revenues are also regtometeof expected customer deductions which areigeed for based upon past experien
While customers do have the right to return proslysast experience has demonstrated that produchsehave been insignificant. Provisions
for returns are reflected as a reduction in neissahd are estimated based upon customer spearifienstances. Billings for shipping and
handling costs are included in revenues.

Segment Reporting

We operate in a single reportable and operatinmeagthat consists of selling various nut and elated products through multiple distribut
channels.
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Significant Customers and Concentration of CredkR

The highly competitive nature of our business ptesian environment for the loss of customers amapiportunity to gain new customers. We
are subject to concentrations of credit risk, pritpan trade accounts receivable, and we attemmhitigate this risk through our credit
evaluation process, collection terms and througigggphical dispersion of sales. Sales to two custer@ach exceeded 10% of net sales durir
fiscal 2015. In fiscal 2014 and 2013, three custsmeach exceeded 10% of net sales. Sales to thssmrers represented approximately 39%,
46% and 48% of our net sales in fiscal 2015, fi@€dl4 and fiscal 2013, respectively. Net accoustgivable from these customers were 33%
and 55% of net accounts receivable at June 25, @8dSune 26, 2014, respectively.

Promotion, Marketing and Advertising Costs

Promotion allowances, customer rebates and magkatiowances are recorded at the time revenuedgrézed and are reflected as reduction
in sales. Annual volume rebates are estimated hgsau projected volumes for the year, while prommtnd marketing allowances are
recorded based upon terms of the actual arrangsm@aotipon incentive costs are accrued based ostiamage of redemptions to occur.

The majority of marketing costs and substantiallladvertising costs are incurred to promote arpsut branded products in the consumer
distribution channel. These costs are generallgesed as incurred, recorded in selling expensésyare as follows for the last three fiscal
years:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
June 25, 201 June 26, 201 June 27, 201
Marketing and advertising expense $ 11,06¢ $ 10,33( $ 10,92¢

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs, which include freigil other expenses to prepare finished goods fiomgmt, are included in selling expenses.
Shipping and handling costs for the last threeafigears were as follows:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
June 25, 201 June 26, 201 June 27, 201
Shipping and handling costs $ 17,69¢ $ 17,89¢ $ 15,80

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expense represents thef oos research and development personnel andréiated expenses and is charged to
selling expenses as incurred. Research and devetdmrpenses for the last three fiscal years wefell@ws:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
June 25, 201 June 26, 201 June 27, 201
Research and development expense $ 97¢ $ 882 $ 1,23

StockBased Compensation

We account for stock-based employee compensatianggments in accordance with the provisions of A3& by calculating compensation
cost based on the grant date fair value. We theortima compensation expense over the vesting pevitedestimate the fair value of each st
option on the date of the grant using the BlackeBehoption pricing model (using the risk-free et rate, expected term, expected volatility,
and dividend yield variables) discounted by anmestéed forfeiture rate. The grant date fair valuR8Hts is generally determined based on the
market price of our Common Stock on the date offgra
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Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using an asset aniditiiadgpproach that requires the recognition ofatedd tax assets and liabilities for the
expected future tax consequences of events thattheen reported in our financial statements ordtxns. Such items give rise to differences
in the financial reporting and tax basis of asaet$ liabilities. A valuation allowance is recordededuce the carrying amount of deferred tax
assets if it is more likely than not that all gp@tion of the asset will not be realized. Any istreent tax credits are accounted for by using the
flow-through method, whereby the credits are réfidas reductions of tax expense in the year theyegognized in the financial statements.
In estimating future tax consequences, we consillexpected future events other than changeitata or rates.

We record liabilities for uncertain income tax pimsis based on a two-step process. The first stegcognition, where we evaluate whether ar
individual tax position has a likelihood of greatlkan 50% of being sustained upon examination baseate technical merits of the position,
including resolution of any related appeals ogéition processes. For tax positions that are ctlyrestimated to have a less than 50%
likelihood of being sustained, no tax benefit ismeled. For tax positions that have met the re¢mgnihreshold in the first step, we perform
the second step of measuring the benefit to bededo The actual benefits ultimately realized migfedfrom our estimates. In future periods,
changes in facts, circumstances, and new informatiay require us to change the recognition and unrea®ent estimates with regard to
individual tax positions. Changes in recognitionl ameasurement estimates are recorded in resubizevétions and financial position in the
period in which such changes occur.

We recognize interest and penalties accrued retatadrecognized tax benefits in the income taxeesp/(benefit) caption in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

We evaluate the realization of deferred tax agsetonsidering our historical taxable income artdriei taxable income based upon the reve
of deferred tax liabilities. As of June 25, 201% kelieve that our deferred tax assets are fullizable, except for $175 of net basis differel
for which we have provided a valuation allowance.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per common share are calculated tisgnweighted average number of shares of Comrtawrk &nd Class A Stock outstanding
during the period. Diluted earnings per share céfléhe potential dilution that could occur if setes or other contracts to issue Common
Stock were exercised or converted into Common Stocksulted in the issuance of Common Stock.

The following table presents the reconciliatiorttef weighted average shares outstanding used iputong basic and diluted earnings per
share:

Year ended Year ended Year ended

June 25,201  June 26,201  June 27, 201

Weighted average number of shares outstanding € bas 11,150,65 11,033,31 10,863,06
Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options and restricted stock ui 97,60: 99,03: 129,93

Weighted average number of shares outstar— diluted 11,248,25 11,132,34 10,992,99
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The following table presents a summary of antitdiklstock options and restricted stock units esetiifrom the computation of diluted
earnings per share:

Year ended Year ended Year ended

June 25, 201 June 26, 201 June 27, 201

Weighted average number of anti-dilutive shares: — 15,15 41,37¢
Weighted average exercise pri $ — $ 25.3¢ $  18.4¢

Comprehensive Income

We account for comprehensive income in accordanteASC Topic 220Comprehensive Incomérhis topic establishes standards for
reporting and displaying comprehensive income gxdamponents in a full set of general-purposentiia statements. The topic requires that
all components of comprehensive income be repantadinancial statement that is displayed with $hene prominence as other financial
statements. This topic also requires all non-ovehanges in stockholders’ equity be presented heea single continuous statement of
comprehensive income or in two separate but cotisecstatements. This guidance also requires ptasen by the respective line items of
income, either on the face of the statement whetégome is presented or in the notes and infaomatbout significant amounts required
under U.S. GAAP to be reclassified out of accunadaither comprehensive income in their entirety.dfoounts not required to be reclassi

in their entirety to net income, we provide a crosference to other disclosures that offer additiatetails about those amounts.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-1hventory (Topic 330) Simplifying the Measuremdrhaentory”. This update applies to
inventory measured using first-in, first-out or eage cost and requires inventory be measured dbwer of cost and net realizable value. Net
realizable value is defined as estimated sellifigegrin the ordinary course of business, less redsp predictable costs of completion, dispr
and transportation. This update will be effectisethe Company beginning in fiscal year 2018 witbgpective application required. The
Company is currently evaluating this guidance,dnds not anticipate it will have a material imptacits consolidated balance sheets.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-08terest-Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-Finplifying the Presentation of Debt
Issuance Cos”. This update requires that debt issuance cost®detata recognized debt liability be presentedhéntialance sheet as a direct
reduction from the carrying amount of that dehility, consistent with debt discounts. The recdigni and measurement guidance for debt
issuance costs are not affected by the amendmetitsiupdate. This new guidance does not addreseptation or subsequent measurement
of debt issue costs related to line of credit agesments. In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU N&5206"Interest-Imputation of Interest
(Subtopic 835-30) Presentation and Subsequent Meamnt of Debt Issuance Costs Associated with afréredit Arrangements thich
amends Subtopic 835-30 and indicates the SECwtaffd not object to an entity deferring and presgntiebt issuance costs as an asset and
subsequently amortizing the deferred debt issuaosts ratably over the term of the line-of-credinagement, regardless of whether there are
any outstanding borrowings on the line-of-credibagement ASU 2015-03 is effective for financial statemersisuied for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2015, and interimgasriwithin those fiscal years. This update willdfiective for the Company beginning in
fiscal year 2017. Early adoption is permitted. Th@mpany is currently evaluating this guidance,dnés not anticipate it will have a material
impact to its consolidated balance sheets.

In January 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015dome Statement — Extraordinary and Unusual ItéBisbtopic 225-20): Simplifying
Income Statement Presentation by Eliminating thec&pt of Extraordinary Iten”. This update eliminates the concept of extraordititarys
from GAAP. Currently, if an event or transactiorbish unusual in nature and infrequent in occureat entity is required to segregate the
extraordinary item from the results of ordinary @t®mns and show the item separately in the incstament, net of tax, after continuing
operations. Applicable income taxes and earningsip&re data is also required to be
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disclosed. The amendments in this update are bféeidyr fiscal years, and interim periods withioge fiscal years, beginning after
December 15, 2015. This update will be effectivetii@ Company beginning in fiscal year 2017. Thidate can be adopted either
retrospectively to each prior reporting period preasd, or prospectively. Early adoption is perrditfEhe Company does not expect the
adoption of this update to have a material impacbar consolidated financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-Fyésentation of Financial Statements — Going Cam€€&opic 205-40). The guidance
requires management to perform interim and anrasdssments of an entity’s ability to continue gsiag concern within one year of the date
the financial statements are issued. An entity mtstide certain disclosures if conditions or egematise substantial doubt about the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The nevdgace applies to all entities and is effectivedionual periods ending after December 15,
2016, and interim periods thereafter, with earlgin permitted. The Company does not expect dopton of this guidance in fiscal 2017
have a material impact on our consolidated findrst@&ements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-0Révenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 6@8f created a new ASC Topic 606,
Revenue from Contracts with Custom, and added ASC Subtopic 340-@ther Assets and Deferred Costs — Contracts witktdPoers The
guidance in this update supersedes the revenugmgion requirements in ASC Topic 608evenue Recognitigrand most industry-specific
guidance throughout the industry topics of the ficaliion. Under the new guidance, an entity shoattbgnize revenue to depict the transfer o
promised goods or services to customers in an antbanreflects the consideration to which thetgrakpects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. In August 2015, the FASBdd ASU No. 2015-14Revenue from Contracts with Customers, DeferrghefEffectiv
Date” which deferred the effective date of ASU 2009 for one year. Consequently, this new revenuegmition guidance will be effective fi
the Company beginning in fiscal year 2019. Thiglgnce can be adopted either retrospectively to pachreporting period presented, or
retrospectively with a cumulative-effect adjustmettognized as of the date of adoption. The Comjmoyrrently assessing the impact of this
new guidance on our financial position, resultspérations and cash flows.

NOTE 2 — INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following:

June 25, 201 June 26, 201
Raw material and supplies $ 58,70: $ 68,19¢
Work-in-process and finished goo 139,29:. 114,63

The previously reported balance of raw material suqaplies at June 26, 2014 incorrectly included 21 of certain nut meats that should h
been classified as work-in-process and finishedlgo®he current presentation reflects this comactéind there is no impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 3 — INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets subject to amortization congigtefollowing:

June 25, 201 June 26, 201

Customer relationships $ 10,60( $ 10,60(
Non-compete agreeme 5,40( 5,40(
Brand name 8,09( 8,09(
Total intangible assets, grc 24,09( 24,09(
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June 25, 201 June 26, 201
Less accumulated amortizatic

Customer relationshif (7,717 (6,209
Non-compete agreeme (5,209 (4,582)
Brand name (8,090 (8,059
Total accumulated amortizatic (21,019 (18,849
Net intangible asse $  3,07¢ $  5,24¢

Customer relationships and the non-compete agreamate wholly to the Orchard Valley Harvest (“OVjHcquisition completed in fiscal
2010. Customer relationships are being amortized stnaight line basis over seven years. Theawnpete agreement is being amortized b
upon the expected pattern of cash flow annual litemnvdr a five year period. The brand name congigtearily of theFisherbrand name,
which we acquired in a 1995 acquisition. THisherbrand name became fully amortized in fiscal 201e lemainder of the brand name rel
to the OVH acquisition which became fully amortizediscal 2015.

Total amortization expense related to intangibketss which is classified in administrative expeinsie consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, was as follows for the la®e fiscal years:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
June 25, 201 June 26, 201 June 27, 201

Amortization of intangible assets $ 2160 $  2,62¢ $  3,06¢

Expected amortization expense for the next fivedigears is as follows:

Fiscal year ending

June 30, 201 $1,71¢C
June 29, 201 1,36¢
June 28, 201 —
June 27, 201 —
June 25, 202 —

NOTE 4 — REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY

On February 7, 2008, we entered into a Credit Apgerg with a bank group (the “Bank Lenders”) promgla $117,500 revolving loan
commitment and letter of credit subfacility (theré&dit Facility”). Also on February 7, 2008, we e into a Loan Agreement with an
insurance company (the “Mortgage Lender”) providirsgwith two term loans, one in the amount of $86,0Tranche A”) and the other in the
amount of $9,000 (“Tranche B”), for an aggregat®ant of $45,000 (the “Mortgage Facility”).

On September 30, 2014, we entered into the Sixte#dment to Credit Facility (the “Sixth Amendment/hich extended the maturity date of
the Credit Facility from July 15, 2016 to July P19 and reduced the interest rates charged farasgdcourse and letter of credit borrowings.
The revolving loan commitment amount did not chamgeddition, the Sixth Amendment allows the Compto, without obtaining Bank
Lender consent, (i) make up to two cash dividenddisiributions on our stock each fiscal year,igmlrchase, acquire, redeem or retire stock
in any fiscal year, in any case, in an amount a@xceed $25,000, individually or in the aggregaselong as the excess availability under the
Credit Facility remains over $30,000 after givirfteet to any such dividend, distribution, purchaseedemption. The Sixth Amendment also
increased the amount of permitted acquisitions f$&®,000 to $100,000 and removed the annual limitapital expenditures. The Credit
Facility is secured by substantially all our assgter than real property and fixtures.

The Mortgage Facility is secured by mortgages semrtially all of our owned real property locatedEigin, Illinois, Gustine, California and
Garysburg, North Carolina (the “Encumbered Propst}i
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At June 25, 2015 and June 26, 2014, the weighterhge interest rate for the Credit Facility wa$)20and 2.13%, respectively. The terms of
the Credit Facility contain covenants that requisgo restrict investments, indebtedness, acquisitand certain sales of assets, cash dividenc
redemptions of capital stock and prepayment ofbiteliness (if such prepayment, among other thisgsf, a subordinate debt). If loan
availability under the Borrowing Base Calculatiati$ below $25,000, we will be required to maintaiapecified fixed charge coverage ratio,
tested on a monthly basis. All cash received frostamers is required to be applied against theiCredility. The Bank Lenders are entitled
to require immediate repayment of our obligationder the Credit Facility in the event of defaulttbe payments required under the Credit
Facility, a change in control in the ownershipted Company, non-compliance with the financial cargror upon the occurrence of certain
other defaults by us under the Credit Facility I{iding a default under the Mortgage Facility). Aslone 25, 2015, we were in compliance \
all covenants under the Credit Facility and we ety expect to be in compliance with the financi@avenant in the Credit Facility for the
foreseeable future. As of June 25, 2015, we hadr€51of available credit under the Credit Fachiitigich reflects borrowings of $61,153 and
reduced availability as a result of $4,600 in aurtding letters of credit. We would still be in cdiapce with all restrictive covenants under the
Credit Facility if this entire amount were borrowed

NOTE 5 — LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following:

June 25, June 26,
2015 2014

Mortgage Facility (“Tranche A”), collateralized bbgal property, due in monthly principal installmgiof $200 plus

interest at 7.63% per annum through February 20#8Banfinal principal payment of $600 on March 022 $19,00C  $21,40(
Mortgage Facility (“Tranche B”), collateralized bgal property, due in monthly principal installmeof $50 plus

interest at the greater of one month LIBOR plu$%per annum or 4.50% through February 2023 withad

principal payment of $150 on March 1, 2( 4,75( 5,35(
Selma, Texas facility financing obligation to reldtparties, due in monthly installments of $12btigh September 1

2031 11,91¢ 12,26«

Other — 1

35,66¢ 39,01¢

Less: Current maturitie (3,376 (3,349

Total lon¢-term deb $32,29(  $35,66¢

We are subject to periodic interest rate resetgdich of Tranche A and Tranche B. SpecificallyMarch 1, 2018 (the “Tranche A Reset
Date”) and March 1, 2016 and every two years tifeegeach, a “Tranche B Reset Date”), the Mortgagieder may reset the interest rates fol
each of Tranche A and Tranche B, respectivelytsisole and absolute discretion. If the reset ésterate for either Tranche A or Tranche B is
unacceptable to us and we (i) do not have suffidiemds to repay amounts due with respect to Tracbr Tranche B on the Tranche A Resef
Date or Tranche B Reset Date, in each case, agalplgl, or (ii) are unable to refinance amountswiik respect to Tranche A or Tranche B
the Tranche A Reset Date or Tranche B Reset Datgdh case, as applicable, on terms more favotfadatethe reset interest rates, then,
depending on the extent of the changes in the natsgest rates, our interest expense could ineresserially.

Tranche A under the Mortgage Facility accrues edeat a fixed interest rate of 7.63% per annuiyaiple monthly. As mentioned above, such
interest rate may be reset by the Mortgage Lendéh® Tranche A Reset Date. Tranche B under theégdge Facility accrues interest, as rese
on March 1, 2014, at a floating rate of the greafeazne month LIBOR plus 3.75% per annum or 4.5p&yable monthly. The margin on such
floating rate may be reset by the Mortgage Lendeeach Tranche B Reset Date; provided, howeverihkaviortgage
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Lender may also change the underlying index on &@aahche B Reset Date occurring on or after Marc®016. We do not currently anticipate
that any change in the floating rate or the undeglyndex will have a material adverse effect upanbusiness, financial condition or result:
operations.

The terms of the Mortgage Facility contain coverahat require us to maintain a specified net woftf110,000 and maintain the Encumbe
Properties. The Mortgage Lender is entitled to megimmediate repayment of our obligations underMortgage Facility in the event we
default in the payments required under the Mortdaayglity, non-compliance with the covenants ormpite occurrence of certain other
defaults by us under the Mortgage Facility. Asurie) 25, 2015, we were in compliance with all covesander the Mortgage Facility. We
currently believe that we will be in compliance lwihe financial covenants in the Mortgage Facfiitythe foreseeable future and therefore
$16,600 of Tranche A and $4,150 of Tranche B haenlzlassified as long-term debt which represdraduded principal payments that are
due twelve months beyond June 25, 2015.

In September 2006, we sold our Selma, Texas piiepdd two related party partnerships for $14,300 are leasing them back. The selling
price was determined by an independent appraides the fair market value which also approximatedaarrying value. The lease for the
Selma, Texas properties has a ten-year term at méaket value rent with three five-year renewgfions. Also, we have an option to purchase
the properties from the partnerships after fiveryed 95% (100% in certain circumstances) of tlem tlair market value, but not to be less thar
the $14,300 purchase price. The financing obligeisdeing accounted for similar to the accountorga capital lease, whereby the $14,300
was recorded as a debt obligation, as the prowdsibthe arrangement are not eligible for saledbask accounting. The balance of the debt
obligation outstanding at June 25, 2015 was $11,916

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt are as fadldor the fiscal years ending:

June 30, 201 $ 3,37¢
June 29, 201 3,407
June 28, 201 3,441
June 27, 201 3,477
June 25, 202 3,51¢
Thereaftel 18,44¢

$35,66¢

NOTE 6 — INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes is based entirelynmome before income taxes earned in the UnitateStand is as follows for the last three
fiscal years:

For the Year Ended:

June 25, June 26, June 27,
2015 2014 2013
Current:
Federa $15,91¢ $11,27¢ $12,40¢
State 2,027 1,70 2,07¢
Total current 17,94: 12,97¢ 14,48:
Deferred:
Deferred federe (2,589 37¢ (1,209
Deferred stat 20E 192 25¢
Total deferrec (2,389 567 (947)
Total income tax expen: $15,55¢ $13,54¢ $13,53¢
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The reconciliations of income taxes at the stajutederal income tax rate to income taxes repdrtéde Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income for the last three fiscal yaag as follows:

June 25 June 26 June 27
2015 2014 2013

Federal statutory income tax rate 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income taxes, net of federal ber 3.4 3.3 4.5
Research and development tax cr (0.2 (0.2 (0.2
Domestic manufacturing deducti (3.9 (2.7 (3.9
Change in valuation allowan: — (1.4 2.C
Other (0.2) (0.7 0.4
Effective tax rate 34.1% 34.(% 38.5%

The effective tax rate of fiscal 2013 was impadigan $815 valuation allowance recorded againgrded tax assets that were created as a
result of our equity investment in, and sale oélilectual property rights to an unconsolidatedalalg interest entity. During fiscal 2014 we
divested our investment in, and cancelled a sequmaaiissory note due from this entity. The tax igod these losses was $640 and
consequently reduced the fiscal 2014 effectiverde.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recogniaethe expected future tax consequences of termpditierences between the financial
statement basis and the tax basis of assets duilitita using enacted statutory tax rates appleat future years. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are comprised of the following:

June 25, 201 June 26, 201
Current tax asset
Accounts receivabl $ 404 $ 343
Employee compensatic 2,072 1,78t
Inventory 424 424
Workers compensatiol 69¢ 673
Other 702 29€
Less valuation allowanc (38) (37)
Net deferred tax ass— current $  4,26¢ $ 3,48/
Non-current tax assets (liabilities
Depreciation and amortizatic $ (12,43YH $ (13,469
Capitalized lease 1,35¢ 1,24¢
Goodwill and intangible asse 5,15¢ 5,081
Operating loss carryforwart — 20t
Retirement plai 6,97t 5,74¢
Workers compensatiol 1,39¢ 1,347
Capital loss carryforwar 17t 17t
Other 694 522
Less valuation allowanc (139 (139
Net deferred tax ass— long term 3,181 72€
Net deferred tax asse— total $ 7,44 $ 4,21

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax sspanagement considers whether it is more littedy not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The altenrealization of deferred tax assets is depengwori the generation of future taxable income
of the character necessary during the periods inolwthose temporary differences become deductibémagement considers the scheduled
reversal of deferred tax
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liabilities (including the impact of available cgiback and carryforward periods), projected futaseable income, and tax-planning strategies il
making this assessment. During fiscal 2015 thereweachange to the total valuation allowance arfisaal 2014 the net change was a $640
decrease. If or when recognized, the tax benefitging to any reversal of the valuation allowangiébe recognized as a reduction of income
tax expense.

For the years ending June 25, 2015 and June 28, B@iecognized tax benefits and accrued interespanalties were $333 and $263.
Accrued interest and penalties related to uncetgirpositions are not material for any periodsprted. Interest and penalties were not
material for any period presented. The total gemesunts of unrecognized tax benefits were $24852d4d at June 25, 2015 and June 26, 2
respectively.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoofngross unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

June 25 June 26
2015 2014
Beginning balance $ 247 $ 13¢
Gross increase— tax positions in prior yee 27 24¢
Gross decreas+— tax positions in prior yee (92) (207)
Settlement: (18) —
Gross increase— tax positions in current ye 21 7
Lapse of statute of limitatior 62 (40
Ending balanci $ 24¢ $ 247

Unrecognized tax benefits, that if recognized, wiaffect the annual effective tax rate on inconeenficontinuing operations, are as follows:

June 25, 201 June 26, 201 June 27, 201
Unrecognized tax benefits that would affect anmdfgctive tax rate $ 261 $ 233 $ 127

We believe that it is reasonably possible that exprately $122 of unrecognized tax benefits relatefitderal and state exposures, each of
which are individually insignificant, may be recazgd by the end of fiscal 2016 as a result of adapf the statute of limitations.

There were certain changes in state tax laws duniegeriod, the impact of which was insignificaMe file income tax returns with federal
and state tax authorities within the United StafeAmerica. Our federal tax returns are open fdfitfor fiscal 2012 and later and our fiscal
2014 return is currently under audit. Our lllinté return is open for audit for fiscal 2013 angfaOur California tax returns are open for
audit for fiscal 2011 and later. No other tax jdritsions are material to us.

NOTE 7 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases

We lease certain equipment pursuant to agreemeodsiated for as operating leases. Rent expensegaggd under these operating leases wzx
as follows for the last three fiscal years:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
June 25, 201 June 26, 201 June 27, 201
Rent expense related to operating leases $ 154 $ 1,572 $ 1,414
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Aggregate non-cancelable lease commitments undsetbperating leases with initial or remaining &egreater than one year are as follows:

Fiscal year ending

June 30, 201 $1,51¢
June 29, 201 1,32
June 28, 201 792
June 27, 201 357
June 25, 202 217
Thereaftel 16

$4,217

Litigation

We are currently a party to various legal procegslin the ordinary course of business. While mamage presently believes that the ultimate
outcomes of these proceedings, individually anthénaggregate, will not materially affect our fis&l position, results of operations or cash
flows, legal proceedings are subject to inheregettainties, and unfavorable outcomes could oddnfavorable outcomes could include
substantial money damages in excess of any appte@ccruals which management has established. SMeheunfavorable final outcomes to
occur, there exists the possibility of a matertilexse effect on our financial position, result®pérations and cash flows.

NOTE 8 — STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Our Class A Common Stock, $.01 par value (the “€RStock”), has cumulative voting rights with respto the election of those directors
which the holders of Class A Stock are entitledlert, and 10 votes per share on all other mattesghich holders of our Class A Stock and
Common Stock are entitled to vote, with the ex@aptf election of the directors for which the haklef Common Stock are eligible to elect.
In addition, each share of Class A Stock is corilvierit the option of the holder at any time inteeshare of Common Stock and automatically
converts into one share of Common Stock upon aleyasaransfer other than to related individualaclk share of our Common Stock, $.01 pal
value (the “Common Stock”) has noncumulative votiigints of one vote per share. The Class A Stockthe Common Stock are entitled to
share equally, on a share-for-share basis, in asly dividends declared by the Board of Directansg, the holders of the Common Stock are
entitled to elect 25%, rounded up to the nearestievhumber, of the members comprising the Boardiadctors.

NOTE 9 — STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

At our annual meeting of stockholders on October22d4, our stockholders approved a new equityntiee plan (the “2014 Omnibus Plan”)
under which awards of options and other stock-basextds may be made to employees, officers or employee directors of our Company
total of 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock are aixémb for grants of awards thereunder, which maintibe form of options, restricted sto
restricted stock units (“RSUs"), stock appreciatiits (“SARSs”), performance shares, performantiésy Common Stock or dividends and
dividend equivalents. As of June 25, 2015, thereev@d 6,765 shares of Common Stock that remaindtwemred for future grants of awards,
subject to the limitations set below. The total tuemof shares of Common Stock with respect to wbjations or SARs may be granted in any
calendar year to any participant may not exceed®®@0shares (this limit applies separately witlpees to each type of award). Additionally,
for awards of restricted stock, RSUs, performaiaees or other stock-based awards that are inteldgpaalify as performance-based
compensation: (i) the total number of shares of @om Stock that may be granted in any calendartgeany participant may not exceed
250,000 shares (this limit applies separately theégpe of award) and (ii) the maximum amount thay be paid to any participant for awards
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that are payable in cash or property other thanr@omStock in any calendar year is $5,000. Excepeaforth in the 2014 Omnibus Plan,
RSUs have vesting periods of three years for awtardsployees and one year for awards to non-emaplayembers of the Board of Directors.
Recipients of RSUs awards have the option to defeipt of vested shares until a specified latée,dspically soon after separation from the
Company. The exercise price of stock options ismieined as set forth in the 2014 Omnibus Plan byGbmpensation Committee of our Bc
of Directors, and has to be at least the fair markkie of the Common Stock on the date of grartekgt as set forth in the 2014 Omnibus F
stock options expire upon termination of employn@ndirectorship, as applicable. Stock options tgdmnder the 2014 Omnibus Plan are
exercisable 25% annually commencing on the firgiarsary date of grant and became fully exercesabl the fourth anniversary date of
grant. Options generally will expire no later thtan years after the date on which they were gramésdissue new shares of Common Stock
upon exercise of stock options.

The 2014 Omnibus Plan replaced a stock option apgamoved at our annual meeting of stockholders ctioté2r 30, 2008 (the “2008 Equity
Incentive Plan”) pursuant to which awards of opsi@md stock-based awards could be made to memtides Board of Directors, employees
and other individuals providing services to the @amy. A total of 1,000,000 shares of Common Stoekevauthorized for grants of awards
under the 2008 Equity Incentive Plan, which cowddrbthe form of options, restricted stock, RSUSRS, Common Stock or dividends and
dividend equivalents. A maximum of 500,000 of th@0D,000 shares of Common Stock authorized unée2@08 Equity Incentive Plan could
be used for grants of Common Stock, restrictecksamad RSUs. Additionally, awards of options or SAiRge limited to 100,000 shares
annually to any single individual, and awards ofi®aon Stock, restricted stock or RSUs were limite8Q,000 shares annually to any single
individual. All RSUs granted under the 2008 Equitgentive Plan had vesting periods of three yearrsfvards to employees and one year for
awards to noremployee members of the Board of Directors. Renipief RSUs had the option to defer receipt ofegshares until a specifi
later date, typically soon after separation from @ompany. The exercise price of stock optionsdedsrmined as set forth in the 2008 Equity
Incentive Plan by the Compensation Committee ofBnard of Directors, and had to be at least thenfrket value of the Common Stock on
the date of grant. Except as set forth in the 20§8ity Incentive Plan, options expired upon terrtiovaof employment or directorship, as
applicable. The options granted under the 2008t ducentive Plan were exercisable 25% annuallyro@mcing on the first anniversary date
of grant and became fully exercisable on the foarthiversary date of grant. Options generally @iibire no later than ten years after the date
on which they were granted.

We determine the fair value of stock option awarsisaig the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Thesze no options granted in fiscal 2015
or fiscal 2014. The following weighted-average asgtions were used to determine the fair value ¢ibop granted during fiscal 2013:

June 27, 201
Risk-free interest rate 0.%
Expected dividend yiel 0.C%
Expected volatility 42.2%
Expected life (years 6.2

The expected term of the awards was determined tisen“simplified method” as stated in SEC Staftéuenting Bulletin No. 107 that utilizes
the following formula: ((vesting term + original miwact term)/2). Expected stock volatility was detamed based on historical volatility for the
6.25 year-period preceding the measurement dateriSk-free rate was based on the yield curvefieceft the time the options were granted,
using U.S. treasury constant maturities over tipeeted life of the option. Expected forfeitures evdetermined based upon our expectations
and past experiences. Expected dividend yield waaedon our dividend practices at the time theoaptivere granted.
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The following is a summary of stock option activity the year ended June 25, 2015:

Weightec- Weightec-
Average Aggregate
Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Term in Years Value
Outstanding at June 26, 2014 63,50( $ 13.9¢
Granted — —
Exercisec (38,500 16.7C
Forfeited — —
Outstanding at June 25, 20 25,00( $ 9.8C 2.3¢ $ 1,11
Exercisable at June 25, 20 24,12t $ 9.6C 2.1¢ $ 1,081

The number of stock options vested, and expectedgbin the future, as of June 25, 2015, is rgutiicantly different from the number of
stock options outstanding at June 25, 2015, asdstdiove. All options granted during fiscal 2013enat exercise prices equal to the market
price of Common Stock at the grant date.

The following table summarizes the weighted-avegmgat-date fair value of option awards granted,tttal intrinsic value of all options
exercised and the total cash received from theceseepf options for the last three fiscal years:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
June 25, 201 June 26, 201 June 27, 201
Weighted-average grant date fair value of optiaasigd $ — $ — $ 5.77
Total intrinsic value of options exercis $ 781 $ 60z $ 53t
Total cash received from exercise of optii $ 643 $ 61€ $  1,21¢

There was an immaterial change in non-vested siptikns during fiscal 2015.
Exercise prices for options outstanding as of 2#e015 ranged from $7.95 to $18.03 and may beratgd into two ranges, as shown below

Option Price Per Share Range

Number of option: 12,00( 13,00(
Weightec-average exercise pri $ 7.9¢5 $ 11.52
Weightec-average remaining life in yea 2.4 2.3
Number of options exercisak 12,00( 12,12¢
Weightec-average exercise price for exercisable opt $ 7.98 $ 11.2¢

RSUs granted to employees and outside directorsrghiyivest over a three-year and one-year peraghectively. The fair value of restricted
stock awards is generally determined based on Hrkehprice of our Common Stock on the date of gran

The following is a summary of restricted stock wagtivity for the year ended June 25, 2015:

Weightec-

Average

Grant-Date

Restricted Stock Units Shares Fair Value
Outstanding at June 26, 2014 201,30t $ 16.2¢
Granted 83,50t 33.9¢
Vested (55,87Y 11.0C
Forfeited (270 32.52
Outstanding at June 25, 20 228,66¢ $ 23.9¢
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At June 25, 2015 there were 51,439 RSUs outstaritlatgvere vested but deferred. At June 26, 20érettvere 40,098 RSUs outstanding that
were vested but deferred. The non-vested RSUsat b, 2015 will vest over a weighted-average pleoiol.3 years.

The following table summarizes compensation coatgdd to earnings for all equity compensation plarthe total income tax benefit
recognized for the last three fiscal years:

Year endec Year endec Year endec
June 25, June 26, June 27,
2015 2014 2013
Compensation cost charged to earnings $ 1,95 $ 1,10¢ $ 90t
Income tax benefit recogniz: 814 512 20z

At June 25, 2015, there was $2,471 of total unmeizegl compensation cost related to non-vested dissed compensation arrangements
granted under our stock-based compensation plaaexpect to recognize that cost over a weightedageeperiod of 1.3 years.

NOTE 10 — SPECIAL CASH DIVIDENDS

On October 28, 2014 our Board of Directors, aftarsidering the financial position of our Company ather factors, declared a special cash
dividend of $1.50 per share on all issued and anthg shares of Common Stock and Class A Commurk$if the Company (the “2015
Special Dividend”) The 2015 Special Dividend of $16,759 was paid ooeb#er 12, 2014, to stockholders of record at libsgecof business ¢
December 3, 2014. The ex-dividend date was thedbbusiness on December 1, 2014.

On October 29, 2013, our Board of Directors, atarsidering the financial position of our Company ather factors, declared a special cash
dividend of $1.50 per share on all issued and anthihg shares of Common Stock and Class A Stottkeo€ompany (the “2014 Special
Dividend”). The 2014 Special Dividend of $16,599swmaid on December 5, 2013 to stockholders of teabthe close of business on
November 21, 2013. The -dividend date was the close of business on Noveit#®e2013. The Company obtained the appropriatseat

from the Bank Lenders in order to declare and pay2014 Special Dividend.

NOTE 11 — EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

We maintain a contributory plan established purst@the provisions of section 401(k) of the IntrRevenue Code. The plan provides
retirement benefits for all nonunion employees mgamninimum age and service requirements. We ctlyrematch 100% of the first three
percent contributed by each employee and 50% afi¢lxetwo percent contributed, up to certain maximaspecified in the plan. Our expense
for the 401(k) plan was as follows for the lasethfiscal years:

Year endec Year endec Year endec
June 25, June 26, June 27,
2015 2014 2013
401(k) plan expense $ 1,55( $ 1,35¢ $ 1,171

During the first quarter of fiscal 2009, we recatdelong-term liability of $868 for the withdrawfabm the multiemployer plan (“Route
pension”) for the step-van drivers that were emetbfor our store-door delivery system that wasatiioued during fiscal 2008. Pursuant to
terms of settlement with a labor union, we are mgknonthly payments of $8 (including interest) tigh April 2022.

The total Route pension liability was as follows fiee last two fiscal years:

June 25 June 26
2015 2014
Route pension liability $ 53C $ 59C
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Virtually all of our salaried employees participaieour Sanfilippo Value Added Plan (as amended,'8VA Plan”) which is a cash incentive
plan (an economic value added-based program) astmiad by our Compensation Committee. We accruersgrelated to the SVA Plan in
the annual period that the economic performancenlyidg such performance occurs. This method ofegp recognition properly matches
expense associated with improved economic perfocmaiith the period the improved performance ocoura systematic and rational basis.

NOTE 12 — RETIREMENT PLAN

The Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan (“SERPan unfunded, non-qualified benefit plan that wibvide eligible participants with
monthly benefits upon retirement, disability or tiegubject to certain conditions. Benefits paidetirees are based on age at retirement, yea
of credited service, and average compensation. 8§eur fiscal year-end as the measurement datedabligation calculation. Accounting
guidance in ASC Topic 71&0ompensation — Retirement Benafitguires the recognition of the funded status efSERP on the Consolidat
Balance Sheet. Actuarial gains or losses, prionigeicosts or credits and transition obligatioret thave not yet been recognized are record

a component of “Accumulated Other ComprehensivesTF#\OCL").

The following table presents the changes in thgepted benefit obligation for the fiscal years eshide

June 25, June 26,
2015 2014
Change in projected benefit obligatior

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y $15,02¢ $13,26¢
Service cos 38¢€ 32¢
Interest cos 64z 634
Actuarial loss 3,13¢ 1,454
Benefits paic (659 (659
Projected benefit obligation at end of y: $18,53¢ $15,02¢

The accumulated benefit obligation, which represbenefits earned up to the measurement date, Was@ and $12,163 at June 25, 2015
and June 26, 2014, respectively.

Components of the actuarial loss (gain) portiothefchange in projected benefit obligation are gmésd below for the fiscal years ended:

June 25 June 26

June 27,

2015 2014 2013

Actuarial Loss (Gain)

Change in assumed pay increz $ 34z $ (89 $ 42:
Change in discount ra (801) 1,08¢ (1,559

Change in mortality assumptio 2,15( — —

Change in bonus assumpti 1,191 474 —
Other 257 (19 152
Actuarial loss (gain $3,13¢ $1,45¢ $ (979
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The components of the net periodic pension cosasifellows for the fiscal years ended:

June 25 June 26 June 27
2015 2014 2013
Service cost $ 38¢ $ 322 $ 34:
Interest cos 64z 634 57C
Recognized gain amortizatic — (68) —
Prior service cost amortizatic 957 957 957
Net periodic pension co $1,98¢ $1,84¢ $1,87(

Significant assumptions related to our SERP inchiidediscount rate used to calculate the actuprésent value of benefit obligations to be
paid in the future and the average rate of compgEmsaxpense increase by SERP participants.

We used the following assumptions to calculatebibrgefit obligations of our SERP as of the followitages:

June 25, June 26,
2015 2014
Discount rate 4.63% 4.37%
Rate of compensation increa: 4.50% 4.50%
Bonus payment 60% - 85% of 60% - 85% of
base, base,
paid 4 of 5 paid 3 of 5
years years

We used the following assumptions to calculaterbteperiodic costs of our SERP as follows for ibedl years ended:

June 25, June 26, June 27,
2015 2014 2013
Discount rate 4.37% 4.90% 4.17%
Rate of compensation increa: 4.50% 4.50% 4.50%
Bonus payment 60% - 85% of 60% - 70% of 60% - 70% of
base, base, base,
paid 3 of 5 paid 3 of 5 paid 3 of 5
years years years

The assumed discount rate is based, in part, upistaunt rate modeling process that considers tigth quality long-term indices and the
duration of the SERP plan relative to the duratiomglicit in the broader indices. The discount riatetilized principally in calculating the
actuarial present value of our obligation and pd@xpense pursuant to the SERP. To the exterdifigeunt rate increases or decreases, our
SERP obligation is decreased or increased, acajiydin

The following table presents the benefits expettdae paid in the next ten fiscal years:

Fiscal yeal
2016 $ 652
2017 652
2018 64¢€
2019 63¢
2020 62€
2021— 2025 4,031

64



At June 25, 2015 and June 26, 2014 the curreniopoof the SERP liability is $653 and recorded iccAued payroll and related benefits on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The following table presents the components of AQIGt have not yet been recognized in net pensiparese:

June 25, 201 June 26, 201

Unrecognized net (loss) gain $ (2,409 $ 73€
Unrecognized prior service cc (5,269 (6,220
Tax effect 2,838 1,982
Net amount unrecognize $ (4839 $ (3,509

We expect to recognize $957 of the prior servicet and $50 of net loss into net periodic pensiqrease during the fiscal year ending June
2016.

NOTE 13 — ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

The table below sets forth the changes to accuediiather comprehensive loss (*“AOCL") for the lagb ffiscal years. These changes are all

related to our defined benefit pension plan.

Year Ended Year Ended
Changes to AOCL®@) June 25, 201 June 26, 201
Balance at beginning of period $ (3,509 $ (3,169
Other comprehensive loss before reclassificat (3,139 (1,459
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgmsive los: 957 88¢
Tax effect 851 22¢€
Net curren-period other comprehensive Ic (1,33)) (339
Balance at end of peric $ (4839 $ (3,509

@  Amounts in parenthesis indicate debits/expe
The reclassifications out of accumulated other a@fn@nsive loss for the years ended June 25, 261 Bware 26, 2014 were as follows:

Affected line item in the

Year Ended Year Ended Consolidated Statements of

Reclassifications from AOCL to earnings® June 25, 201 June 26, 201 Comprehensive Income
Amortization of defined benefit pension iter

Unrecognized prior service cc $ (957) $ (957) Administrative expens

Unrecognized net gai — 68 Administrative expens

Total before ta (957) (889)

Tax effect 373 35E Income tax expens
Amortization of defined pension items, net of $ (589 $ (539

®)  Amounts in parenthesis indicate debits to expefise.Note 12 above for additional dete
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NOTE 14 — TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
In addition to the related party transactions dbscrin Note 5, we also entered into transactioitls thie related party described below:

We purchase materials from a company that is effegtowned by three members of our Board of Divesttwo of whom are also executive
officers, and individuals directly related to thePurchases from this related party aggregatedetéolfowing for the years ending:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
June 25, 201 June 26, 201 June 27, 201
Purchases from related party $ 10,96¢ $ 11,077 $ 10,72

Accounts payable to this related entity aggregtddtie following for the fiscal years ending:

June 25, 201 $241
June 26, 201 232

NOTE 15 — DISTRIBUTION CHANNEL AND PRODUCT TYPE SAL ES MIX

We operate in a single reportable operating segthemtigh which we sell various nut products throughitiple distribution channels. The
following summarizes net sales by distribution atelrfor the fiscal years ended:

June 25, June 26, June 27,
Distribution Channel 2015 2014 2013
Consumefd) $529,07¢ $453,33¢ $436,22¢
Commercial Ingredient 207,37( 193,18( 177,77
Contract Packagin 114,79¢ 98,12 85,94(
Export@ 36,00( 33,97¢ 34,39:
$887,24! $778,62: $734,33:

(1) Sales of branded products, primarilyFigherbrand, were approximately 32%, 31% and 30% of wtakumer channel sales during
fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectivi

(@ Export sales consist primarily of bulk produatsl @onsumer branded and private brand productssu®oer branded and private brand
products accounted for approximately 65%, 60% &% bf total sales in the export channel duringdif015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively

The following summarizes sales by product type psraentage of total gross sales. The informasdrased upon gross sales, rather than net
sales, because certain adjustments, such as pograbdiiscounts, are not allocable to product tyfersthe fiscal year ended:

June 25 June 26 June 27
Product Type 2015 2014 2013
Peanuts 13.7% 15.1% 18.2%
Pecan:s 12.7 13.€ 15.¢
Cashews & Mixed Nut 22.C 18.7 19.4
Walnuts 11.C 11.7 12.C
Almonds 23.2 22.: 16.5
Trail & Snack Mixes 12.C 11.4 11.C
Other 5.2 7.2 7.C
100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
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NOTE 16 — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RES ERVES

The following table details the activity in varioaBowance and reserve accounts.

Balance a
Beginning
Balance at

Description of Period Additions Deductions End of Period
June 25, 201¢

Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 20¢ $ 36 $ (20 $ 23t
Reserve for cash discour 65C 12,34: (22,19) 80C
Reserve for customer deductic 2,351 9,541 (9,96)) 1,931
Deferred tax asset valuation allowal 17t — — 17t
Total $ 3,38t $21,91¢ $(22,167) $ 3,141
June 26, 201¢

Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 194 $ 31 $ (16 $ 20¢
Reserve for cash discour 55C 10,53¢ (20,439 65C
Reserve for customer deductic 1,88¢ 5,381 (4,919 2,351
Deferred tax asset valuation allowal 81F — (640 17t
Total $ 3,44 $15,95! $ (16,009 $ 3,38t
June 27, 201

Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 19t $ — $ (1) $ 194
Reserve for cash discour 55C 9,89¢ (9,899 55C
Reserve for customer deductic 2,12z 4,25¢ (4,499 1,88¢
Deferred tax asset valuation allowat — 81t — 81t
Total $ 2,861 $14,97( $ (14,399 $ 3,44

NOTE 17 — SUPPLEMENTARY QUARTERLY DATA (Unaudited)

The following unaudited quarterly consolidated finil data are presented for fiscal 2015 and fig6aK. Quarterly financial results
necessarily rely on estimates and caution is reduir drawing specific conclusions from quarterdysolidated results.

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Year Ended June 25, 2015:

Net sales $205,03 $251,37: $209,39¢ $221,43¢
Gross profit 30,68 37,24 29,78« 34,34t
Income from operation 12,01 14,67¢ 11,497 13,69
Net income 5,91t 8,40: 6,51¢ 8,46¢
Basic earnings per common sh $ 0.5 $ 0.7 $ 0.5¢ $ 0.7¢
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 0.5 $ 0.7t $ 0.5¢ $ 0.7¢

Cash dividends declared per common sl $ — $ 1.5 $ — $ —

Fourth

First Second Third Quarter

Quarter Quarter Quarter 1)
Year Ended June 26, 2014

Net sales $176,69° $225,11- $174,29: $202,52(
Gross profit 29,36¢ 36,94¢ 22,79¢ 33,74¢
Income from operation 12,32¢ 16,39« 6,13¢ 12,13¢
Net income 6,77¢ 9,22¢ 3,681 6,607
Basic earnings per common sh $ 0.62 $ 0.8 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.6C
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 0.61 $ 0.8 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.5¢

Cash dividends declared per common sl $ — $ 1.5 $ — $ —

(M The fourth quarter of fiscal 2014 contained a $if@dease in cost of sales due to a change in tiraas of on-hand quantities of bulk-
stored inshell pecan and walnut inventor
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Item 9 — Changes in and Disagreements with Accoumnti#s on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A — Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our Chief Executive €ffi(“CEO”)and Chief Financial Offict
(“CFQO"), we conducted an evaluation of the effeetigss of our disclosure controls and proceduresjasterm is defined in Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Exchange Aatf the end of the period covered by this Annugpétt on Form 10-K. Based on this
evaluation, our CEO and CFO concluded that, asioé 25, 2015, our disclosure controls and proceduere effective to provide reasonable
assurance that information required to be disclégeds in reports that we file or submit under Exehange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periodsisipe in SEC rules and forms and is accumulatediraported to our management,
including our CEO and CFO, as appropriate to aliovely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is defined in
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Underghpervision and with the participation of our mgement, including our CEO and CFO,
we carried out an evaluation of the effectivendssuo internal control over financial reporting @sJune 25, 2015, based on the&ernal
Control-Integrated Framewor{013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Omgitins of the Treadway Commission. Based on this
evaluation, our management has concluded thainternial control over financial reporting was effeetas of June 25, 2015.

The effectiveness of our internal control over ficial reporting as of June 25, 2015 has been alibid’ricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,tatged in their report contained in this Annual Re¢pm Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in internal control ovemfiia reporting that occurred during the fourtttéisquarter ended June 25, 2015 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenglly affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including our CEO and CFO, doesxymct that the Disclosure Controls and Proceduresir Internal Control over
Financial Reporting will prevent or detect all esrand all fraud. A control, no matter how welligagd and operated, can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the tsrtbjectives will be met. Further, the desigrecfontrol must reflect the fact that there are
resource constraints, and the benefits of contnoist be considered relative to their costs. Becafifee inherent limitations in all internal
controls, no evaluation of controls can provideddlite assurance that all control issues and inetaantfraud, if any, within the Company have
been detected. These inherent limitations inclhde¢alities that judgments in decision-making loarfiaulty, and that breakdowns can occur
because of simple error or mistake. Controls cao bé circumvented by the individual acts of soms@ns, by collusion of two or more
people, or by management override of the contfidis. design of any control is based in part upotageassumptions about the likelihood of
future events, and there can be no assurancerthatesign will succeed in achieving its stated gamider all potential future conditions. Over
time, controls may become inadequate because afyelsan conditions or deterioration in the degrieeompliance with associated policies or
procedures. Because of the inherent limitatiores ¢ost-effective control, misstatements due torerdraud may occur and may not be
detected.
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Iltem 9B — Other Information

On August 20, 2015, the Board of Directors adopadféctive immediately, Amended and Restated Byléhs “Amended Bylaws”). The
Amended Bylaws revise the nomination period foedior candidates to be voted upon by the holde@axfs A Stock (“Class A Holdersénd
the related information requirements with respedttch director nominees and the nominating Clas®ller, as provided in Section 10(A)(
In addition, certain other technical and conformamgendments were made to the Amended Bylaws.

The foregoing description of the amendments toAimended Bylaws do not purport to be complete amuaified in its entirety by reference
to the full text of the Amended Bylaws, a copy dfigh is filed herewith as Exhibit 3.2 and incorperhby reference herein. In accordance
SEC rules, the Company is electing to include digslosure in this Item 9B of this Form 10-K ratfiean filing a Form 8-K under Item 5.03(a)
at a later date.

PART lIl
Item 10 — Directors, Executive Officers and Corporée Governance

The Sections entitled “Nominees for Election by Hwders of Common Stock,” “Nominees for ElectionThe Holders of Class A Stock”,
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coigapte” and “Corporate Governance — Board Meetingb@ommittees — Audit
Committee” and “Corporate Governance — Independehtiege Audit Committee” of our Proxy Statement floe 2015 Annual Meeting and
filed pursuant to Regulation 14A are incorporatecein by reference. Other certain information fetpto the directors and executive officers
of the Company is included immediately before Raof this Report.

We have adopted a Code of Ethics applicable t@timeipal executive, financial and accounting daffis (“Code of Ethics”) and a separate
Code of Conduct applicable to all employees anekttirs generally (“Code of Conduct”). The Code tifies and Code of Conduct are
available on our website atww.jbssinc.com

Item 11 — Executive Compensation

The Sections entitled “Compensation of Directord BRecutive Officers”, “Compensation Discussion &malysis”, “Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” d@dmpensation Committee Report” of our Proxy Staat for the 2015 Annual Meeting
are incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12 — Security Ownership of Certain BeneficialODwners and Management and Related Stockholder Matts

The Section entitled “Security Ownership of CertBaneficial Owners and Management” of our Proxytesteent for the 2015 Annual Meeting
is incorporated herein by reference. Other ceitdormation relating to the directors and executiiécers of the Company is included
immediately before Part Il of this Report.

Item 13 — Certain Relationships and Related Transaons, and Director Independence

The Sections entitled “Corporate Governance — leddpnce of the Board of Directors” and “Review efded Party Transactions” of our
Proxy Statement for the 2015 Annual Meeting areiiporated herein by reference. Other certain in&tiom relating to the directors and
executive officers of the Company is included immtsly before Part Il of this Report.

Item 14 — Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information under the proposal entitled “Rattg Audit Committee’s Appointment of PricewaterseGoopers LLP as our Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm for the 2016 disgear” of our Proxy Statement for the 2015 Anndekting is incorporated herein by
reference.
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PART IV
Item 15 — Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) (1) Financial Statements
The following financial statements are includedPant Il, Item 8 — “Financial Statements and Supgetary Data”:

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomtéo¥ear Ended June 25, 2015, the Year EndedZrn2014 and the Year Ended
June 27, 201

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 25, 2015wad26, 201

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ EquitythierYear Ended June 25, 2015, the Year Ended2Z&yr2014 and the Year Ended
June 27, 201

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the ¥ealed June 25, 2015, the Year Ended June 26, 2lltha Year Ended June 27, 2(

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

(a) (2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted because they are notcgiyhé or the required information is shown in @@nsolidated Financial Statements or N
thereto.

(a) (3) Exhibits
The exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation $4id filed herewith are listed in the Exhibit Indekich follows the signature page and
immediately precedes the exhibits filed.

(b) Exhibits
See Item 15(a)(3) above.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules
See Item 15(a)(2) above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

JOHN B. SANFILIPPO & SON, INC

Date: August 21, 2015 By: /s/ Jeffrey T. Sanfilippo
Jeffrey T. Sanfilippo
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed belptine following persons on behalf of 1
Registrant in the capacities and on the datesaetic

Na Title Date
/sl Jeffrey T. Sanfilippo Chief Executive Officer and Director August 21, 2015
Jeffrey T. Sanfilippc (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl Michael J. Valentine Chief Financial Officer, Group President, Secretamg August 21, 2015
Michael J. Valentint Director (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ Frank S. Pellegrino Senior Vice President, Finance and Corporate Chatro August 21, 2015
Frank S. Pellegrin (Principal Accounting Officer)
/sl Mathias A. Valentine Director August 21, 2015
Mathias A. Valentine
/s/ Jim Edgar Director August 21, 2015
Jim Edgal
/s/ Timothy R. Donovan Director August 21, 2015
Timothy R. Donovat
/sl Jasper B. Sanfilippo, Jr. Director August 21, 2015
Jasper B. Sanfilippo, J
/s/ Daniel M. Wright Director August 21, 2015
Daniel M. Wright
/s/ Ellen C. Taaffe Director August 21, 2015
Ellen C. Taaffe
/sl James J. Sanfilippo Director August 21, 2015

James J. Sanfilipp
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Exhibit
Number

1-2
3.1
3.2
4.1
4.2
£9
10.1

10.2
*10.3
*10.4
*10.5

*10.6

*10.7

*10.8

*10.9

*10.1C

*10.11
10.1:

10.1

10.1«

EXHIBIT INDEX
(Pursuant to Item 601 of Regulation S-K)

Description
Not applicable
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of John Bnf8i@po & Son, Inc. (the“Registrar” or the*Compan™) (12)
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant, filag\ih
Specimen Common Stock Certificd3)
Specimen Class A Common Stock Certific®
Not applicable

Tax Indemnification Agreement between Registrast @grtain Stockholders of Registrant prior toritisial public
offering (@

Indemnification Agreement between Registrant amthze Stockholders of Registrant prior to its iaitpublic offering®
The Registrar's 1998 Equity Incentive Pl
First Amendment to the Registr’s 1998 Equity Incentive Ple®)

Amended and Restated John B. Sanfilippo & Son, $ptit-Dollar Insurance Agreement Number One amawoton E.
Sanfilippo, as trustee of the Jasper and Mariarfilfgo Irrevocable Trust, dated September 23, 1928per B.
Sanfilippo, Marian R. Sanfilippo and RegistranttedtaDecember 31, 20((©)

Amended and Restated John B. Sanfilippo & Son,$ptit-Dollar Insurance Agreement Number Two ambtighael J.
Valentine, as trustee of the Valentine Life Insweairust, Mathias Valentine, Mary Valentine and iRiggnt, dated
December 31, 20C(©®)

Amendment, dated February 12, 2004, to AmendedRarstiated John B. Sanfilippo & Son, Inc. Split-Doliesurance
Agreement Number One among John E. Sanfilippaussete of the Jasper and Marian Sanfilippo Irrebtearust, dated
September 23, 1990, Jasper B. Sanfilippo, MariaBdRfilippo and Registrant, dated December 31, i7)

Amendment, dated February 12, 2004, to AmendedRastiited John B. Sanfilippo & Son, Inc. Split-Dollasurance
Agreement Number Two among Michael J. Valentindrastee of the Valentine Life Insurance Trust, Mas$ Valentine,
Mary Valentine and Registrant, dated December Q3 (")

The Registrar s Restated Supplemental Retirement (10)
Form of Option Grant Agreement under 1998 Equitehtive Plar®)
Amended and Restated Sanfilippo Value Added PlareddAugust 20, 2015, filed herew

Credit Agreement, dated as of February 7, 200&rayamong the Company, the financial institutiomsad therein as
lenders, Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC (“WFF”), as theranger and administrative agent for the lenderd, Wachovia
Capital Finance Corporation (Central), in its cafyags documentation age

Security Agreement, dated as of February 7, 2098h& Company in favor of WFF, as administrativersgor the
lenders1)

Loan Agreement, dated as of February 7, 2008, bybatween the Company and Transamerica Finandalhsurance
Company “TFLIC") A1)
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Exhibit

Number
10.1!
10.1¢
10.1°
10.1¢
10.1¢

10.2(

*10.21
*10.2z
*10.2¢
*10.24

*10.2¢

10.2¢
**10.27

10.2¢
10.2¢

10.3(

10.3:

Description

Mortgage, Security Agreement, Assignment of LeasesRents and Fixture Filing, dated as of FebrdaBg008, made by
the Company related to its Elgin, lllinois propefty the benefit of TFLICAL)

Mortgage, Security Agreement, Assignment of LeasebRents and Fixture Filing, dated as of FebrdaBg008, made by
JBSS Properties, LLC related to its Elgin, lllinpi®perty for the benefit of TFLI(11)

Deed of Trust, Security Agreement, Assignment aides and Rents and Fixture Filing, dated as ofuaepf7, 2008,
made by the Company related to its Gustine, Califoproperty for the benefit of TFLI11)

Deed of Trust, Security Agreement, Assignment aides and Rents and Fixture Filing, dated as ofuaepf7, 2008,
made by the Company related to its Garysburg, N@&tolina property for the benefit of TFL(11)

Promissory Note (Tranche A), dated February 7, 2008e principal amount of $36.0 million executadthe Company
in favor of TFLIC(11)

Promissory Note (Tranche B) dated February 7, 2008e principal amount of $9.0 million executedthe Company in
favor of TFLIC(1D)

The Registrar's 2008 Equity Incentive Plan, as amen(d)
First Amendment to the Registr’s 2008 Equity Incentive Plel3)
The Registrars Employee Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreemertenr2008 Equity Incentive P14

The Registrant’s First Form of Non-Employee Dired®estricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under 28Q8ity
Incentive Plar(14)

The Registrant’s Second Form of Non-Employee DireBestricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under 2B08ity
Incentive Plar(7?)

Form of Indemnification Agreeme (15)

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as ofdk&, 2010, by and among the Company, Wells F&aymital
Finance, LLC (f/k/a Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC), adender and administrative agent and Burdale Eiahhimited, as a
lender(16)

Form of Chang-of-Control Employment Security Agreement and -Compete(?)

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated aslpflb, 2011, by and among the Company, Wells F&agpital
Finance, LLC (f/k/a Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC), adender and administrative agent, and SouthwestgigeFarm Credit,
ACA for itself and as agent/nominee for Southwesbrgia Farm Credit, FLCA, as a lend18)

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as abfer 31, 2011, by and among the Company, Wellgd-@apital
Finance, LLC (f/k/a Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC), adender and administrative agent, and SouthwestgigeFarm Credit,
ACA, for itself and as agent/nominee for Southw@ebrgia Farm Credit, FLCA, as a lend19)

Consent and Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreemerteddas of January 22, 2013, by and among the Gompéells
Fargo Capital Finance, LLC (f/k/a Wells Fargo FalgthLC), as a lender and administrative agent] &outhwest
Georgia Farm Credit, ACA, for itself and as agemimee for Southwest Georgia Farm Credit, FLCAa &ndei(20)
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Exhibit
Number

10.32

10.33

*10.34
10.35

10.36

10.37
11.13
14
1520
21

22

23
2430
31.1
31.2
32.1

32.2

3:-100
101.INS
101.SCF
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAE
101.PRE

Description

Consent and Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreementdlas of December 16, 2013, by and among the Qomjgéells
Fargo Capital Finance, LLC (f/k/a Wells Fargo FalgthLC), as a lender and administrative agent] &outhwest Georgia
Farm Credit, ACA, for itself and as agent/nomineeSouthwest Georgia Farm Credit, FLCA, as a le(2D)

Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as pt&eber 30, 2014, by and among the Company, Walgd=Capital
Finance, LLC (f/k/a Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC), adender and administrative agent, and SouthwestdgeFarm Credit,
ACA, for itself and as agent/nominee for Southwasbrgia Farm Credit, FLCA, as a lend22)

The Registrar's 2014 Omnibus Incentive PI(23)

The Registrant’s Form of Non-Employee Director Rettd Stock Unit Award Agreement (non-deferrallen2014
Omnibus Plar®

The Registrant’'s Form of Non-Employee Director Rettd Stock Unit Award Agreement (deferral) undéd4 Omnibus
Plan(®)

The Registrar's Form of Employee Restricted Stock Unit Award Agmnent under 2014 Omnibus P(®)

Not applicable

The Registrar s Code of Ethics, as amended, filed here

Not applicable

Subsidiaries of the Registrant, filed herev

Not applicable

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, filed hahe

Not applicable

Certification of Jeffrey T. Sanfilippo pursuant3ection 302 of the Sarbai-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, filed here\
Certification of Michael J. Valentine pursuant tec8on 302 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, filed here\

Certification of Jeffrey T. Sanfilippo pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant taoBex@6 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, filed herev

Certification of Michael J. Valentine pursuant ® W.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant todse@@6 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, filed herev

Not applicable

XBRL Instance Document, filed herewi

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document, filed hvitte

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuéiled herewitr
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Documgfiied herewith
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documenédiherewitt
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doentnfiled herewitt
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*

*%

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
()
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)

(11)
(12)

(13)

(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)

(20)
(21)
(22)
(23)

Indicates a management contract or compensatonygplarrangemen

Confidential treatment has been requested fatipos of this exhibit. These portions have beeiitteth and submitted separately to the
Securities and Exchange Commissi

Incorporated by reference to the Registrantisdal Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year endende 28, 2012 (Commission File No.
0-19681).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrantisdal Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year enBedember 31, 1991 (Commission File
No. (-19681).

Incorporated by reference to the RegistranégiRration Statement on Form S-1 (Amendment NoR8yistration No. 33-43353, as filed
with the Commission on November 25, 1991 (Commissiile N0.0-19681).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrantisu@rly Report on Form 10-Q for the first quagaded September 24, 1998 (Commissior
File No. (-19681).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrantisu@rly Report on Form 10-Q for the second quateled December 28, 2000
(Commission File No.-19681).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrantiai@rly Report on Form 10-Q for the second quameled December 25, 2003
(Commission File No.-19681).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrantiai@rly Report on Form 1Q-for the third quarter ended March 25, 2004 (Cossioi File
No. (-19681).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrantisu@rly Report on Form 10-Q for the first quagaded September 25, 2014 (Commissior
File No. (-19681).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrantisdal Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year endede 30, 2005 (Commission File No.
0-19681).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrafatinual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 282007 (Commission File No. O-
19681).

Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's Current Report on Forn-K dated February 8, 2008 (Commission File N-19681).
Incorporated by reference to the Registra@Qtiarterly Report on Form 1Q-for the third quarter ended March 24, 2005 (Cossion File
No. (-19681).

Incorporated by reference to the Registra@tiarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the second quameled December 25, 2008
(Commission File No.-19681).

Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's Current Report on Forn-K dated November 12, 2009 (Commission File N-19681).
Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's Current Report on Forn-K dated May 5, 2009 (Commission File N-19681).

Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K dated March 12, 2010 (Commission File N-19681).
Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's Current Report on Forn-K dated January 31, 2011 (Commission File M-19681).
Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's Current Report on Forn-K dated July 18, 2011 (Commission File N-19681).
Incorporated by reference to the Registra@tiarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the first quagaded September 29, 2011 (Commissior
File No. (-19681).

Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's Current Report on Forn-K dated February 1, 2013 (Commission File N-19681).
Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's Current Report on Forn-K dated December 17, 2013 (Commission File M19681).
Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Current Report on Forn-K dated October 3, 2014 (Commission File N-19681).
Incorporated by reference to the Regisf's Current Report on Forn-8 dated October 28, 2014 (Commission File M-19681).
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Exhibit 3.2
AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS OF
JOHN B. SANFILIPPO & SON, INC.
A Delaware Corporation
(Adopted on August 20, 2015)
ARTICLE |
OFFICES

Section 1. Regqistered OfficéThe registered office of the corporation in that& of Delaware shall be at Corporation Trust €erit209
Orange Street, Wilmington, Delaware 19801. The nafitke corporatiors registered agent at such address is The Corporatist Company

Section 2. Other OfficesThe corporation may also have offices at suckrgbhaces, both within and without the State ofddelre, as th
board of directors may from time to time determamehe business of the corporation may require.

ARTICLE Il

MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS

Section 1. Place and Time of Meetingsn annual meeting of the stockholders shall Hd far the purpose of electing directors and
conducting such other business as may come bdfenm¢eting. The date, time and place, if any, efahnual meeting shall be determined by
resolution of the board of directors. Special magiof stockholders for any other purpose may Il dtesuch time and place, if any, within or
without the State of Delaware, as shall be statatlé notice of the meeting. Special meetings efstiockholders may be called at any time by
the Chief Executive Officer or the Chairman of Bward for any purpose and shall be called by treedary if directed by the board of
directors. The corporation may postpone, rescheatubancel any meeting of stockholders previoushesuled.

Section 2. Notice Whenever stockholders are required or permitiddke action at a meeting, notice stating thegyld@ny (or the
means of remote communication, if any), and dadar lof the meeting, the record date for determithegstockholders entitled to vote at the
meeting, if such date is different from the recdade for determining stockholders entitled to rmt€ the meeting, and, in the case of special
meetings, the purpose or purposes, of such mestialyjbe given to each stockholder entitled to ateuch meeting as of the record date for
determining the stockholders entitled to noticéhef meeting not less than 10 nor more than 60 blefgse the date of the meeting unless
otherwise provided by law, the certificate of inporation, or these bylaws. Notice may be givenqreaBy, by mail or by electronic
transmission in accordance with Section 232 ofGkaeral Corporation Law of the State of Delawdrendiled, such notice shall be deemed
given when deposited in the United States mailiggesprepaid, directed to each stockholder at statkholder’s address appearing on the
books of the corporation or given by the stockhofde such purpose. Notice by electronic transmisshall be deemed given as provided in
Section 232 of the General Corporation Law of tteteSof Delaware. An affidavit of the mailing ohet means of giving any notice of any
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stockholders’ meeting, executed by the Secretasgjstant Secretary or any transfer agent of thegotation giving the notice, shall be prima
facie evidence of the giving of such notice or mepiotice shall be deemed to have been givenl t@tkholders of record who share an
address if notice is given in accordance with theuseholding” rules set forth in Rule 14a-3(e) urttle Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”), and Section 233 efGeneral Corporation Law of the State of DelawAtiEndance of a person at a meeting
constitutes a waiver of notice of such meetingepxevhen the person attends for the express pugdadgecting at the beginning of the
meeting to the transaction of any business bedaesmeeting is not lawfully called or convened.

Section 3_Stockholders LisiThe officer having charge of the stock ledgethef corporation shall make, at least 10 days befeesy
meeting of the stockholders, a complete list ofdtoekholders entitled to vote at such meeting\joied, however, if the record date for
determining the stockholders entitled to vote s$slthan 10 days before the date of the meetindistrghall reflect the stockholders entitled to
vote as of the tenth day before the meeting dategnged in alphabetical order, specifying the aslslof and the number of shares registered i
the name of each stockholder. Such list shall dp the examination of any stockholder, for angppse germane to the meeting, at least 1
days prior to the meeting, (i) on a reasonably s&ibée electronic network, provided that the infation required to gain access to such list is
provided with the notice of meeting or (ii) duringdinary business hours at the principal placeusfriess of the corporation. If the meeting is
to be held at a place, then a list of stockholéatitled to vote at the meeting shall be producetikept at the time and place of the meeting
during the whole time thereof and may be examinedry stockholder who is present. If the meetinpise held solely by means of remote
communication, then the list shall also be opetiéoexamination of any stockholder during the whimree of the meeting on a reasonably
accessible electronic network, and the informateauired to access such list shall be provided thighnotice of the meeting. Except as
otherwise provided by law, the stock ledger shalthe only evidence as to who are the stockhoklaifed to examine the list of stockholders
required by this Article Il, Section 3 or to voteperson or by proxy at any meeting of stockholders

Section 4, Quorum; AdjournmenThe holders of capital stock representing a nitgjor voting power of the votes entitled to be tcag
stockholders entitled to vote at any annual or ighateeting of stockholders, present in persoreprasented by proxy, shall constitute a
guorum at such meeting of the stockholders, exagptherwise provided by statute or by the cedié®f incorporation. Shares of its own
stock belonging to the corporation or to anothepomtion, if a majority of the shares entitledstiie in the election of directors of such other
corporation is held, directly or indirectly, by therporation, shall neither be entitled to vote bercounted for quorum purposes; provided,
however, that the foregoing shall not limit thehtigf the corporation or any subsidiary of the awgtion to vote stock, including but not
limited to its own stock, held by it in a fiduciacapacity. If a quorum is not present, the holdéthe shares present in person or represent
proxy at the meeting, and entitled to vote therstaa)l have the power, by the affirmative votela holders of a majority in voting power of
such shares, to adjourn the meeting to anotherdimdéor place, if any. Unless the adjournmentiigriore than 30 days or unless a new recorc
date is set for the adjourned meeting, no notidh®fidjourned meeting need be given to any stddkhgrovided that the time and place, if
any, of the adjourned meeting (and the means ofteeommunication, if
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any, by which stockholders and proxy holders magéd@®med to be present in person at such adjoureeting) were announced at the mee
at which the adjournment was taken. At the adjodimeeting, the corporation may transact any busingsch might have been transacted at
the original meeting. If the adjournment is for mdinan 30 days, a notice of the adjourned meetialj se given to each stockholder of record
entitled to vote at the meeting. If after the adjonent a new record date for determination of dtotders entitled to vote is fixed for the
adjourned meeting, the board of directors shalbfixhe record date for determining stockholdetisleh to notice of such adjourned meeting
the same or an earlier date as that fixed for detation of stockholders entitled to vote at thgpathed meeting, and shall give notice of the
adjourned meeting to each stockholder of recomf dse record date so fixed for notice of such adjed meeting.

Section 5. Vote RequiredJnless otherwise required by law, the certifiaaftencorporation, these bylaws, the rules and lagmns of any
stock exchange applicable to the corporation osymmt to any other regulation applicable to th@aration or its stockholders, when a quol
is present or represented by proxy at any meetirgaffirmative vote of the holders of shares repnting a majority of the votes entitled to be
cast by holders of the shares present in persogpoesented by proxy at the meeting and entitlaadte on the subject shall be the act of the
stockholders. Where a separate vote by class ssadeor series is required, the affirmative votdefholders of shares representing a majority
of the votes entitled to be cast by the holdershafres of such class or classes or series prespetson or represented by proxy at the meetin
and entitled to vote on the subject shall be thefsuch class or classes or series.

Section 6. Voting RightsExcept as otherwise provided by the General Qatjom Law of the State of Delaware or by the iedte of
incorporation or any amendments thereto and sutgdabie provisions of Section 3 of Article VI hefeevery stockholder shall at every mee
of the stockholders be entitled to one vote in @eis by proxy for each share of capital stocktkttito vote on the subject held by such
stockholder.

Section 7. ProxiesEach stockholder entitled to vote at a meetingtotkholders or to express consent or disserirmocate action in
writing without a meeting may authorize anotherspearor persons to act for him, her or it by prdsyt no such proxy shall be voted or acted
upon after three years from its date, unless theypprovides for a longer period.

Section 8. Action by Written Consenfiny action required to be taken at any annuaip@cial meeting of stockholders of the corpora
or any action which may be taken at any annuapecigl meeting of such stockholders, may be taki#mowt a meeting, without prior notice
and without a vote, if a consent in writing, segtiiorth the action so taken, shall be signed byhthiders of outstanding stock having not less
than the minimum number of votes that would be ss&@ey to authorize or take such action at a meatimghich all shares entitled to vote
thereon were present and voted, and shall be detive the corporation by delivery to its registeodfice in the State of Delaware or the
corporation’s principal place of business or arceff or agent of the corporation having custodthefbooks in which proceedings of meetings
of stockholders are recorded. Every such writtamseat shall bear the date of signature of eaclkistdder who signs the consent, and no
written consent shall be effective to take the oaape action referred to therein unless, withird&@s of the earliest dated consent delivered to
the corporation as required by this section, writtensents signed by the holders of a sufficient

3



number of shares to take such corporate actioreateded. Prompt notice of the taking of any coapmaction without a meeting by less than
unanimous written consent shall be given to thesekbolders who have not consented in writing ahd wif the action had been taken at a
meeting, would have been entitled to notice ofriteeting if the record date for notice of such mmgtiad been the date the written consents
signed by holders of a sufficient number of shéoeske the action were delivered to the corporathny action taken pursuant to such writter
consent of the stockholders shall have the sance fand effect as if taken by the stockholdersragating thereof.

Section 9. Business Combinations with Interestedi@tolders The corporation expressly elects not to be gaetby the provisions of
Section 203 of the General Corporation Law of tteteSof Delaware.

Section 10. Notice of Stockholder Business and Matimns.

(A) Annual Meetings of Stockholders

(1) Nominations of persons for election to the lloafrdirectors of the corporation and the propasailther business to be considered by
the stockholders may be made at an annual medtistgakholders only (a) pursuant to the corporasiomtice of meeting (or any supplement
thereto), (b) by or at the direction of the boafdiioectors or any committee thereof or (c) by atyckholder of the corporation who was a
stockholder of record of the corporation at theetitine applicable notice provided for in this Artid¢l, Section 10 is delivered to the Secretal
the corporation, who is entitled to vote at the timge(and, in the case of nhominations, on the glaaf the nominee) and who complies with
the applicable notice procedures set forth in Aigcle II, Section 10.

(2) For any nominations or other business to bpenty brought before an annual meeting by a stocdigursuant to clause (c) of
paragraph (A)(1) of this Article I, Section 10 ¢ba a “Stockholder Proposal”), the stockholder nigste given timely notice thereof in writing
to the Secretary of the corporation and any suopgsed business other than the nominations of peffeo election to the board of directors
must constitute a proper matter for stockholdeoactTo be timely for any Stockholder Proposal éstthan nominations of directors elected
solely by Class A stockholders (a “Class A Nomioatt)), a stockholder’s notice shall be deliveredhe Secretary at the principal executive
offices of the corporation not later than the clobbusiness on the 90th day, nor earlier tharckhge of business on the 120th day, prior to the
first anniversary of the preceding year’'s annuagting (provided, however, that in the event thatdate of the annual meeting is more than 3
days before or more than 70 days after such ars@vedate, notice by the stockholder must be swated not earlier than the close of
business on the 120th day prior to such annualingeahd not later than the close of business ottetiee of the 90th day prior to such annual
meeting or the 10th day following the day on whictblic announcement of the date of such meetiffigsismade by the corporation). To be
timely for any Class A Nomination, a Class A stookler's notice shall be delivered to the Secretdrhe principal executive offices of the
corporation not later than the close of businestheré0th day, nor earlier than the close of bussiren the 120th day, prior to the first
anniversary of the preceding yeagnnual meeting (provided, however, that in trenéthat the date of the annual meeting is mone &@aday:
before or more than 70 days after such



anniversary date, notice by the stockholder musich@elivered not earlier than the close of busiresthe 120th day prior to such annual
meeting and not later than the close of businesb@iater of the 60th day prior to such annualtingeor the 10th day following the day on
which public announcement of the date of such mgas first made by the corporation). In no evdralsthe public announcement of an
adjournment or postponement of an annual meetingreence a new time period (or extend any time pgficthe giving of a stockholder’s
notice as described above. Any stockholder’'s natfwl set forth (other than the notice for anysSlA Nomination): (a) as to each person
whom the stockholder proposes to nominate for igle@s a director (i) all information relating toch person that is required to be disclosed i
solicitations of proxies for election of directansan election contest, or is otherwise requiradsach case pursuant to and in accordance with
Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act and the rulesragdlations promulgated thereunder, and (ii) quefson’s written consent to being named
in the proxy statement as a nominee and to seasradirector if elected; (b) as to any other essrthat the stockholder proposes to bring
before the meeting, a brief description of the bess desired to be brought before the meetindgettef the proposal or business (including
the text of any resolutions proposed for considenadnd in the event that such business inclugesgosal to amend the bylaws of the
corporation, the language of the proposed amendntbetreasons for conducting such business ahtreting and any material interest in suct
business of such stockholder and the beneficiakowhany, on whose behalf the proposal is madd;(a) as to the stockholder giving the
notice and the beneficial owner, if any, on whoskalf the nomination or proposal is made (i) theme@nd address of such stockholder, as
they appear on the corporation’s books, and of &ecteficial owner, (ii) the class or series and benof shares of capital stock of the
corporation which are owned beneficially and oforelicby such stockholder and such beneficial owfii@ra description of any agreement,
arrangement or understanding with respect to tineimation or proposal between or among such stoden@nd/or such beneficial owner, any
of their respective affiliates or associates, amg@hers acting in concert with any of the foregpiincluding, in the case of a nomination, the
nominee, (iv) a description of any agreement, areament or understanding (including any derivativstmrt positions, profit interests, optio
warrants, convertible securities, stock appreamatiosimilar rights, hedging transactions, and ®eed or loaned shares) that has been entere
into as of the date of the stockholdenotice by, or on behalf of, such stockholder sunch beneficial owners, whether or not such insemmor
right shall be subject to settlement in underlysh@res of capital stock of the corporation, theatfor intent of which is to mitigate loss to,
manage risk or benefit of share price changesfdncrease or decrease the voting power of, staadkisolder or such beneficial owner, with
respect to securities of the corporation, (v) aeepntation that the stockholder is a holder afmetof stock of the corporation entitled to vot
such meeting and intends to appear in person prdxy at the meeting to propose such businessmination, (vi) a representation whether
the stockholder or the beneficial owner, if anyeids or is part of a group which intends (a) tivdea proxy statement and/or form of proxy
to holders of at least the percentage of the catjr's outstanding capital stock required to agpror adopt the proposal or elect the nomine
and/or (b) otherwise to solicit proxies or votemnirstockholders in support of such proposal or mation, and (vii) any other information
relating to such stockholder and beneficial owifemny, required to be disclosed in a proxy statenoe other filings required to be made in
connection with solicitations of proxies for, aphgable, the proposal and/or for the electionioéctors in an election contest pursuant to and
in accordance with Section 14(a) of the Exchange



Act and the rules and regulations promulgated tireter. Any Class A stockholder’s notice for anysslé Nomination shall set forth: (a) as to
each person whom the Class A stockholder propasesnhinate for election as a director all inforroatrelating to such person that is requirec
to be disclosed under the applicable portions odigraphs (a) and (b) of Item 7 of Schedule 14/efExchange Act and (b) as to the
stockholder giving the notice and the beneficiahew if any, on whose behalf the Class A Nominaisomade (i) the name and address of
stockholder, as they appear on the corporationdéscand of such beneficial owner, (ii) the numtfe€lass A shares of the corporation which
are owned beneficially and of record by such stotdér and such beneficial owner, (iii) a descriptad any agreement, arrangement or
understanding with respect to the Class A Nomimalietween or among such stockholder and/or sucéfioeal owner, any of their respective
affiliates or associates, and any others actirgpircert with any of the foregoing, including theminee, and (iv) a representation that the
stockholder is a holder of record of Class A stotthe corporation entitled to vote at such meeéind intends to appear in person or by proxy
at the meeting to propose such nomination. Thegfong notice requirements of this Article Il, Sectil0 shall be deemed satisfied by a
stockholder with respect to business other thaonaimation if the stockholder has notified the caogtimn of his, her or its intention to preser
proposal at an annual meeting in compliance witiliegble rules and regulations promulgated undeigkchange Act and such stockholder’s
proposal has been included in a proxy statemehhtmbeen prepared by the corporation to solioiips for such annual meeting. The
corporation may require any proposed nominee toighrsuch other information as it may reasonaldyire to determine the eligibility of su
proposed nominee to serve as a director of theocatipn.

(3) Notwithstanding anything in the second sentexfqearagraph (A)(2) of this Article 1l, Section 1®@the contrary, in the event that the
number of directors to be elected to the boardrefctbrs of the corporation at the annual meetynghie holders of common stock is increased
effective after the time period for which nominaitsowvould otherwise be due under paragraph (A)(2hisfArticle 1, Section 10 and there is
public announcement by the corporation naming thminees for the additional directorships at le&&t days prior to the first anniversary of
the preceding year’s annual meeting, the applicabtiee (by a holder of common stock) requiredHag Article 11, Section 10 shall also be
considered timely, but only with respect to nomafe the additional directorships to be voted upgithe holders of common stock, if it shall
be delivered to the Secretary at the principal etree offices of the corporation not later than these of business on the 10th day following
the day on which such public announcement of arease in the number of directors to be electedhbyhblders of common stock is first made
by the corporation.

(4) Notwithstanding anything in the third sentent@aragraph (A)(2) of this Article I, Section 1®@the contrary, in the event that the
number of directors to be elected to the boardrettbrs of the corporation at the annual meetingdiders of Class A stock is increased
effective within ten (10) days preceding or aftex time period for which nominations would othemvie due under paragraph (A)(2) of this
Article 1l, Section 10, the applicable notice (bhalder of Class A stock) required by this ArtitleSection 10 shall also be considered timely,
but only with respect to nominees for the additlatieectorships to be voted upon by the holder€laks A stock, if it shall be delivered to the
Secretary at the principal executive offices of ¢bgporation not later than the close of businesthe 10th day following the day on which
such public announcement of an increase in the puwitdirectors to be elected by the holders oE€a stock is first made by the corporat
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(B) Special Meetings of Stockholder®nly such business shall be conducted at a dpereiting of stockholders as shall have been
brought before the meeting pursuant to the cormratnotice of meeting. Nominations of personsdtarction to the board of directors may be
made at a special meeting of stockholders at wdliiettors are to be elected pursuant to the cotipora notice of meeting (1) by or at the
direction of the board of directors or any comneitteereof or (2) provided that the board of direxttas determined that directors shall be
elected at such meeting, by any stockholder otthporation who is a stockholder of record at thetthe applicable notice provided for in
this Article 1, Section 10 is delivered to the 8stary of the corporation, who is entitled to vatehe meeting and on the election of the
nominee and who complies with the applicable ngiiceedures set forth in this Article Il, Sectidh In the event the corporation calls a
special meeting of stockholders for the purposel@iting one or more directors to the board ofalines, any such stockholder entitled to vote
in such election of directors may nominate a persgoersons (as the case may be) for electiondb pasition(s) as specified in the
corporation’s notice of meeting, if (1) the stoclde’s (other than Class A stockholders with respeat@ass A Nomination) applicable not
required by paragraph (A)(2) of this Article I, en 10 shall be delivered to the Secretary aptiircipal executive offices of the corporation
not earlier than the close of business on the 1@&yhprior to such special meeting and not latantine close of business on the later of the
90th day prior to such special meeting or the Hah following the day on which public announcemisriirst made of the date of the special
meeting and of the nominees proposed by the bdatulextors to be elected at such meeting or (8)Glass A stockholder’s (with respect to a
Class A Nomination) applicable notice required layggraph (A)(2) of this Article Il, Section 10 shaé delivered to the Secretary at the
principal executive offices of the corporation eatlier than the close of business on the 120thpday to such special meeting and not later
than the close of business on the later of the @&yhprior to such special meeting or the 10thfd#lgwing the day on which public
announcement is first made of the date of the apaweting and of the nominees proposed by thedbafaglirectors to be elected at such
meeting. In no event shall the public announceméan adjournment or postponement of a specialinggebmmence a new time period (or
extend any time period) for the giving of a stodkleo’s notice as described above.

(C) General

(1) Except as otherwise expressly provided in gplieable rule or regulation promulgated underBxehange Act, only such persons
who are nominated in accordance with the procedsge®rth in this Article Il, Section 10 shall bkgible to be elected at an annual or specia
meeting of stockholders of the corporation to sewelirectors and only such business shall be aedat a meeting of stockholders as shall
have been brought before the meeting in accordaitbehe procedures set forth in this Article Ie@ion 10. Except as provided by law or the
certificate of incorporation, the chairman of theeting shall have the power and duty (a) to deteemihether a nomination or any business
proposed to be brought before the meeting was magmposed, as the case may be, in accordanceheithrocedures set forth in this Article
II, Section 10 (including whether the stockholdebeneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the maation or proposal is made solicited (or is
part of a group which solicited) or did



not so solicit, as the case may be, proxies orsviotsupport of such stockholder's nominee or psabi compliance with such stockholder’s
representation as required by clause (A)(2)(c)fthis Article 1, Section 10) and (b) if any proged nomination or business was not made o
proposed in compliance with this Article 1, Sectib0, to declare that such nomination shall beederded or that such proposed business shi
not be transacted. Notwithstanding the foregoirayigions of this Article Il, Section 10, unless etWise required by law or the certificate of
incorporation, if the stockholder (or a qualifiempresentative of the stockholder) does not apgaheannual or special meeting of
stockholders of the corporation to present a notitinar proposed business, such nomination shalisregarded and such proposed busines
shall not be transacted, notwithstanding that @®i respect of such vote may have been receivéuebcorporation. For purposes of this
Article Il, Section 10, to be considered a quatifrepresentative of the stockholder, a person imst duly authorized officer, manager or
partner of such stockholder or must be authorized Writing executed by such stockholder or antedeic transmission delivered by such
stockholder to act for such stockholder as proxhatmeeting of stockholders and such person nragiupe such writing or electronic
transmission, or a reliable reproduction of thetingi or electronic transmission, at the meetingtotkholders.

(2) For purposes of this Article Il, Section 10utgic announcemenghall include disclosure in a press release regdryethe Dow Jone
News Service, Associated Press or comparable rétiws service or in a document publicly filedtbg corporation with the Securities &
Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 13, 14) bf the Exchange Act and the rules and reguiatpromulgated thereunder.

(3) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions ofstiirticle I, Section 10, a stockholder shall atemnply with all applicable requireme!
of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulatisomplgated thereunder with respect to the mattrfosth in this Article I, Section 10;
provided however, that any references in thesensyta the Exchange Act or the rules and regulatmosmulgated thereunder are not intendec
to and shall not limit any requirements applicabl@ominations or proposals as to any other busiteebe considered pursuant to this Article
I, Section 10 (including paragraphs (A)(1)(c) 4Bd hereof), and compliance with paragraphs (AX{Land (B) of this Article I, Section 10
shall be the exclusive means for a stockholderakemominations or submit other business (othar, tha provided in the penultimate sente
of (A)(2), business other than nominations broygbperly under and in compliance with Rule 14a-gef Exchange Act, as may be amendec
from time to time). Nothing in this Article 1, Seen 10 shall be deemed to affect any rights (agtotkholders to request inclusion of propo
or nominations in the corporation’s proxy statenmmmisuant to applicable rules and regulations pigatad under the Exchange Act or (b) of
the holders of any series of preferred stock totel@ectors pursuant to any applicable provisiohthe certificate of incorporation.

Section 11, OrganizationMeetings of stockholders shall be presided oyehk Chairman of the Board or, in the absenc@ef t
Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive Offioerin the absence of the Chairman of the Boardth@dhief Executive Officer, by the
President or, in the absence of the Chairman oBted, the Chief Executive Officer and the Presidby the Chief Financial Officer, orin t
absence of all of the foregoing, by a person dedéeghby the board of directors, or in the absefieeperson so designated by the board of
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directors, by a chairman chosen at the meetindpdyolders of a majority in voting power of theckt@ntitled to vote thereat, present in pel

or represented by proxy. The Secretary, or in hiseo absence, an Assistant Secretary, or in theraie of the Secretary and all Assistant
Secretaries, a person whom the chairman of theimgeshall appoint, shall act as secretary of thetmg and keep a record of the proceeding:s
thereof. The board of directors may adopt by ragmiusuch rules and regulations for the condutchefmeeting of stockholders as it shall de
appropriate. Except to the extent inconsistent witbh rules and regulations as adopted by the hidatidectors, the chairman of the meeting
shall have the right and authority to convene dodgny or no reason) to recess and/or adjourmibeting, to prescribe such rules, regulation:
and procedures and to do all such acts as, iutdenjent of such chairman of the meeting, are apjatepfor the proper conduct of the meet
Such rules, regulations or procedures, whethertaddpy the board of directors or prescribed byctieirman of the meeting, may include,
without limitation, the following: (i) the establisment of an agenda or order of business for theintg€ii) rules and procedures for
maintaining order at the meeting and the safethade present; (iii) limitations on attendancergparticipation in the meeting to stockholders
of record of the corporation, their duly authorized! constituted proxies or such other personseashtairman of the meeting shall determine;
(iv) restrictions on entry to the meeting after timee fixed for the commencement thereof; andifwjtations on the time allotted to question
comments by participants. The chairman of the mgetn addition to making any other determinatitivet may be appropriate to the conduct
of the meeting, shall, if the facts warrant, deteerand declare to the meeting that a matter dnbas was not properly brought before the
meeting and if such chairman should so determimgh shairman shall so declare to the meeting, agdach matter or business not properly
brought before the meeting shall not be transaatednsidered. Unless and to the extent deternbgatie board of directors or the chairman
of the meeting, meetings of stockholders shallbeotequired to be held in accordance with the rolgmarliamentary procedure.

Section 12, Inspectors of Election; Opening andsiblpthe Polls Prior to any meeting of stockholders, the bodrdiectors, the Chief
Executive Officer, the Chairman of the Board, theef Financial Officer, the President or any otbfficer designated by the board of directors
shall appoint one or more inspectors, who shalehlthe powers and duties set forth in Section 23thefseneral Corporation Law of the State
of Delaware as currently in effect or as the sarag hereafter be amended or replaced, which inspgegtay include individuals who serve the
corporation in other capacities, including, withémtitation, as officers, employees, agents orespntatives, to act at such meeting and make
written report thereof and may designate one orempersons as alternate inspectors to replace apgadtor who fails to act. If no inspector or
alternate has been appointed to act or is ablettata meeting of stockholders, the chairman efntieeting shall appoint one or more inspe:
to act at the meeting. Each inspector, before digghg his or her duties, shall take and sign dh faathfully to execute the duties of inspector
with strict impartiality and according to the be$his or her ability. The inspectors shall have dluties prescribed by law. The chairman of the
meeting shall fix and announce at the meeting #ie dnd time of the opening and the closing ofptits for each matter upon which the
stockholders will vote at a meeting.




ARTICLE Il
DIRECTORS

Section 1. Number, Election and Term of Offidexcept as otherwise provided or contemplatechbycertificate of incorporation, the
number of directors may be fixed at any time soblyesolution adopted by a majority of the boafrdicectors, and may not be fixed by any
other person or persons; provided, however, thatot® to decrease the number of the directorsetthiporation shall shorten the term of any
incumbent director. The directors shall be elettga plurality of votes of the shares present irs@e or represented by proxy at the annual
meeting of stockholders and entitled to vote onefleetion of such directors, except as provide8dntion 3 of this Article 11l and except as
provided in the certificate of incorporation, eatitector elected shall hold office until the nerhaal meeting of stockholders and until his or
her successor is duly elected and qualified of tigior her death, resignation or removal as hefetr provided.

Section 2. ResignationAny director may resign at any time upon writtgrelectronic notice to the corporation. Such nestgn shall
take effect at the time specified therein (ancbitime be specified, at the time of its receipthy board of directors) and unless otherwise
specified therein no acceptance of such resignatiali be necessary to make it effective unleseratise specified therein.

Section 3. VacanciesExcept as provided by the certificate of incogtmm or these bylaws, vacancies and newly creditedtorships
resulting from any increase in the authorized nunabelirectors may only be filled by a majority thie directors then in office though less thar
a quorum, or by a sole remaining director. When#vetholders of any class or classes of stockrmesthereof are entitled to elect one or n
directors by the certificate of incorporation, vaci@s and newly created directorships of such dastasses or series may only be filled by a
majority of the directors elected by such claselasses or series thereof then in office, or bystile remaining director so elected. Each
director so chosen shall hold office until the nexhual meeting of stockholders and until a suazassuly elected and qualified or until his
her earlier death, resignation or removal.

Section 4. Annual MeetingsThe annual meeting of each newly elected boadirettors shall be held without other notice tttzin by-
law immediately after, and at the same place a&satimual meeting of stockholders.

Section 5. Other Meetings and NotidRegular meetings, other than the annual meatifnpe board of directors may be held without
notice at such time and at such place as shall from to time be determined by resolution of thardoof directors. Special meetings of the
board of directors may be called by or at the regjaéthe Chief Executive Officer or Chairman o€ tBoard on at least 24 hours’ notice to eac
director, either personally, by telephone, by nmailby other means of electronic transmissionikia inanner and on like notice the Secretary
must call a special meeting on the written reqoést majority of directors.

Section 6. Quorum; Vote Required for ActioA majority of the total number of directors shadinstitute a quorum for the transaction of
business. The vote of a majority of directors pnés¢ a meeting at which a quorum is present &leathe act of the board of directors. If a
qguorum shall not be present at any meeting of taedof directors, the directors present thereat adgourn the meeting from time to time,
without notice other than announcement at the meggtintil a quorum shall be present.
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Section 7._CommitteesThe corporation elects to be governed by Sedtitir(c)(2) of the General Corporation Law of thet&tat
Delaware. The board of directors may designateoomeore committees. Each committee will consistroé or more of the directors of the
corporation which, to the extent provided in suesotution and not otherwise limited by statute|ldi@ve and may exercise the powers of the
board of directors in the management and affaite®@torporation. The board of directors may destigione or more directors as alternate
members of any committee, who may replace any alosatisqualified member at any meeting of the catte®. Such committee or
committees shall have such name or names as magt&emined from time to time by resolution adopigdhe board of directors. Each
committee shall keep regular minutes of its meatiagd report the same to the full board of directanen required or directed to do so.

Section 8. Committee Rule€ach committee of the board of directors mayté>own rules of procedure and shall hold its nregtias
provided by such rules, except as may otherwigertweided by the resolution of the board of direstdesignating such committee, but in all
cases the presence of at least a majority of thabaes of such committee shall be necessary toitaesa quorum. In the event that a membe
and that member’s alternate, if alternates aregdaséd by the board of directors as provided ini&e@ of this Article IIl, of such committee
is/are absent or disqualified, the member or memti@reof present at any meeting and not disgedlffiom voting, whether or not such
member or members constitute a quorum, may unarsipappoint another member of the board of directoract at the meeting in place of
any such absent or disqualified member.

Section 9. Telephonic Meetings Permittddembers of the board of directors or any comritteereof may participate in and act at any
meeting of such board or committee through theofiseconference telephone or other communicatigngpenent by means of which all
persons participating in the meeting can hear e#fér, and participation in the meeting pursuarthi® section shall constitute presence in
person at the meeting.

Section 10, Action by Unanimous Consent of Direstgkny action required or permitted to be takenrgt meeting of the board of
directors, or of any committee thereof, may be takéhout a meeting if all members of the boar¢d@mmittee, as the case may be, consent
thereto in writing or by electronic transmissiondahe writing or writings (or electronic transms or transmissions) are filed with the
minutes of proceedings of the board or committegpplicable.

ARTICLE IV
OFFICERS

Section 1. NumberThe officers of the corporation shall be eledigdhe board of directors and shall consist of aifhan of the Board,
if any is elected, a Chief Executive Officer, a €ftfrinancial Officer, a President, one or more Miresidents (any one or more of whom may
be designated as Senior Executive Vice-Presidewive Vice-President or Senior Vice-Presidemtyecretary, a Treasurer, and such othel
officers and assistant officers as may be deemeessary or desirable by the board of directors. Aunyber of offices may be held by the
same persons. In its discretion, the board of threanay choose not to fill any office for any petias it may deem advisable, except the of
of Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial OfficdPresident and Secretary.
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Section 2_Election and Term of Offic&he officers of the corporation shall be eledeadually by the board of directors at the first
meeting of the board of directors held after eautual meeting of stockholders. If the election fiicers shall not be held at such meeting, !
election shall be held as soon thereafter as caentyy may be. Vacancies of newly created offices/roe filled at any meeting of the board of
directors. Each officer shall hold office until thext annual meeting of the board of directorsamiil a successor is duly elected and qualified
or until his or her earlier death, resignationemoval as hereinafter provided.

Section 3. RemovalAny officer or agent elected by the board of cioes may be removed, either with or without cabsethe board of
directors but such removal shall be without prejadd the contract rights, if any, of the persomesnoved.

Section 4. VacanciesA vacancy in any office because of death, resignaremoval, disqualification or otherwise, mayyobe filled by
the board of directors for the unexpired portiorihef term by the board of directors then in office.

Section 5, The Chief Executive OfficeThe Chief Executive Officer shall be the chieéeutive officer of the corporation and shall in
general supervise and control all of the businesisadfairs of the corporation. In the absence ef@mairman of the Board, the Chief Executive
Officer shall preside at all meetings of the stadilers and of the board of directors. He may signdeeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts or
other instruments which the board of directorsduzthorized to be executed, except in cases whersighing and execution thereof shall be
expressly delegated by the board of directors ahbge bylaws to some other officer or agent ofttihr@oration or shall be required by law to
be otherwise signed or executed. In general, thef@&xecutive Officer shall perform all duties ideint to the office of the Chief Executive
Officer of the corporation and such other dutiemay be prescribed by the board of directors frione to time.

Section 6. The Chairman of the Boafthe Chairman of the Board shall be deemed aneffif the corporation, subject to the control of
the board of directors, and shall report direatlytte board of directors. The Chairman of the Baduall preside at all meetings of the
stockholders and of the board of directors.

Section 7._The Chief Financial OfficelThe Chief Financial Officer shall be the chiefdncial officer of the corporation and shall in
general keep and maintain, or caused to kept amttaimged, adequate books and records of accountegdroperties and business transaction
of the corporation. He may sign any deeds, mortgagends, contracts or other instruments whictbtteed of directors has authorized to be
executed, except in cases where the signing ardigae thereof shall be expressly delegated bybtieed of directors or by these bylaws to
some other officer or agent of the corporationtalisbe required by law to be otherwise signedxarcated. In general, the Chief Financial
Officer shall perform all duties incident to thdioé of the Chief Financial Officer of the corpdoat and such other duties as may be prescribe
from time to time by the board of directors, thaeElxecutive Officer or the Chairman of the Bodrdthe absence of the Chief Executive
Officer, the Chairman of the
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Board, and the President, the Chief Financial @ffghall preside at all meetings of the stockhalderd of the board of directors. In the abs
of the Chief Executive Officer and the Presideninahe event of the Chief Executive Officer’s ahd Presidens inability or refusal to act, tl
Chief Financial Officer shall perform the dutiestbé Chief Executive Officer and, when so actinmlshave all the powers of and be subje:
all the restrictions upon the Chief Executive Gdfic

Section 8, The PresidenThe President shall be the chief administratiffieer of the corporation and shall, subject tcediion by the
Chief Executive Officer, in general supervise andtool all of the operations of the corporationthie absence of the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chairman of the Board, the President phedlide at all meetings of the stockholders artti@board of directors. In the absence of the
Chief Executive Officer or in the event of his il or refusal to act, the President shall pemiche duties of the Chief Executive Officer a
when so acting, shall have all the powers of andutgect to all the restrictions upon the Chief &xeve Officer. The President may sign
certificates for shares of the corporation, anyddeenortgages, bonds, contracts or other instruisnehich the board of directors has authori
to be executed except in cases where the exedhtoaof shall be expressly delegated by the bokditectors or by these bylaws to some
other officer or agent of the corporation or sl&lrequired by law to be otherwise executed. Ireganthe President shall perform all duties
incident to the office of President and chief adstnative officer of the corporation and such ottleties as may be prescribed from time to
time by the board of directors, the Chief Executdfficer or the Chairman of the Board.

Section 9. VicePresidents Subject to the Chief Financial Officer's assuroptof the duties of the Chief Executive Officersas forth in
Article IV, Section 7, in the absence of the Presidbr in the event of his inability or refusaldet, the Vice-President (or in the event there is
more than one Vice-President, then in the followander — the Senior Executive Vice-President, thedgtive Vice-President and thereafter
any Senior Vice-President in the order designaied) the absence of any designation, then in therof their election) shall perform the
duties of the President, including, without limitett, the duties of the Chief Executive Officer ifdaas assumed by the President as a result of
the absence of the Chief Executive Officer or hability or refusal to act, and the Vice-Presideviien so acting, shall have all of the powers
and be subject to all the restrictions upon theiBemt. Any Vice-President may sign, with the Stareor Assistant Secretary, certificates for
shares of the corporation. Each Vice-President pkaiorm such other duties as from time to timeyrba assigned to him by the Chief
Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, t@fairman of the Board, the President or the bo&directors.

Section 10. Treasurelf required by the board of directors, the Treasshall give a bond for the faithful dischargenaf duties in such
sum and with such surety or sureties as the bdadtextors shall determine. He shall have chargtaistody of and be responsible for all
funds and securities of the corporation, receivk giae receipts for moneys due and payable to dngocation from any source whatsoever,
deposit all such moneys in the name of the corpmran such banks, trust companies or other depasit as shall be selected in accordance
with the provisions of these bylaws. The Treasahail in general perform all the duties incidenttte office of Treasurer and such other dutie
as from time to time may be assigned to him byGhef Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Offic¢ghe Chairman of the Board, the
President or the board of directors.
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Section 11, SecretaryThe Secretary shall: (a) keep records of corpaaation, including the minutes of meetings ofgteckholders and
the board of directors in one or more books prayifie that purpose; (b) see that all notices atg diven in accordance with the provisions of
these bylaws or as required by law; (c) be custodfahe corporate records and of the seal of thparation and see that the seal of the
corporation is affixed to all certificates for shamprior to the issuance thereof and to all docusyéime execution of which on behalf of the
corporation under its seal is duly authorized iocadance with the provisions of these bylaws; @hka register of the post office address of
each stockholder which shall be furnished to ther&ary by such stockholder; (e) sign, with thesRlent or a Vice-President, certificates for
shares of the corporation, the issuance of whiell Bave been authorized by resolution of the baédirectors; (f) have general charge of the
stock transfer books of the corporation; and (ggeneral, perform all duties incident to the offafeSecretary and such other duties as from
time to time may be assigned to him by the Chieddtive Officer, the Chairman of the Board, thee€iinancial Officer, the President or the
board of directors.

Section 12, Assistant Treasurers and Assistanegg@s. The Assistant Treasurers shall, if required keylibard of directors, give bonds
for the faithful discharge of their duties in sugtims and with such sureties as the board of direstall determine. The Assistant Secretaries
as thereunto authorized by the board of directag sign, with the President or a Vice-Presidentjfamates for shares of the corporation, the
issuance of which shall have been authorized ®galution of the board of directors. The AssistEretasurers and Assistant Secretaries in
general shall perform such duties as shall be msditp them by the Treasurer or the Secretaryeotisely, or by the Chief Executive Officer,
the Chief Financial Officer, the Chairman of theaBa) the President or the board of directors.

Section 13, Other Officers, Assistant Officers &agbnts. Officers, assistant officers and agents if alyepthan those whose duties are
provided for in these bylaws, shall have such aitthand perform such duties as may from time tteetibe prescribed by resolution of the
board of directors.

ARTICLE V

INDEMNIFICATION AND ADVANCEMENT OF EXPENSES

Section 1. IndemnificationTo the fullest extent permitted by applicable s\t exists now or is hereafter amended, thearatipn shall
indemnify and hold harmless any person (a “cov@erdon”) who was or is a party or is threateneoetonade a party to any threatened,
pending or completed action, suit or proceedinggtivér civil, criminal, administrative or investigat by reason of the fact that he or she or a
person for whom he or she is the legal represeetétior was a director or officer of the corpavatior, while a director or officer of the
corporation, is or was serving at the request efcirporation as a director, officer, employeea@ent of another corporation, partnership, join
venture, trust, or other enterprise (including serwith respect to employee benefit plans), agatdiability and loss suffered and expenses
(including attorneys’ fees) actually and reasonaityirred by him or her.
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Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, exceptreswise provided in Section 3 of this Article Yigtcorporation shall be required
indemnify a covered person in connection with actjoa, suit or proceeding (or part thereof) comneshby such covered person only if the
commencement of such action, suit or proceedingddrthereof) by the covered person was authoiizéte specific case by the board of
directors of the corporation. The termination of action, suit or proceeding by judgment, ordett/ement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo
contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itseleate a presumption that the person did nonagbod faith and in a manner which he or she
reasonably believed to be in or not opposed td#st interest of the corporation, and, with resp@einy criminal action or proceeding, had
reasonable cause to believe that his or her comdagunlawful.

Section 2. Indemnification When Successful in Deéeaf Action. To the extent that a present or former directasfficer of the
corporation has been successful on the meritsh@retse in defense of any action, suit or procegdéferred to in Section 1 of this Article V
or in defense of any claim, issue or matter thetdeénor she shall be indemnified against all expermcluding attorneys’ fees) actually and
reasonably incurred by him or her in connectiometéth.

Section 3. ClaimsIf a claim for indemnification (following the fai disposition of such action, suit or proceediogadvancement of
expenses under this Article V is not paid in fuithin 30 days after a written claim therefor by ttevered person has been received by the
corporation, the covered person may file suit tover the unpaid amount of such claim and, if sssftg in whole or in part, shall be entitlec
be paid the expense of prosecuting such claimegdutlfest extent permitted by law. In any suchatthe corporation shall have the burden of
proving that the covered person is not entitletheorequested indemnification or advancement oéeses under applicable law.

Section 4. Advancement of Expens@he corporation shall to the fullest extent natipbited by applicable law pay the expenses
(including attorneys’ fees) incurred by a coveredspn in defending any action, suit or proceedmngdvance of its final disposition, provided,
however, that, to the extent required by law, suayment of expenses in advance of the final disiposdf such action, suit proceeding shal
made only upon receipt of an undertaking by theeoed person to repay all amounts advanced if mishioe ultimately determined that the
covered person is not entitled to be indemnifiedaurthis Article V or otherwise.

Section 5. Nonexclusivity of RightsThe indemnification and advancement of expensadged or granted pursuant to the other sectior
of this Article V shall not be deemed exclusiveaafy other rights to which those seeking indemniiiicaor advancement of expenses may be
entitled under any by-law, agreement, vote of dtotdkers or of disinterested directors or otherwlgeh as to action in his official capacity and
as to action in another capacity while holding saffite.

Section 6. Additional Indemnification and Advancerhef ExpensesThis Article V shall not limit the right of theocporation, to the
extent and in the manner permitted by law, to indiégyand to advance expenses to persons othercthasred persons when and as authorize
by appropriate corporate action.
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Section 7_InsuranceThe corporation shall have power to purchasenaaidtain insurance on behalf of any person who isas a
director, officer, employee or agent of the corpioraor is or was serving at the request of thgpemtion as a director, officer, employee or
agent of another corporation, partnership, joimtuee, trust or other enterprise, against any litgtasserted against him or her and incurred by
him or her in any such capacity, or arising outigfor her status as such, whether or not the catipa would have the power to indemnify |
or her against such liability under the provisiomshis Article V.

Section 8. Definition For purposes of this Article V, references tcee“torporation” shall include, in addition to theuking corporation,
any constituent corporation (including any constituof a constituent) absorbed in a consolidatiomerger which, if its separate existence
continued, would have had power and authority tiemnify its directors, officers, employees and agsn that any person who is or was a
director, officer, employee or agent of such cdustit corporation, or is or was serving at the estjof such constituent corporation as a
director, officer, employee or agent of anothempeoation shall stand in the same position undeptbeisions of this Article V with respect to
the resulting or surviving corporation as he or wioalld have with respect to such constituent capon if its separate existence had contin

Section 9, Continuation of Right§ he indemnification and advancement of expens®gaged by, or granted pursuant to, this Article V
shall, unless otherwise provided when authorizedtified, continue as to a person who has ceasbd a director, officer, employee or agent
and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, exexuind administrators of such a person.

ARTICLE VI

CERTIFICATES OF STOCK

Section 1. Form Every holder of stock in the corporation représdiby a certificate shall be entitled to have ®ifeeate, signed by, or i
the name of the corporation by, the Chairman oBtbard, the President or a Vice-President, and'teasurer, Assistant Treasurer, Secretary
or an Assistant Secretary of the corporation, fgémtj the number of shares owned by him or hehadorporation, provided that the board of
directors may provide by resolution or resolutitimst some or all of any class or series of stoe#l $ie uncertificated shares. Any such
resolution shall not apply to shares representea tsrtificate until such certificate is surrendkte the corporation. Any or all of the signatt
on a certificate may be facsimile. In case anyceffi transfer agent or registrar who has signedhmse facsimile signature has been placed
upon any such certificate or certificates shalldhemased to be such officer, transfer agent ostregibefore such certificate or certificates have
been issued by the corporation, such certificateedificates may nevertheless be issued as ththegperson or persons who signed such
certificate or certificates or whose facsimile sigme or signatures have been placed thereon weheddficer, transfer agent or registrar at the
date of issue. All certificates representing shatesl be consecutively numbered or otherwise ifledt The name of the person to whom the
shares represented thereby are issued, with theerunh shares
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and date of issue, shall be entered on the booltseaforporation. All certificates surrenderedtte torporation for transfer shall be cancelled,
and no new certificate shall be issued in replacgmetil the former certificate representing a likember of shares shall have been surrenc
or cancelled, except as otherwise provided in 8a@iof this Article VI with respect to lost, staler destroyed certificates.

Section 2, Lost CertificatesThe board of directors may direct a new certiBoar certificates to be issued in place of anyifieate or
certificates theretofore issued by the corporatilbeged to have been lost, stolen, or destroyeoh tipe making of an affidavit of that fact by
the person claiming the certificate of stock tdds, stolen, or destroyed. When authorizing sesbiance of a new certificate or certificates
board of directors may, in its discretion and asmdition precedent to the issuance thereof, regh& owner of such lost, stolen, or destroyed
certificate or certificates, or his or her leggnesentative, to give the corporation a bond irhs|umn as it may direct as indemnity against any
claim that may be made against the corporationcenunt of the loss, theft or destruction with retie the certificate or the issuance of such
new certificate.

Section 3_Fixing a Record Date

(a) In order that the corporation may determinestioekholders entitled to notice of any meetingtotkholders or any adjournme
thereof, the board of directors may fix a recortedavhich record date shall not precede the dad& which the resolution fixing the record
date is adopted by the board of directors, and lwrécord date shall, unless otherwise requirecgiwy hot be more than 60 nor less than 10
days before the date of such meeting. If the boadirectors so fixes a date, such date shall la¢sthe record date for determining the
stockholders entitled to vote at such meeting wilee board of directors determines, at the tinfizés such record date, that a later date on o
before the date of the meeting shall be the datméking such determination. If no record datéxsd by the board of directors, the record
for determining stockholders entitled to noticeooto vote at a meeting of stockholders shall biatclose of business on the day next
preceding the day on which notice is given, ongifice is waived, at the close of business on #hyenéxt preceding the day on which the
meeting is held. A determination of stockholdersemford entitled to notice of or to vote at a megptf stockholders shall apply to any
adjournment of the meeting; provided, however, thatboard of directors may fix a new record datedietermination of stockholders entitled
to vote at the adjourned meeting, and in such shak also fix as the record date for stockholdsnitled to notice of such adjourned meeting
the same or an earlier date as that fixed for detation of stockholders entitled to vote in ac@orde herewith at the adjourned meeting.

(b) In order that the corporation may determinedteekholders entitled to receive payment of anmydeind or other distribution or
allotment of any rights, or entitled to exercisg aights in respect of any change, conversion aharge of stock or for the purpose of any
other lawful action, the board of directors maydixecord date, which record date shall not pretieglélate upon which the resolution fixing
the record date is adopted, and which record dhetk 1ot be more than 60 days prior to such acfiomo such record date is fixed, the record
date for determining stockholders for any such psepshall be at the close of business on the dayharh the board of directors adopts the
resolution relating thereto.
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(c) Unless otherwise restricted by the certifiaafténcorporation, in order that the corporation naggermine the stockholders
entitled to express consent to corporate actiowriting without a meeting, the board of directorayix a record date, which record date shall
not precede the date upon which the resolutiomdixhe record date is adopted by the board of wirecand which record date shall not be
more than 10 days after the date upon which thautien fixing the record date is adopted by tharsloof directors. If no record date for
determining stockholders entitled to express cangecorporate action in writing without a meetisdixed by the board of directors, (i) when
no prior action of the board of directors is reqdiby law, the record date for such purpose stesthé first date on which a signed written
consent setting forth the action taken or propdedsk taken is delivered to the corporation in agance with applicable law, and (ii) if prior
action by the board of directors is required by,l#ve record date for such purpose shall be atltse of business on the day on which the
board of directors adopts the resolution takindhqarior action.

ARTICLE VII

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1, DividendsDividends upon the capital stock of the corpamtisubject to the provisions of the certificaténaforporation, if
any, may be declared by the board of directorsatregular or special meeting, pursuant to law.id¥ads may be paid in cash, in property, or
in shares of the capital stock, subject to the isions of the certificate of incorporation. Befgrayment of any dividend, there may be set asic
out of any funds of the corporation available fasidiends such sum or sums as the directors frora tortime, in their absolute discretion, th
proper as a reserve or reserves to meet contirggrar for equalizing dividends, or for repairingnmaintaining any property of the corporati
or any other purpose and the directors may modifgbolish any such reserve in the manner in whiglas created.

Section 2, Checks, Drafts or Ordewsll checks, drafts, or other orders for the paptraf money by or to the corporation and all n@ted
other evidences of indebtedness issued in the wéthe corporation shall be signed by such offmeofficers, agent or agents of the
corporation, and in such manner, as shall be datedrby resolution of the board of directors omusydauthorized committee thereof.

Section 3. ContractsThe board of directors may authorize any offimeofficers, or any agent or agents, of the cortamao enter into
any contract or to execute and deliver any instnirirethe name of and on behalf of the corporating such authority may be general or
confined to specific instances.

Section 4. Fiscal YearThe fiscal year of the corporation shall be fixgdresolution of the board of directors.

Section 5. Corporate Sealhe board of directors shall provide a corposa@ which shall be in the form of a circle andlishave
inscribed thereon the name of the corporation hadmords “Corporate Seal, Delaware.” The seal neayded by causing it or a facsimile
thereof to be impressed or affixed or reproduceadtioerwise.
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Section 6. Voting Securities Owned by CorporatidMoting securities in any other corporation orityriteld by the corporation shall be
voted by the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief &icial Officer or the President, unless the bo&directors specifically confers authority to
vote with respect thereto, which authority may baagal or confirmed to specific instances, uponesother person or officer. Any person
authorized to vote securities in any other corponabr entity shall have the power to appoint pesxiwith general power of substitution.

Section 7. Section HeadingSection headings in these bylaws are for converief reference only and shall not be given any
substantive effect in limiting or otherwise congtguany provision herein.

Section 8. Inconsistent Provisionk the event that any provision of these bylasvsribecomes inconsistent with any provision of the
certificate of incorporation, the General CorparatLaw of the State of Delaware or any other applie law, the provision of these bylaws
shall not be given any effect to the extent of smclonsistency but shall otherwise be given futtéand effect.

ARTICLE VI
AMENDMENTS

These bylaws may be amended, altered or repeatbdeam bylaws adopted at any meeting of the boardirettors. The fact that the
power to adopt, amend, alter or repeal the bylaasstieen conferred upon the board of directors sballlivest the stockholders of the same
powers.

ARTICLE IX

FORUM SELECTION

Unless the corporation consents in writing to thledion of an alternative forum, the Court of Cteny of the State of Delaware shall, to
the fullest extent permitted by law, be the solé exclusive forum for (a) any derivative actionppoceeding brought on behalf of the
corporation, (b) any action asserting a claim efleh of a fiduciary duty owed by any director, agfi or other employee of the corporation to
the corporation or the corporation’s stockhold@¥any action asserting a claim arising pursuautty provision of the General Corporation
Law of the State of Delaware, or (d) any actioreassg a claim governed by the internal affairstdoe. Any person or entity purchasing or
otherwise acquiring or holding any interest in glsaof capital stock of the corporation shall bendeg to have notice of and consented to the
provisions of this Article IX.
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Exhibit 10.11

Amended and Restated
John B. Sanfilippo & Son, Inc.
Sanfilippo Value Added Plan

Purposes of the Plan

The purpose of the Plan is to more closely linleimose cash compensation to the creation of stddeh@alue. The Plan is intended to
foster a culture of performance, promote employm®antability, and establish a framework of manatgasks and rewards imposed
by variable pay. The Plan is also intended to reveantinuing improvements in stockholder value veithopportunity to participate in a
portion of the wealth created. The Plan is ameraaebrestated as of August 20, 2015 to be effefbivehe 2016 Plan Year and
thereafter. The Committee may designate awardsruhdédlan as “Cash-Based Awards” under the JoIBaRBfilippo & Son, Inc. 2014
Omnibus Plan, as may be amended from time to tihee"Omnibus Plan”), and at the Committee’s disoresuch awards may be
designated as “performance-based compensation’t Beition 162(m) of the Code and any rules andlatigns thereunder. In the
event of a conflict between the terms of this Rlad the Omnibus Plan, the terms of this Plan vaillegn.

Definitions

“ Actual Improvement ” means the annual change in SVA, as determinedn@edction V(B)(1) of the Plan, which can be pusitr
negative.

“ Annual Salary " means, with respect to a Participant, his orfimed and actually paid annual or pro-rated (in thse of employment
for less than the full Plan Year) base salary jpadicular fiscal year of the Company.

“ Award " has the meaning set forth in the Omnibus Plan.
“ Award Agreement” has the meaning set forth in the Omnibus Plan.
“ Board " means the Board of Directors of the Company.

“Bonus Declared” means the annual or pro-rated (in the case of gmydat for less than the full Plan Year) bonus améomna Plan
Year, as determined under Section V of the Plan.

“ Bonus Interval” means the amount of SVA growth or diminution asdance from Target SVA Improvement that would eith
(A) result in two times the Target Bonus for SVAfpemance above Target SVA Improvement or (B) resutero times the Target
Bonus for SVA performance below Target SVA Improwsit

“ Capital Charge” means the Cost of Capital multiplied by the Compa invested capital, as determined by the Conemiin its sole
discretion.

“ Cause” means, in the judgment of the Committee, (A) bineach by the Participant of any employment agre¢neenployment
arrangement or any other agreement with the CompaaySubsidiary, (B) the Participant engaging buainess that competes with the
Company or a Subsidiary, (C) the Participant dsiclgp business secrets, trade secrets or confilerftanation of the Company or a
Subsidiary to any party, (D) dishonesty, miscondfratud or disloyalty by the Participant, (E) mipagpriation of corporate funds,

(F) failure to substantially perform his or heridatas an employee (for reasons other than phymigakntal illness), (G) breach by the
Participant of any policy or code of the conductief Company or any Subsidiary or (H) such othedaat by the Participant of an
insubordinate or criminal nature as to have rentifire continued employment or association of th#iddaant incompatible with the
best interests of the Company and its Subsidiaries.

“ Change in Control” means the first date on which one of the follogvevents occurs:

A. the consummation of a merger or consolidatiothefCompany with or into another entity or anyestborporate reorganization, if
more than 50% of the combined voting power of thietiouing or surviving entity’s securities outstamglimmediately after such
merger, consolidation or other reorganization isegvby persons who were not stockholders of thegammimmediately prior to such
merger, consolidation or other reorganization;

B. the sale, transfer or other disposition of albabstantially all of the Comparsyassets other than a sale or disposition by tmep@ay
of all or substantially all of the Company’s asdetan entity, where more than 50% of the combinthg power of such entity’s
securities outstanding immediately after such saldisposition is owned by persons who were natkdtolders of the Company
immediately prior to such sale or disposition;

C. a change in the composition of the Board, asalt of which fewer than one-half of the directfim$owing such change in
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composition of the Board are directors who eitigh@d been directors of the Company on the datedrths prior to the date of the
event that may constitute a Change in Control (t@eiginal Directors ") or (2) were elected, or nominated for electitmthe Board
with the affirmative votes of at least a majorifitiee aggregate of (a) the Original Directors wharevstill in office at the time of the
election or nomination and (b) the directors wheleetion or nomination was previously approved pans to this Clause (2); or

D. any transaction as a result of which any “petsmrigroup” (as such terms are used in Sectiordlaad 14(d) of the Exchange Act),
other than one or more Permitted Holders, or anygthat is controlled by Permitted Holders, i®ecomes the “beneficial owner” (as
defined in Rules 13d-3 and 13d-5 under the Exchawge(during the 12 month period ending on theedaftthe most recent acquisition
of voting securities), directly or indirectly, dig voting securities of the Company representirigast 30% of the total voting power of
the Company (with respect to all matters other tharelection of directors) represented by the Comfs then outstanding voting
securities. For purposes of this Clause (D), thm téransaction” shall include any conversion of fhilass A Stock, whether or not such
conversion occurs in connection with a sale, tmnsf other disposition of such Class A Stock.

For purposes of this definition: (1) the term “a@rsshall exclude: (a) a trustee or other fiduciaojding securities under an employee
benefit plan of the Company or a Subsidiary; and(borporation owned directly or indirectly by thteckholders of the Company in
substantially the same proportions as their ownershthe Common Stock (it being understood thatpiorposes of subsequently
determining whether a Change in Control has ocduak references to the “Company” in the defimtiof Change in Control shall be
deemed to be references to the Company and/orcsuphbration, as applicable); (2) the term “group&al exclude any group controlled
by any person identified in Clause (1)(A) above &)dhe term “control” shall mean the possessibirgctly or indirectly, of the power
to direct or cause the direction of the manageraepblicies of a person, whether through the owmpref voting securities, by
contract, or otherwise, and the terms “controlliagitl “controlled” have meanings correlative thereto

Except as otherwise determined by the Committegspim-off of a division or subsidiary of the Commgato its stockholders will not
constitute a Change in Control of the Company.

“ Class A Stock’ means the Class A Common Stock, $.01 par valusipere, of the Company.
“ Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as aegend
“ Committee” has the meaning set forth in Section IV(A).

“ Common Stock” means the Common Stock, par value $.01 per sbathe Company, and any other shares into which €&ommon
Stock shall thereafter be exchanged by reasorretapitalization, merger, consolidation, split-apmbination, exchange of shares or
the like.

“ Company” means John B. Sanfilippo & Son, Inc., a Delawasgporation, and its successors and assigns.

“ Cost of Capital” means the Company’s assumed cost of equity pdusost of debt, expressed as a percentage, usiegghted
average of the expected return on the Company’satebequity capital, all as determined in the siideretion of the Committee. Cost
of Capital is intended to reflect the rate of ratthvat an investor could earn by choosing anotinerstment with equivalent risk.

“ Declared Bonus Multiple” means the multiple determined in accordance witti@e V(B)(4) of the Plan for purposes of determiy
a Participant’s Bonus Declared.

“ Disability " means a mental or physical condition which, ia tpinion of the Committee, renders a Participawatble or incompetent
to carry out the job responsibilities which suchtiegant held or tasks to which such Participaasvassigned at the time the disability
was incurred and which is expected to be permamefior an indefinite period. With respect to anycamt payable under the Plan that
constitutes deferred compensation under Code 9e4€8A and is subject to Code Section 409A, the @dtae may not find that a
Disability exists with respect to the applicabletRgpant unless, in the Committee’s opinion, s&ahrticipant is also “disabled” within
the meaning of Code Section 409A.

“ Early Retirement ” means the Termination of Service, other thardieath or Disability, after the date the employe® (fJabeen
continuously employed by the Company or any Subsjdif the Company for at least ten (10) years(@hdchieved the age of at least
55.

“ Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asdet
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“ Excess Improvement’ has the meaning set forth in Section V(B)(2).
“ Guidelines” has the meaning set forth in Section 1V(B)(3).

“ Normal Retirement” means the Termination of Service, other thandiath or Disability, after the date the employe® (ijdbeen
continuously employed by the Company or any Subsjdif the Company for at least seven (7) years(@nachieved the age of at le
62.

“ NOPAT " means the Company’s net operating profit aft@r é& determined by the Committee from the Compmaaydited financial
statements.

“ Omnibus Plan” has the meaning set forth in Section I.

“ Participant " has the meaning set forth in Section IlI.

“ Performance-Based Compensatioh has the meaning set forth in the Omnibus Plan.
“ Permitted Holder " means:

A. Jasper B. Sanfilippo (asper”), Mathias A. Valentine, (‘Mathias "), a spouse of Jasper, a spouse of Mathias, apgllidescendant
of Jasper or any lineal descendant of Mathiasdctllely referred to as theFamily Members”);

B. a legal representative of a deceased or dis&ldedly Member’s estat@rovidedthat such legal representative is a Family Member;

C. atrustee of any trust of which all the beneafies (and any donees and appointees of any p@f/appointment held thereunder) are
Family Members and the trustee of which is a Famigmber;

D. a custodian under the Uniform Gifts to Minorst Ac Uniform Transfers to Minors Act for the exdls benefit of a Family Member,
providedthat such custodian is a Family Member;

E. any corporation, partnership or other enfingvidedthat at least 75% of the equity interests in sutftye(by vote and by value) are
owned, either directly or indirectly, in the aggaégby Family Members;

F. any bank or other financial institution, solalya bona fide pledgee of shares of Class A Stpthkebowner thereof as collateral
security for indebtedness due to the pledgee; or

G. any employee benefit plan, or trust or accoetd thereunder, or any savings or retirement adcociuding an individual
retirement account), held for the exclusive beradfa Family Member.

“ Plan” means the Amended and Restated John B. Sanfipgon, Inc. Sanfilippo Value Added Plan.
“ Plan Year” means the fiscal year of the Company.

“ Retirement” means a Participant’s Termination of Servicegotthan a Termination for Cause, by reason of NbResirement or
Early Retirement.

“ Section 409A" means Code Section 409A and all applicable ratesregulations related thereto.
“ Shortfall " has the meaning set forth in Section V(B)(3).
“ Subsidiary " means any corporation at least eighty percerd)86f the outstanding voting stock of which is owrzy the Company.

“ SVA " means the “stockholder value added” of the Comypetermined each Plan Year by deducting the Cogip&apital Charge
from NOPAT, as determined by the Committee.

“ Target Bonus” means the Bonus Declared a Participant wouldgieé for a Plan Year if Actual Improvement equaledget SVA
Improvement, determined by multiplying a ParticipeAnnual Salary for that Plan Year by the Papigit's Target Bonus Percentage
for that Plan Year.



“ Target Bonus Percentagé means the percentage of a Participant’s Annukdr$aas established or approved by the Commitiee f
purposes of determining a Participant’s Target Bonu

“ Target SVA Improvement” means the targeted improvement in annual SVA ¢inaag determined by the Committee pursuant to
Section V(A)(1)(c).

“ Termination for Cause” means a determination by the Committee followénBarticipans termination of employment for any rea
that, prior to such termination of employment, girstances constituting Cause existed with respesui¢h Participant.

“ Termination of Service” has the meaning set forth in the Omnibus Plan.

“ Termination Year " has the meaning set forth in Section VI(B)(1)(a).

Eligibility

An employee of the Company or a Subsidiary whoividdally or as part of a group, is selected by @mmmittee to be eligible to
participate in the Plan for the Plan Year shalldmee a participant as of the first day of such Maar, unless otherwise determined by
the Committee (each, aParticipant ”). Except as provided in this Section Ill, no Rapant or other employee of the Company or any
Subsidiary shall, at any time, have a right toipgrate in the Plan for any Plan Year, notwithsiagchaving previously participated in
the Plan.

Administration

A.

The Committee

The Board hereby appoints the Compensation Coneritt¢he Board to be theCommittee” hereunder unless a new,
independent committee is selected by the Boardth®purpose, a new Committee will be deemed iaddpnt if it is comprised
solely of two or more directors who are “indepertddirectors” within the meaning of the The Nasd&oc® Market, Inc.’s rules
and regulations. The Board hereby delegates t€tmemittee all compensation review and approval pewassociated with the
Plan and the Guidelines. Notwithstanding any ofitevision of the Plan to the contrary, membershef€ommittee who qualify
“outside directors” under Section 162(m) of the Eastiall administer, grant or take any action ipees of any Award designated
as Performance-Based Compensation.

Powers
The Committee shall have full and exclusive didoretry power to:
1. Interpret and administer the Plan and all Awdreleunder,

2. Determine those employees of the Company arlitsidiaries who are eligible to participate ia BHan in accordance with
Section IIl,

3. Adopt, amend and revoke such rules, regulatiamd,guidelines, including the establishment ofqrerance criteria (the “
Guidelines™), for administering the Plan as the Committee mayrdeecessary or proper, including the full discretimt to mak«
payment of any or all of the Bonus Declared deteetiiin Section VI, and

4. Except to the extent prohibited by applicabie ta the applicable rules of a stock exchangenoonsistent with the Company’s
Amended and Restated Bylaws, Restated Certifiddi@corporation or Committee charter, allocatecalany portion of its
responsibilities and powers under this Plan to@my or more of its members or delegate all or @y @f its responsibilities and
powers to any person or persons selected by ih 8elegation shall include, unless limited by &ésns, all of the responsibility
and authority held by the Committee hereunder,aamdsuch allocation or delegation may be revokethbyCommittee at any
time. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any such dateg under this Section 1V.B.3 shall be void ifvibuld cause any Award
designated as Performance-Based Compensationltmger qualify as Performance-Based Compensation.

Adjustment to Payments

1. If a Participant violates any Company policye @ompany retains the right (in the discretionhef Committee) to declare
forfeited any award granted to a Participant hetlegnto the extent it remains unpaid. In the evieait a Participant’'s Bonus
Declared for the prior Plan Year has not yet besd pt the time the Company declares such Partitgpaward forfeited, such
forfeited amounts shall be distributed to othettiBigiant(s) (other than with respect to Awards geated as Performance-Based
Compensation) on a pro-rata basis, or distributemthier Participant(s) as otherwise determinechbyGommittee.
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2. If (a) the Company is required to prepare amawcting restatement due to the material noncompdiari the Company with any
financial reporting requirement under securitiegda(b) the Committee determines a TerminatiorClause occurred with respect
to a Participant or (c) the Company is requireddvy, rule or regulation or the rules of the stogklenge on which the
Company’s securities are listed to “clawback” ampoants paid hereunder, the Committee may requiyeoaall of the following:
(i) any award granted to the Participant hereunttethe extent it remains unpaid at the time ofréstatement, be forfeited,;
provided, however, that in the event that a Participant’s prior Pfaar's Bonus Declared has not yet been paid dintethe
Committee declares such Participant’'s award fatkisuch forfeited amounts shall be distributedtber Participant(s) on a pro-
rata basis, or distributed to other Participardésptherwise determined by the Committee; andh@)Participant shall pay to the
Company in cash all of the amounts paid hereundengl the three-year period (or such other peridetermined by the
Committee) prior to the date the Company is requioeprepare the financial restatement based oartio@eous data or the
Participant’s termination of employment, as theeaasly be, together with any other amounts which beasequired to be paid
under any law, rule or regulation or the ruleshaf stock exchange on which the Company’s secuatiesisted.

D. Third-Party Advisors

The Committee may employ attorneys, consultantattants, and other persons. the Committee andfiters shall be entitled
to rely upon the advice or opinion of such persons.

E. Binding Effect of Committee Actions

All actions taken and all interpretations and deieations made by the Committee shall be finallinding upon the Participan
the Company, and all other interested persons. Bimlmer of the Committee shall be personally liabkeahy action,
determination, or interpretations made in goochfaiith respect to the Plan. All members of the Cattaa shall be fully protecte
and indemnified by the Company, to the fullest ekfeermitted by applicable law, in respect of anghsaction, determination, or
interpretation of the Plan.

F.  Foreign Jurisdiction

The Committee shall have the discretion to modifgamend the Plan, or adopt additional terms antbioditions, as may be
deemed necessary or advisable in order to complythe local laws and regulations of any jurisdioti

V. Determination of Bonus Declarec
A. Determination of SVA and Actual Improvement

1. Beginning of Plan Year Determinations. At or around the beginning of each applicablenPlaar (which shall be no later th
90 days after the beginning of the Plan Year for &wards designated as Performance-Based Compenjdtie following
determinations shall be made:

a) The Committee shall determine, or approve tlterdenation of, the Company’s annual SVA as ofe¢hd of the
preceding Plan Year.

b) The Committee shall determine the Participantsfich Plan Year.

¢) The Committee shall determine or approve TaBgeius Percentages for each Participant and the GaoytgpCost of
Capital for the applicable Plan Year.

d) The Committee shall establish the Target SVArimpment and the Bonus Interval for the applicddén Year.
e) The Committee shall adopt Guidelines for theliapple Plan Year.

f) Participation for a given Plan Year shall bedericed by an Award Agreement, describing applicestas and
conditions of participation for that Plan Year,luding whether such award is intended to be treateBerformance-Based
Compensation.



2. End of Plan Year Determinations.After the end of each applicable Plan Year, thiotahg determinations shall be made:

a) The Committee shall determine and certify then@any’s annual SVA as of the end of the Plan Yedrthe resulting
Actual Improvement, consistent with the terms & Bian and the Guidelines thereunder.

b) The Committee shall determine, or approve therdenation of, the Declared Bonus Multiple for BlRlan Year,
consistent with the terms of the Plan and the Giniele thereunder.

B. Determination of Bonus Declarec
Each Participant’s Bonus Declared, if any, shalllbeermined for a Plan Year according to the foifmwy

1. The Actual Improvement in SVA for a Plan Yeaaltbe determined by subtracting the SVA for theniediately preceding Pl
Year (or such other amount as determined by theritige) from the SVA for the Plan Year.

2. If the Actual Improvement exceeds the Target SMfsrovement, the amount of that excess shall b€ Excess Improvement

3. If the Target SVA Improvement exceeds the Actoglrovement, the amount of that excess shall &€ hortfall ”;

4. The Declared Bonus Multiple shall be determibgadomparing the Excess Improvement or ShortfatheoTarget SVA
Improvement and Bonus Interval, according to thiefdng:

a) If the Actual Improvement equals the Target Sviprovement, the Declared Bonus Multiple shall éaqumee (1).

b) If the Actual Improvement exceeds the Target SWfarovement, the Declared Bonus Multiple shalladbe Excess
Improvement divided by the Bonus Interval, plus ¢heprovided, howeverthat if the Declared Bonus Multiple is greater
than 2.0, then it shall still be deemed to be @rGHe purposes of this Plan and the Guidelines.

c) If the Actual Improvement is less than the Tag¢A Improvement, the Declared Bonus Multiple slegjual the
Shortfall (expressed as a negative number) dividethe Bonus Interval, plus one (pypvided, howeverthat if the
Declared Bonus Multiple is less than 0, then itlsstdl be deemed to be 0 for the purposes of BHan and the Guidelines.

5. The Bonus Declared for each Participant shalbethe Participant’'s Target Bonus, multiplied bg Declared Bonus Multiple.

VI.  Payment of Bonus Declare(
A. Payment

1. The Bonus Declared shall be paid by the Compéthjn thirty (30) days following the Committee’®krmination of the
Declared Bonus Multiple, but in no event earliarthhe first day of the Plan Year following the Bggble Plan Year and no later
than the fifteenth (15th) day of the third monthHdwing the end of the applicable Plan Year. In évent that a Participant’s prior
Plan Year’'s Bonus Declared has not yet been paltkaime such Participastaward is forfeited pursuant to the terms of Bian
such forfeited amounts shall be distributed to pBerticipant(s) (other than with respect to Awatdsignated as Performance-
Based Compensation) on a pro-rata basis, or diséiibto other Participant(s) as otherwise deterchinethe Committee.

B. Payment Upon Termination of Employment

1.In General . Subject to Section 1V(C) and except as specliieldw, and unless otherwise determined by the Cat@eiin the
event a Participant’s employment is terminatedhgy@ompany or by the Participant other than asritestin Section VI(B)(2),
or the Participant becomes ineligible to participiatthe Plan:

a) the Participant shall not be paid any Bonus &ed for the Plan Year in which the terminationuwsdthe “
Termination Year "), the respective Award being cancelled;

b) in the event that the prior Plan Year's BonuslBeed has not yet been paid, the Participant sivalbe paid any Bonus
Declared for such prior Plan Yeamrovided, however, that any Awards cancelled pursuant to this VI{}) shall be
distributed to other Participant(s) (other tharhwitspect to Awards designated as Performance-Basegensation) on a
pro-rata basis, or distributed to other Particifgrds otherwise determined by the Committee; and

6



VII.

c¢) the Participant shall have no rights or intexésthe Plan thereafter.

Any payments made under this Section VI(B)(1) atdiscretion of the Committee shall be within tineet set forth in Section VI(A) ai
the Participant shall have no rights or interesthe Plan thereafter.

2.Upon Death, Disability, Retirement, or Terminationby the Company Other than for CauseSubject to Section IV(C), and unless
otherwise determined by the Committee, in the ewéatParticipant’s death, Disability, Retiremenflermination of Service by the
Company other than for Cause, the following praisishall apply to any Award designated as Perfocerdased Compensation
hereunder in lieu of the provisions contained iotlB@a 13 of the Omnibus Plan:

a) to the extent not previously paid, any Bonusla@red with respect to the Plan Year preceding #erilnation Year shall
be paid by the Company to the former Participanin ¢he event of his or her death, to his or Istate or designated
beneficiary, within the time set forth in Sectioh(A);

b) with respect to the Termination Year, a Partioipshall receive a pro-rated Bonus Declared détein accordance
with Section VI(A) of the Plan and such pro-ratezhBs Declared shall be paid by the Company todhedr Participant,
or in the event of his or her death, to his ord&ate or designated beneficiary, within the tietefarth in Section VI(A).
For the avoidance of doubt the Bonus Declarednsidered “pro-rated” because the Annual Salary usduke
determination of the Bonus Declared in Section thesfinal and actually paid (or fully earned, bet yet paid) pro-rated
base salary; and

c) the Participant shall have no rights or intexésthe Plan thereafter.

3. Condition of Payments.Except as may be waived by the Committee in its dacretion, any payment hereunder that is due to
Termination of Service by the Company or by theiBigant may be subject to a requirement that ti¢tpant execute a release of
claims (including claims relating to age discrintioa) in favor of the Company and its Subsidiaaesl related persons at the time and
in the form determined by the Company from timéinee (provided that such requirement shall not eaudelay in the time of payment
otherwise provided for herein).

General Provisions
A. No Right to Employment or Participation

No Participant or other person shall have any claimght to be retained in the employment of ttefpany or a Subsidiary by
reason of the Plan or any Bonus Declared. Seleftioeligibility to participate in the Plan for amyven Plan Year shall not entitle
the Participant to participate in any subsequeah Rear.

B. Plan Expenses
The expenses of the Plan and its administratioth lsedorne by the Company.

C. Plan Not Funded

The Plan shall be unfunded. The Company shall esthuired to establish any special or separat duto make any other
segregation of assets to assure the payment damys Declared under the Plan. No Participantleeraperson shall have any
right, title or interest in any fund or in any sfecasset of the Company or any Subsidiary by saasf any award or Bonus
Declared hereunder. To the extent that a Partitipaother person acquires a right to receive payméh respect to a Bonus
Declared hereunder, such right shall be no grehser the right of any unsecured general creditéh@fCompany or any
Subsidiary, as applicable.

D. Reports

The appropriate officers of the Company shall caadme filed any reports, returns, or other infotioaregarding the Plan, as ir
be required by applicable statute, rule, or redguhat

E. Governing Law

The validity, construction, and effect of the Pland any actions relating to the Plan, shall berdgned in accordance with the
laws of the state of Delaware and applicable fddava without regard to the conflicts of laws pigiens of any state.
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F.  Withholding

The Company shall have the right to deduct from gayyment hereunder any amounts that Federal, kiatd or foreign laws
require, including tax laws, with respect to suelympents.

G. No Fiduciary Relationship

Nothing contained in the Plan (or in any documetdted thereto, including the Guidelines), nordresation or adoption of the
Plan, nor any action taken pursuant to the pronssiaf the Plan shall create, or be construed tatera trust of any kind or a
fiduciary relationship between the Company or angstdiary and any Participant or other person.

H. Severability

If any provision of the Plan shall be held illegalinvalid for any reason, said illegality or inidity shall not affect the remaining
provisions hereof; instead, each provision shalitig severable and the Plan shall be construedesnforced as if said illegal or
invalid provision had never been included herein.

. Successor:

All obligations of the Company under the Plan shalbinding upon and inure to the benefit of amycesgsor to the Company,
whether the existence of such successor is thét mfsudirect or indirect purchase, merger, coitlstion, or otherwise, of all or
substantially all of the business and/or assetseCompany.

VIIl. Amendment and Termination of the Plan; Changein Control; 409A
A. Amendment and Termination of the Plan.

1. The Board may, from time to time, amend the faamy respect, or may discontinue or terminageRfan at any time,
provided, however, that:

a) Impact on Existing RightsExcept as required by law, no amendment, discoatice or termination of the Plan shall alter or
otherwise affect the amount of a Bonus Declaredra the date of termination;

b) Impact on SVA Performance Measurement Systim amendment shall be made which would replageSMA performance
measurement system for purposes of determiningdineis Declared under the Plan during a Plan Yeaasifoh Plan Year,
providedthat, subject to Section VIII(D), the Board or Coittee shall have the authority to adjust and esthlarget SVA
Improvement, Target Bonus Percentages, and otheriarutilized in the SVA performance measurenssistem during a Plan
Year due to, among other reasons, (i) a chandseilCbmpanys business, operations, corporate or capital streictii) a change i
the manner in which the Company’s business is cctedl (i) any other material change or event \whigll impact one or more
elements of SVA in a manner the Committee did nterid or was anticipated or (iv) the inclusion xclasion of any factors liste
in Section 15.3 of the Omnibus Plan, then the Cdiemimay, reasonably contemporaneously with suahgdor event, make
such adjustments as it shall deem appropriate wtadge in the manner of computing the relevant y¢formance measurement
system during the Plan Year; and

¢) Consequence of Full Termination of Pléubject to Section VIII(D), if the Plan is terrated prior to the end of a Plan Year,
the Bonus Declared for that Plan Year shall berdeteed and paid to a Participant as set forth ictiBes V and VI of the Plan,
assuming that Target SVA Improvement for that Plaar had been achieved, then pro-rated for theantumber of days in the
Plan Year before the Plan was terminated. Any @agiment shall be subject to the terms and conditidrihis Plan.

B. Consequence of Change in Contrc

1. The Committee shall determine the treatment®fonus Declared to Participants prior to a Chamgeontrol, except that to
the extent that the Committee takes no action éxadpt as otherwise expressly provided for in th@&€lines), in the event of a
Change in Control, then the Bonus Declared for fan Year shall be determined and paid as sét fior$ections V and VI of th
Plan, but assuming that Target SVA Improvementtiat Plan Year had been achieved prior to the Ghangontrol, and pro-
rating it for the actual number of days in the PYarar before the Change in Control, such Bonus &@edlshall be paid within the
sixty (60) day period following the effective tinogthe Change in Control.
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2. Except as expressly provided for in the Guidsjrthe Committee may elect prior to a Change imt@b that, in the event of a
Change in Control, the Plan shall continue on Ihfeuce and effect or be assumed or an equivdhat be implemented by the
successor corporation in any Change in Controktetion, or parent or subsidiary of such successqoration.

Section 409A

This Plan is intended to be exempt from SectionM®fwever, to the extent Section 409A appliesrty payment hereunder,
notwithstanding anything to the contrary in thiarPthe following shall apply:

1. To the extent required in order to avoid aceeét taxation and/or tax penalties under Secti®@A4@mounts that would
otherwise be payable pursuant to this Plan dutiegsix-month period immediately following the Peigant’s termination of
employment shall instead be paid on the first essrday after the date that is six months followhregParticipant’s “separation
from service” within the meaning of Section 409A;

2. A Participant shall not be entitled to any pagtseesulting from or arising due to a “terminatmremployment”, “termination”
or “retirement” (or other similar term having a damn import) unless (and until) such Participans Hiseparated from service”
within the meaning of Section 409A; and

3. To the extent any provision of the Plan or acty the Committee would subject any Participariaoility for interest or
additional taxes under Section 409A, it will be el null and void, to the extent permitted by lawl deemed advisable by the
Committee. It is intended that the Plan will berapé from Section 409A (or if subject to Section AQ8ompliant with

Section 409A), and the Plan shall be interpreteticamstrued on a basis consistent with such inférg.Plan may be amended in
any respect deemed necessary (including retro&gtibg the Board in order to preserve exemptiomfri@r compliance with)
Section 409A. The preceding shall not be constased guarantee of any particular tax effect fon Playments. A Participant is
solely responsible and liable for the satisfactiball taxes and penalties that may be imposedich person in connection with
any payments to such person under the Plan (ingjualy taxes and penalties under Section 409A)tte&€ompany (or any
affiliate or subsidiary) shall have no obligati@animdemnify or otherwise hold a Participant harralsm any or all of such taxes
or penalties.

Code Section 162(m

Any Award designated to be treated as Performarase® Compensation shall be subject to Section ffieddmnibus Plan. This
Plan, and any Award Agreement hereunder, shalteegreted consistent with Code Section 162(m)agmudicable rules and
regulations thereunder.



Exhibit 14

JOHN B. SANFILIPPO & SON, INC. (JBSS)
CODE OF ETHICS APPLICABLE TO THE PRINCIPAL EXECUTE/, FINANCIAL
AND ACCOUNTING OFFICERS

Applicable to:

The Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offier, Chief Financial Officer and Group President, Chef Operating Officer
and President, Corporate Controller and Director of Financial Reporting and Taxation (Collectively the* Principal Executive, Financial
and Accounting Officers”).

JBSS requires its Principal Executive, Financial Arcounting Officers to: (i) act in accordancehiite highest standards of personal
and professional integrity in all aspects of tlasiivities; (ii) comply with applicable laws, rulesd regulations; (iii) deter wrongdoing; and
(iv) abide by the policies and procedures adoptedBSS that govern the conduct of its employeeis Thde of Ethics sets forth principles
that these officers must adhere to and advocate.

As a Principal Executive, Financial or Accountinfi€er of JBSS, you will fulfill this responsibiltby doing the following:

Honest and Ethical Conduct

Act at all times with honesty, integrity and indegence. Encourage the ethical handling of actuappearent conflicts of interest between
personal and professional relationships. Obtaimtgtlg approval from the Audit Committee of the Bd&f Directors prior to transacting witl
related party. Consider the impact of all investtagimterests and associations on your indeperedantise of judgment in JBSS’s best
interests. Act honestly and ethically in dealinghwgach other, your fellow employees, customerd,saippliers. Protect and respect the
confidentiality of information acquired in the cearof your employment except when authorized ceretlse legally obligated to disclose.
Support and enforce this Code of Ethics.

Accurate and Timely Financial Recording

Establish and monitor procedures designed to pefllt; fair, accurate, timely and understandali$eldsure in reports and documents that
submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commissionin other public communications made by JBS®al#tish and monitor procedures
designed to ensure that no records contain ang taltentionally misleading information, no transons are intentionally misclassified; all
transactions are supported by accurate and reqddaegmentation and record retention and disposapties with applicable legal and
regulatory requirements.

Compliance with Applicable Governmental Laws, Ruleand Regulations

Comply with all applicable rules and regulationdeaxderal, state, or local government, the Secsraigd Exchange Commission, Nasdaq, and
other regulatory agencies.
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Reporting of Code Violations

Promptly report any violation or suspicion of vitda of this Code of Ethics directly to the Audib@mittee of the Board of Directors or
through the Company’s anonymous incident reporsiygiem.

Accountability

Full compliance of this Code of Ethics is requirBg.signing this document, you acknowledge that ynderstand and agree to adhere to this
Code of Ethics. You also understand that changasdnwaivers of this Code may be made only by tharé& of Directors or the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors and will be mprtly disclosed as required under applicable lad/r@gulations. Furthermore, you
understand that any violation may be grounds fscidlinary action up to and including termination.

/sl Jeffrey Sanfilippi 10/30/201. /sl Michael J. Valentin 10/30/201.
Signature Date Signature Date
Jeffrey Sanfilippc Michael J. Valentin
Printed Namq Printed Namq
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Office Chief Financial Officer and Group Presid
Title Title
/sl Jasper Brian Sanfilipg 10/30/201. /s/ Frank S. Pellegrin 10/30/201.
Signature Date Signature Date
Jasper Brian Sanfilipg Frank S. Pellegrin
Printed Namq Printed Namq
Chief Operating Officer and Presid¢ Senior Vice President, Finance ¢
Corporate Controlle
Title Title
/sl Michael J. Fini 10/30/201.
Signature Date
Michael J. Finr
Printed Namq

Director of Financial Reporting and Taxati

Title
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Exhibit 21

Subsidiaries of John B. Sanfilippo & Son, Inc.

Voting Securities Owned Directly State or Country of
Entity or Indirectly by the Registrant Organization
JBSS Real Estate, LLC 100% lllinois
JBSS Ventures, LL( 100% Illinois
Sanfilippo (Shanghai) 100% China

Trading Co. Ltd



EXHIBIT 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N83:&7661, 333-108298, 333-154850,
333-199637) of John B. Sanfilippo & Son, Inc. of ogport dated August 21, 2015 relating to the oidated financial statements and the
effectiveness of internal control over financigdoeting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chicago, lllinois
August 21, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Jeffrey T. Sanfilippo, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of John B. Sanfilippo & Son, Inc. for the fisg@ar ended June 25, 20:

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dongtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrie period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financédarting, or caused such internal control overrfgial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragigslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesignt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a simifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

August 21, 2015

/sl Jeffrey T. Sanfilippo
Jeffrey T. Sanfilippc
Chairman of the Board ar
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Michael J. Valentine, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of John B. Sanfilippo & Son, Inc. for the fisg@ar ended June 25, 20:

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dongtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgrie period in which this report is being prepa

(b) Designed such internal control over financédarting, or caused such internal control overrfgial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragigslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesignt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a simifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

August 21, 2015

/sl Michael J. Valentine
Michael J. Valentine
Chief Financial Officer, Group President and Sexse




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of John B. figpo & Son, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Krfthe fiscal year ended June 25, 2015
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissinthe date hereof (the “Report”), I, JeffreyShnfilippo, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and Director, certify, pursuant to 18 U.A350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 db#ineanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that based
on my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenitSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

August 21, 2015

/sl Jeffrey T. Sanfilippo
Jeffrey T. Sanfilippc
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of John B. figpo & Son, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Krfthe fiscal year ended June 25, 2015
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissinthe date hereof (the “Report”), I, MichaeValentine, Chief Financial Officer and
Group President and Director, certify, pursuart@dJ.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to Secti6roBthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that

based on my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdétion and results of operations of the
Company.

August 21, 2015

/s/ Michael J. Valentine

Michael J. Valentint

Chief Financial Officer, Group President
and Secretar




